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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
16 South Pennsylvania Avenue

Post Office Box 754
Oklahoma City, OK 73101

FAX: (405) 235-5067

Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders
To Be Held July 22, 2004

 

To the Stockholders of
LSB Industries, Inc.

The Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of LSB Industries, Inc. (the "Company") will take place at the Company's offices located at 16 S. Pennsylvania Avenue, Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma, on Thursday, July 22, 2004, at 11:30 a.m. (CDT), for the purpose of considering and acting upon the following matters:

1. The election of 3 nominees to the Board of Directors;
2. The ratification of the appointment of independent auditors;
3. Any other business which properly may come before the meeting or any adjournment of the meeting.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on June 7, 2004, as the record date for the determination of holders of the common stock and voting preferred stock of the
Company entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting.

To ensure the presence of a quorum at the Annual Meeting, please sign and promptly return the enclosed Proxy Card in the accompanying self-addressed envelope, which requires no
postage if mailed in the United States.

The Company is distributing its 2003 Annual Report to Stockholders with the enclosed proxy soliciting material.

                                                                            By order of the Board of Directors

                                                                            David M. Shear
                                                                            Secretary

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
June 24, 2004

LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
16 South Pennsylvania Avenue

Post Office Box 754
Oklahoma City, OK 73101

PROXY STATEMENT FOR
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held July 22, 2004

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES



Solicitation This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of LSB Industries, Inc. (the "Company") of proxies to be voted at the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") to take place on Thursday, July 22, 2004, at 11:30 a.m. at the Company's offices located at 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue,
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma and at any adjournment thereof. This Proxy Statement and the Proxy Card are being first sent to the stockholders of the Company on or about June 24, 2004.

The Company may use the services of its directors, officers, and employees to solicit proxies personally, by mail, the internet, or telephone, without additional compensation
therefor. The Company will bear all of the costs of preparing, printing, assembling, and mailing this Proxy Statement and the Proxy Card and all of the costs of the solicitation
of the proxies. The Company will also reimburse any bank, broker-dealer, or other custodian, nominee, or fiduciary for its reasonable expenses incurred in completing the mailing
of proxy materials to the beneficial owners of the Company's Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock.

Revocation of Proxy Any stockholder giving his or her proxy may revoke it at any time before its exercise by (a) notifying the Secretary of the Company, by facsimile or in
writing, (b) returning a later-dated proxy card, or (c) attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person.

Stockholder Proposals In order to be considered for inclusion in the proxy materials for the Company's 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, any proposal of a stockholder intended
to be presented at such meeting must be delivered in writing to the Secretary of the Company no later than February 24, 2005.

STOCKHOLDERS ENTITLED TO VOTE

Record Date and Voting Securities Only the record holders of shares of the Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock of the Company, as of the close of business on June 7, 2004
(the "Record Date"), will have the right to receive notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting. As of the close of business on the Record Date, the Company had the following
shares of Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock issued and outstanding: (a) 12,810,004 shares of Common Stock (excluding 3,275,901 shares held in treasury); (b) 1,054 shares of
Convertible Noncumulative Preferred Stock; (c) 20,000 shares of Series B 12% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock; and (d) 1,000,000 shares of Series D 6% Cumulative
Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred"). Each stockholder of record, as of the Record Date, will have one vote for each share of Common Stock and voting Preferred
Stock of the Company (except each share of Series D Preferred will have .875 of one vote) that the stockholder owned as of the Record Date. 

All shares of Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock will vote together as a single class on all matters coming before the Annual Meeting, and a majority of all of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock of the Company, represented as a single class, entitled to notice of, and to vote at,
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the Annual Meeting, represented in person or by proxy, will constitute a quorum for the meeting.

Votes will be tabulated by an inspector of election appointed by the Company's Board of Directors. Pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, only votes
cast "For" a matter constitute affirmative votes, except proxies in which the stockholder fails to make a specification as to whether he votes "For", "Against", "Abstains" or
"Withholds" as to a particular matter shall be considered as a vote "For" that matter. Votes in which the stockholder specifies that he is "Withholding" or "Abstaining" from
voting are counted for quorum purposes. Abstentions and broker non-votes are not considered as votes "For" a particular matter.

PROPOSAL 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

General The Board of Directors has nominated Jack E. Golsen, Horace G. Rhodes and Charles A. Burtch to serve a three-year term expiring in 2007. Each of the nominees is presently
serving as a director of the Company.

If any of the nominees become unable or unwilling to accept the election or to serve as a director (an event which the Board of Directors does not anticipate), the person or
persons named in the Proxy Card as the proxies will vote for the election of the person or persons recommended by a majority of the independent directors then serving on the
Board of Directors. The proxies cannot be voted for a greater number of persons than the number of nominees.

The Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Company provide for the division of the Board of Directors into three classes, each class consisting as nearly as possible of
one-third of the whole. The term of office of one class of directors expires each year, with each class of directors elected for a term of three years and until their successors
are duly elected and qualified. Messrs. Golsen, Rhodes and Burtch are in the class whose term is expiring as of the Annual Meeting. 

The Company's By-laws provide that the Board of Directors, by resolution from time to time, may fix the number of directors that shall constitute the whole Board of Directors.
The By-laws presently provide that the number of directors may consist of not less than three nor more than twelve. The Board of Directors currently consists of twelve members. 

The terms of the $3.25 Convertible Exchangeable Class C Preferred Stock, Series 2 ("Series 2 Preferred") provide that whenever dividends on the Series 2 Preferred are in arrears
and unpaid in an amount equal to at least six quarterly dividends: (a) the number of members of the Board of Directors of the Company shall be increased by two effective as of
the time of election of such directors; (b) the Company shall, upon the written request of the record holders of at least 10% of the shares of Series 2 Preferred, call a special
meeting of the Series 2 Preferred holders for the purpose of electing such two additional directors; (c) the Series 2 Preferred holders have the exclusive right to vote for and
elect such two additional directors; and (d) the term of office of such directors will terminate immediately upon the termination of the right of the Series 2 Preferred holders
to vote for such two additional directors, subject to the requirements of Delaware law. The Series 2 Preferred holders have the right to remove without cause at any time and
replace either of the two directors that the Series 2 Preferred holders have elected.

Approval of each nominee for election to the Board of Directors will require the affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast by the holders of the voting securities of the
Company, voting together as one class.

-2-

The following sets forth certain information regarding the nominees and all other directors whose term will continue after the Annual Meeting.Nominees:

Jack E. Golsen, age 75. Mr. Golsen first became a director in 1969. His term will expire in 2004. Mr. Golsen, the founder of the Company, is Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and has served in that capacity since the inception of the Company in 1969.
During 1996, he was inducted into the Oklahoma Commerce and Industry Hall of Honor as one of Oklahoma's leading industrialists. Mr. Golsen has a
Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Mexico. Mr. Golsen is a Trustee of Oklahoma City University.

 
Horace G. Rhodes, age 76. Mr. Rhodes first became a director in 1996. His term will expire in 2004. Mr. Rhodes is the Chairman of the law firm of
Kerr, Irvine, Rhodes & Ables and has served in such capacity and has practiced law for more than five years. Since 1972 until 2001, he served as
Executive Vice President and General Counsel for the Association of Oklahoma Life Insurance Companies and since 1982 served as Executive Vice
President and General Counsel for the Oklahoma Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association. Mr. Rhodes received his undergraduate and law degrees
from the University of Oklahoma.

 
Charles A. Burtch, age 69. Mr. Burtch first became a director in 1999. His term will expire in 2004. Mr. Burtch was formerly Executive Vice-President
and West Division Manager of BankAmerica, where he managed BankAmerica's asset-based lending division for the western third of the United States. He
retired in 1998 and has since been engaged as a private investor. Mr. Burtch is a graduate of Arizona State University.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION
OF THE THREE NOMINEES AS DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Continuing Directors:

Raymond B. Ackerman, age 81. Mr. Ackerman first became a director in 1993. His term will expire in 2005. From 1972 until his retirement in 1992, Mr.
Ackerman served as Chairman of the Board and President of Ackerman McQueen, Inc., the largest advertising and public relations firm headquartered in
Oklahoma. He currently serves as Chairman Emeritus of the company. He retired as a Rear Admiral in the United States Naval Reserve. He is a graduate
of Oklahoma City University, and in 1996, was awarded an honorary doctorate from the school. He was elected to the Oklahoma Hall of Fame in 1993.

 
Bernard G. Ille, age 77. Mr. Ille first became a director in 1971. His term will expire in 2005. Mr. Ille served as President and Chief Executive
Officer of First Life Assurance Company from May 1988, until it was acquired by another company in March 1994. Prior to joining First Life, he served
as President of United Founders Life Insurance Company. He is a director of Landmark Land Company, Inc., which was the parent company of First Life.
He is also a director for Quail Creek Bank, N.A, located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. Mr. Ille is currently President of BML Consultants and a private
investor. He is a graduate of the University of Oklahoma.

 
Donald W. Munson, age 71. Mr. Munson first became a director in 1997. His term will expire in 2005. From January 1988, until his retirement in August
1992, Mr. Munson served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Lennox Industries. Prior to his election as President and Chief Operating Officer
of Lennox Industries, he served as Executive Vice President of Lennox Industries' Division Operations, President of Lennox Canada and Managing
Director of Lennox
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Industries' European Operations. Prior to joining Lennox Industries, Mr. Munson served in various capacities with the Howden Group, a company located
in England, including serving as the managing director of various companies within the Howden Group, and served as Vice President Europe for The Trane
Company. He is currently a consultant and international distributor for the Ducane Company, an equipment manufacturer. Mr. Munson is also currently
serving as a member of the Board of Directors of MultiClima SA, a French manufacturer of air conditioning - heating equipment, which the Company has
an option to acquire. Mr. Munson is a resident of England. He has degrees in mechanical engineering and business administration from the University of
Minnesota.

 
Tony M. Shelby, age 62. Mr. Shelby first became a director in 1971. His term will expire in 2005. Mr. Shelby, a certified public accountant, is
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, a position he has held for more than five years. Prior to becoming Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, he served as Chief Financial Officer of a subsidiary of the Company and was with the accounting
firm of Arthur Young & Co., a predecessor to Ernst & Young LLP. Mr. Shelby is a graduate of Oklahoma City University.

 
Barry H. Golsen, J.D., age 53. Mr. Golsen first became a director in 1981. His term will expire in 2006. Mr. Golsen was elected President of the
Company in 2004. Mr. Golsen has served as Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company since August 1994, and for more than five years has been the
President of the Company's Climate Control Business. Mr. Golsen has both his undergraduate and law degrees from the University of Oklahoma.

 
David R. Goss, age 63. Mr. Goss first became a director in 1971. His term will expire in 2006. Mr. Goss, a certified public accountant, is Executive
Vice President of Operations of the Company and has served in substantially the same capacity for more than five years. Mr. Goss is a graduate of
Rutgers University.

 
Robert C. Brown, M.D., age 73. Dr. Brown first became a director in 1969. His term will expire in 2006. Dr. Brown has practiced medicine for many
years and is Vice President and Treasurer of Plaza Medical Group, P.C. Dr. Brown is a graduate of Tufts University and received his medical degree
from Tufts University.

Directors elected by the holders of Series 2 Preferred:

Grant J. Donovan, age 47. Mr. Donovan first became a director in 2002. Mr. Donovan is President and founder of Galehead, Inc. a company specializing
on the collections of accounts receivable in the international maritime trade business. Prior to forming Galehead, Inc., Mr. Donovan was a partner in



a real estate development firm specializing in revitalizing functionally obsolete industrial buildings. Mr. Donovan received his MBA from Stanford
University and his undergraduate degree in Civil Engineering from the University of Vermont. He currently is on the board of directors of
EngenderHealth, a 50 year old international aid organization focused on improving women's healthcare.

 
Dr. N. Allen Ford, age 61. Dr. Ford first became a director in 2002. Dr. Ford joined the University of Kansas in 1976. He received his Ph.D. in
Accounting from the University of Arkansas. Dr. Ford's teaching and research duties focus mainly on taxation. At the University of Kansas, Professor
Ford has won several teaching awards and is the Larry D. Horner/KPMG Peat Marwick Distinguished Professor of Accounting. Dr. Ford teaches the
following courses in taxation: individual, corporate, partnership, S corporation, gift and estate tax. He is active in professional organizations such
as the American Taxation Association and the American Accounting Association.
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Board Independence The Board of Directors has determined that each of Messrs. Rhodes, Burtch, Ackerman, Ille, Munson, Donovan and Ford is an "independent director" in accordance
with the current listing standards of the American Stock Exchange (the "AMEX"). 

Certain Committees and Meetings of the Board of Directors The Board of Directors of the Company held five meetings in 2003. During 2003, no director attended fewer than 75% of
the aggregate of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and the total number of meetings held by all committees of the Board of Directors on which he served,
except for Mr. Goss who attended 60% of such meetings. Although the Company does not currently have a policy with respect to the attendance of its directors at the Annual
Meeting, the Company encourages each of its directors to attend whenever possible. A majority of the directors attended the Company's 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Company has an Executive Salary Review Committee and an Audit Committee. The Company does not have a nominating committee. The Company's Executive Salary Review Committee has
the authority to set the compensation of all officers of the Company. The members of the Executive Salary Review Committee are the following non-employee directors: Dr. Brown and
Mr. Ille. During 2003, the Executive Salary Review Committee had three meetings. Because Dr. Brown is the brother in law of Jack E. Golsen, Dr. Brown is not considered to be
"independent" under the AMEX rules, which were adopted by the AMEX as of December 1, 2003. It is anticipated that the composition of the Executive Salary Review Committee will be
restructured to ensure that the members of the committee are independent in accordance with the applicable AMEX rules.The Company's Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors
in monitoring the integrity of the financial statement of the Company, the independent auditor's qualifications and inde pendence, the performance of the Company's internal audit
function and independent auditor, and the Company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. In carrying out these purposes, the Audit Committee, among other things:

appoints, evaluates, and approves the compensation of, the Company's independent auditor;

pre-approves all auditing services and permitted non-audit services;

annually considers the qualifications and independence of the independent auditors

reviews recommendations of independent auditors concerning the Company's accounting principles, internal controls and accounting procedures and practices;

reviews and approves the scope of the annual audit;

reviews and discusses with the independent auditors the audited financial statements; and

perform such other duties as set forth in the Audit Committee Charter

The members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Ille, Burtch, Rhodes, and Ackerman. The Board has determined that each member of the Audit Committee is independent, as defined in
the current listing standards of the AMEX and Section 10A-3 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. During 2003, the Audit Committee had seven meetings. The Audit Committee
operates under a written charter, which was amended in 2003. The charter is attached as Exhibit "B" to this Proxy Statement.

Nominations of Directors Our Board of Directors does not have a standing nominating committee. The Board believes that the Company is best served by having all of its independent
directors serve in the capacity of a nominating
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committee. Accordingly, each director nominee must be selected or recommended for the Board's nomination by a majority of the independent directors of the Board. Upon
recommendation by a majority of the independent directors, all of our directors participate in the consideration of director nominees. In considering candidates for directorship,
the independent directors consider the entirety of each candidate's credentials, but do not have any specific minimum qualifications that must be met by a candidate in order to
be recommended as a nominee.

In March 2002, the holders of the Company's Series 2 Preferred elected Dr. Allen Ford and Mr. Grant Donovan to serve as members of the Company's Board of Directors pursuant to
the terms of the Series 2 Preferred. 

The By-laws of the Company provide that only persons nominated by or at the direction of: (a) the Board of Directors of the Company, or (b) any stockholder of the Company
entitled to vote for the election of the directors that complies with certain notice procedures, shall be eligible for election as a director of the Company. In accordance with
our By-laws, the Board of Directors will consider director nominations submitted by a stockholder if the stockholder gives written notice of the proposed nomination to the
Secretary of the Company at the Company's principal executive office not less than 50 days prior to the date of the meeting of stockholders to elect directors; except, if less
than 60 days' notice or prior disclosure of the date of such meeting is given to the stockholders, then written notice by the stockholder must be received by the Secretary of the
Company not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the day on which such notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or such p ublic disclosure was made. In
addition, if the stockholder proposes to nominate any person, the stockholder's written notice to the Company must provide all information relating to such person that the
stockholder desires to nominate that is required to be disclosed in solicitation of proxies pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Communication with the Board of Directors and Directors Attendance at Annual Meetings The Company's Board of Directors believes that it is important for the Company to have a
process whereby its stockholders may send communications to the Board. Accordingly, stockholders who wish to communicate with the Board of Directors or a particular director may
do so by sending a letter to David Shear, Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary at 16 S. Pennsylvania Avenue, Oklahoma City, 73101. The mailing envelope must contain a
clear notation indicating that the enclosed letter is a "Stockholder-Board Communication" or "Stockholder-Director Communication." All such letters must identify the author as a
stockholder and clearly state whether the intended recipients are all members of the Board of Directors or only certain specified individual directors. Mr. Shear will make copies
of all such letters and circulate the m to the appropriate director or directors.

Code of Ethics The Company and all of its subsidiary companies have adopted a Statement of Policy Concerning Business Conduct applicable to their employees. In addition, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the principal accounting officer, and the controller of the Company and each of the Company's subsidiaries, or persons
performing similar functions, are subject to the Company's Code of Ethics. The Company's Statement of Policy Concerning Business Conduct and the Code of Ethics is available on
the Company's website at www.lsb-okc.com. The Company will post any amendments to these documents, as well as any waivers that are required to be disclosed pursuant to the rules
of either the Securities and Exchange Commission or the AMEX, on the Company's website. 

Compensation of Directors In 2003, the Company compensated eight non-employee directors $1,125 each for their services as directors on the Company's Board. All of the members of
the Company's Board of Directors also served on the Board of Directors of the Company's subsidiary, ThermaClime, Inc. (except Messrs. Donovan and Ford) and received additional
fees of $3,375 each for such service. The non-
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employee directors of the Company also received $500 for every meeting of the Board of Directors attended during 2003. 

Mr. Ackerman received an additional $20,000 for his services on the Audit and Public Relations and Marketing Committees in 2003. Mr. Ille received an additional $20,000 for his
services on the Audit, Public Relations and Marketing, and Executive Salary Review Committees in 2003. Messrs. Burtch and Rhodes received an additional $20,000 each for their
services on the Audit Committee in 2003. Dr. Brown received an additional $20,000 for his services on the Executive Salary Review Committees in 2003. In addition to compensation
received by him as a director, Mr. Munson was paid $39,072 for consulting services in connection with developing the Company's European business.

Directors of the Company that are not employees of the Company are eligible to receive options to purchase the Company's Common Stock under the 1993 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan and the Outside Directors Stock Purchase Plan. The Company did not grant options under these plans during 2003, 2002, and 2001.

Audit Committee Report The Audit Committee oversees the Company's financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors. Management has the primary responsibility for
the financial statements and the reporting process, including the system of internal control. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Committee reviewed the audited
financial statements in the Annual Report with management, including a discussion of the quality, not just the acceptability, of the accounting principles; the reasonableness of
significant judgments; and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements.

The Committee reviewed with the independent auditors, who are responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited financial statements with generally
accepted accounting principles, their judgments as to the quality, not just the acceptability, of the Company's accounting principles and such other matters as are required to be
discussed with the committee under generally accepted auditing standards (including Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61). In addition, the Committee has discussed with the
independent auditors the auditors' independence from management and the Company, and has received and reviewed the written disclosures and the letter from the independent
auditors required by the Independence Standards Board (including Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1), and considered the compatibility of nonaudit services with the
auditors' independence. 

The Committee discussed with the Company's internal and independent auditors the overall scope and plans for their respective audits. The Committee meets with the internal and
independent auditors, with and without management present, to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of the Company's internal control, and the overall
quality of the Company's financial reporting. The Committee held seven meetings during 2003.

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Committee recommended to the Board of Directors (and the Board has approved) that the audited financial
statements be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Committee appointed
Ernst & Young LLP as the Company's independent auditors for 2004.

Bernard G. Ille (Chairman) 
Horace G. Rhodes
Charles A. Burtch
Raymond B. Ackerman

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Company's filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
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as amended, that might incorporate by reference previous or future filings, including this Proxy Statement, in whole or in part, the foregoing report of the Audit Committee and
any statements regarding the independence of the Audit Committee members shall not be incorporated by reference into any such filings.

Fees Paid to Independent Auditors

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Ernst & Young LLP for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002, for the reviews of the financial statements included in the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for those fiscal years, and for review of documents filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission for those fiscal years were approximately $555,750 and $482,900, respectively. 

Audit-Related Fees

Ernst & Young LLP billed the Company $32,000 and $42,230 during 2003 and 2002, respectively, for audit-related services, which included benefit plan audit and accounting
consultations.



Tax Fees

Ernst & Young LLP billed $94,000 and $93,140 during 2003 and 2002, respectively, for tax services to the Company, which included tax return review and preparation and tax
consultations and planning. 

All Other Fees

The Company did not engage its accountants to provide any other services for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Engagement of the Independent Auditor

The Audit Committee is responsible for approving all engagements with Ernst & Young LLP to perform audit or non-audit services for us prior to us engaging Ernst & Young LLP to
provide those services. All of the services under the headings Audit-Related Fees, Tax Fees, and All Other Fees were approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to paragraph (c)(7)
(i)(C) of Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X of the Exchange Act. The Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors has considered whether Ernst & Young LLP's provision of the
services described above for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, is compatible with maintaining its independence. 

Audit Committee's Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures All audit and non-audit services that may be provided by our principal accountant, Ernst & Young LLP to the Company shall
require pre-approval by the Audit Committee. Further, Ernst & Young LLP shall not provide those services specifically prohibited by the Securities and Exchange Commission or any
other service that the Public Company Oversight Board determines, by regulation, is impermissible.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners The following table sets forth certain information as of June7, 2004, regarding the ownership of the Company's voting Common Stock
and voting Preferred Stock by (a) each person (including any "group" as used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Act of 1934, as amended) that the Company knows to be
beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company's voting Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock. A person is deemed to be the beneficial owner of shares of the Company which he
or she could acquire within 60 days of June 7, 2004.
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Name and Address 
of

Beneficial Owner

 
Title
of

Class

 Amounts 
of Shares

Beneficially
owned (1)

 
Percent

of
Class+

Jack E. Golsen andmembers of his family (2)  Common
Voting Preferred

 4,781,195
1,020,000

(3
(4

)
)

(5
(6

) 
)

(6) 33.0
99.9

%
%

             
Kent C. McCarthy & affiliates (7)  Common  2,387,785 (7 ) (11 )   17.0

%

             
Paul J. Denby (8)  Common  1,031,388 (8 )     7.9 %

             
James W. Sight (9)  Common  864,478 (9 )     6.7 %

             
Jay R. Petschek, Steven Major, & affiliates (10)  

Common
 

743,600 (10 )
    

5.8 %

             

+ Because of the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission as to the method of determining the amount of shares an individual or entity may own beneficially, the
amount shown for an individual may include shares also considered beneficially owned by others. Any shares of stock which a person does not own, but which he or she has the right
to acquire within 60 days of June 7, 2004, are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of outstanding stock of the class owned by such person but are
not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of the class owned by any other person.

(1) The Company based the information with respect to beneficial ownership on information furnished by the above-named individuals or entities or contained in filings made with
the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Company's records.

(2) Includes Jack E. Golsen and the following members of his family: wife, Sylvia H. Golsen; son, Barry H. Golsen (a Director, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, and
President of the Company and the Climate Control Business of the Company); son, Steven J. Golsen (executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company); and daughter, Linda
F. Rappaport. The address of Jack E. Golsen, Sylvia H. Golsen, Barry H. Golsen, and Linda F. Rappaport is 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73107; and Steven
J. Golsen's address is 7300 SW 44th Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73179.

(3) Includes (a) the following shares over which Jack E. Golsen ("J. Golsen") has the sole voting and dispositive power: (i) 40,000 shares that he owns of record, (ii) 4,000
shares that he has the right to acquire upon conversion of a promissory note, (iii) 133,333 shares that he has the right to acquire upon the conversion of 4,000 shares of the
Company's Series B 12% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series B Preferred") owned of record by a trust, of which he is the sole trustee, (iv) 69,029 shares owned of
record by a trust, of which he is the sole trustee, and (v) 265,000 shares that he has the right to acquire within the next 60 days under the Company's stock option plans; (b)
571,290 shares owned of record by Sylvia H. Golsen, and 284,915 shares owned of record by a trust, of which Sylvia H. Golsen is the sole trustee, over which she and her husband,
J. Golsen share voting and dispositive power; (c) 246,616 shares over which Barry H. Golsen ("B. Golsen") has the sole voting and dispositive power, 533 shares owned of record by
B. Golsen's wife, over which he shares the voting and dispositive power, and 163,000 shares that he has the right to acquire within the next 60 days under the Company's stock
option plans; (d) 206,987 shares over which Steven J. Golsen ("S. Golsen") has the sole voting and dispositive power

-9-

and 108,000 shares that he has the right to acquire within the next 60 days under the Company's stock option plans; (e) 213,806 shares held in trust for the grandchildren and
great grandchild of J. Golsen and Sylvia H. Golsen of which B. Golsen, S. Golsen and Linda F. Rappaport ("L. Rappaport") jointly share voting and dispositive power; (f) 82,552
shares owned of record by L. Rappaport over which she has sole voting and dispositive power;(g) 1,306,199 shares owned of record by SBL Corporation ("SBL"), 39,177 shares that
SBL has the right to acquire upon conversion of 9,050 shares of the Company's non-voting $3.25 Convertible Exchangeable Class C Preferred Stock, Series 2 (the "Series 2
Preferred"), 400,000 shares that SBL has the right to acquire upon conversion of 12,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of record by SBL, and 250,000 shares that SBL has the
right to acquire upon conversion of 1,000,000 shares of the Company's Series D Preferred owned of record by SBL and (h ) 88,100 shares owned of record by Golsen Petroleum
Corporation ("GPC"), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBL, 133,333 shares that GPC has the right to acquire upon conversion of 4,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of
record by GPC and 175,325 shares that GPC has the right to acquire upon conversion of 40,500 shares of Series 2 Preferred owned of record by GPC. 

Each share of Series D Preferred has, among other things, .875 votes and the right to vote as a single class with the Series B Preferred and the Common Stock; cumulative
dividends at the rate of 6% per annum; and is convertible into the Common Stock on the basis of four shares of Series D Preferred into one share of Common Stock. Dividends on the
Series D Preferred will be paid only after accrued and unpaid dividends are paid on the Series 2 Preferred. As of May 31, 2004, the amount of the accrued and unpaid dividends on
the Series D Preferred was $120,000.

SBL is wholly-owned by Sylvia H. Golsen (40% owner), B. Golsen (20% owner), S. Golsen (20% owner), and L. Rappaport (20% owner) and, as a result, SBL, J. Golsen, Sylvia H.
Golsen, B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport share the voting and dispositive power of the shares beneficially owned by SBL. SBL's address is 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue,
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73107. 

(4) Includes: (a) 4,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of record by a trust, of which J. Golsen is the sole trustee, over which he has the sole voting and dispositive power;
(b) 12,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of record by SBL; (c) 4,000 shares Series B Preferred owned of record by SBL's wholly-owned subsidiary, GPC, over which SBL, J.
Golsen, Sylvia H. Golsen, B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport share the voting and dispositive power and (d) 1,000,000 shares of Series D Preferred owned of record by SBL.

(5) Does not include 71,850 shares of Common Stock that L. Rappaport's husband owns of record and 185,000 shares which he has the right to acquire within the next 60 days under
the Company's stock option plans, all of which L. Rappaport disclaims beneficial ownership. Does not include 256,120 shares of Common Stock owned of record by certain trusts for
the benefit of B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport over which B. Golsen, S. Golsen and L. Rappaport have no voting or dispositive power. Heidi Brown Shear, an officer of the
Company and the niece of J. Golsen, is the Trustee of each of these trusts.

(6) J. Golsen disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares that B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport each have the sole voting and investment power over as noted in footnote
(3) above. B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares that J. Golsen has the sole voting and investment power over as noted in footnotes
(3) and (4) and the shares owned of record by Sylvia H. Golsen. Sylvia H. Golsen disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares that J. Golsen has the sole voting and dispositive
power over as noted in footnotes (3) and (4) above.
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(7) Kent C. McCarthy, manager of Jayhawk Capital Management, L.L.C. ("Jayhawk"), a Delaware limited liability company and investment advisor, is deemed to beneficially own
2,387,785 shares of the Company's Common Stock (which includes 1,164,285 shares of Common Stock receivable upon conversion of 268,950 shares of Series 2 Preferred and 112,500
shares of Common Stock that may be acquired upon exercise of warrants). This number of shares includes the shares Mr. McCarthy personally owns, as well as the shares he controls
as manager and sole member of Jayhawk. As manager and sole member of Jayhawk, Mr. McCarthy has sole voting and dispositive power over the Common Stock beneficially owned by
Jayhawk. Jayhawk is deemed to have beneficial ownership of 2,113,755 shares of the Company's Common Stock (which includes 1,061,255 shares of Common Stock receivable upon
conversion of 245,150 shares of Series 2 Preferred and 112,500 shares of Common Stock that may be acquired upon exercise of warrants), all of which shares are held in portfolios
of (a) Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P. ("Jayhawk Institutional"), a Delaware limited partnership, (1,743,192 shares of Common Stock which includes 690,692 shares of Common
Stock receivable upon conversion of 159,550 shares of Series 2 Preferred and 112,500 shares of Common Stock that may be acquired upon exercise of warrants) and (b) Jayhawk
Investments, L.P. ("Jayhawk Investments"), a Delaware limited partnership, (370,562 shares of Common Stock receivable upon conversion of 85,600 shares of Series 2 Preferred).
Jayhawk is the general partner and manager of Jayhawk Institutional and Jayhawk Investments and, as such, has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares. Mr. McCarthy
disclaims beneficial ownership of all such shares other than his personal holdings. Mr. McCarthy's address is 8201 Mission Road, Suite 110, Prairie Village, Kansas 66208. See
"Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions."

(8) Paul J. Denby advised the Company that he has voting and dispositive power over 1,031,388 shares of Common Stock (which includes 230,688 shares of Common Stock receivable
upon conversion of 53,400 shares of Series 2 Preferred). This number of shares includes 43,704 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Denby's spouse over which Mr. Denby shares voting
and dispositive power. Mr. Denby's address is 4613 Redwood Court, Irving, Texas 75038.

(9) James W. Sight has sole voting and dispositive power over 864,478 shares of Common Stock (which includes 175,325 shares of Common Stock receivable upon conversion of 40,500
shares of Series 2 Preferred). Mr. Sight's address is 8500 College Boulevard, Overland Park, Kansas 66210.

(10) Jay R. Petschek, as a controlling person of Corsair Management, is deemed to beneficially own 743,600 shares, comprised of 15,000 shares Mr. Petschek owns personally or
through separate accounts managed by him, and 728,600 shares beneficially owned by Corsair Management. Steven Major, as a controlling person of Corsair Management, is deemed to
beneficially own 743,600 shares, comprised of 15,000 shares beneficially owned by him, and 728,600 shares owned by Corsair Management. Mr. Petschek has sole voting and
dispositive power over the 15,000 shares owned by him or through accounts managed by him. Mr. Major and Mr. Petschek share voting and dispositive power over the 728,600 shares
beneficially owned by Corsair Management. Corsair Management beneficially owns 19,650 shares of Common Stock held in separate accounts managed by it, and, as the investment
manager, is deemed to beneficially own 708,950 shares of Common Stock held in the portfolios of (a) Corsair Capital Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, (440,256
shares of Common Stock), (b) Corsair Long Short International, Ltd., a Cayman Islands entity, (40,000 shares of Common Stock), (c) Corsair Select, L.P., a Delaware limited
partnership, (190,850 shares of Common Stock), (d) Corsair Capital Partners 100, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, (19,636 shares of Common Stock), and (e) Corsair Capital
Investors, Ltd, a Cayman Islands entity, (18,208 shares of Common Stock). Mr. Petschek, Mr. Major, and Corsair Management have shared voting and dispositive power over the 19,650



shares held in separate accounts of Corsair Management. Mr. Petschek, Mr. Major, and Corsair Management share voting and dispositive power with each respective entity listed
above. The
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principal business address for each of Corsair Capital, Corsair Select, Corsair 100, Corsair Management, Mr. Petschek and Mr. Major is 350 Madison Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, New
York 10017. The principal business address for each of Corsair International and Corsair Investors is c/o M&C Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, 113 South
Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. Information set forth in this footnote is based upon Schedule 13-D filed on January 15, 2004 by
Corsair Capital, Corsair Select, Corsair 100, Corsair Management, Corsair International, Corsair Investors, Mr. Petschek and Mr. Major.

(11) Effective March 25, 2003, the Company completed a private placement to Jayhawk Institutional of 450,000 shares of its common stock and a five year warrant to purchase up to
112,500 share of its common stock at an exercise price of $3.49 per share, subject to anti-dilution adjustments under certain conditions. The total price paid by Jayhawk
Institutional to the Company for the shares of common stock and the warrant was $1,570,500. Jayhawk has certain registration rights.

Security Ownership of Management The following table sets forth certain information obtained from the directors of the Company and the directors and executive officers of the
Company as a group as to their beneficial ownership of the Company's voting Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock as of June 7, 2004.

Name of Beneficial Owner

 
Title of
Class

 Amount of
Shares

Beneficially 
Owned (1)

 
Percent of
Class+

Raymond B. Ackerman  Common  21,000 (2) * 
         
Robert C. Brown, M.D.  Common  208,329 (3) 1.6 %

         
Charles A. Burtch  Common  15,000 (4) * 
         
Grant J. Donovan  Common  44,169 (5) * 
         
Dr. N. Allen Ford  Common  432 (6) * 
         
Barry H. Golsen  Common 

Voting Preferred
 3,008,889

1,016,000
(7)
 (7)

 21.5
99.5

%
%

         
Jack E. Golsen  Common

Voting Preferred
 3,759,701

1,020,000
(8)
 (8)

 26.5
99.9

%
%

         
David R. Goss  Common  303,272 (9) 2.3 %

         
Bernard G. Ille  Common  45,000 (10) * 
         
Donald W. Munson  Common  16,432 (11) * 
         
Horace G. Rhodes  Common  20,000 (12) * 
         
Tony M. Shelby  Common  354,729 (13) 2.7 %

         
David M. Shear  Common  164,810 (14) 1.3 %

         
Directors and Executive Officers as a group
number (14 persons)

 
Common

Voting Preferred

 
5,803,277
1,020,000

(15)
 

38.1
99.9

%
%

* Less than 1%.
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+ See footnote + to the table under "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners." 

(1) The Company based the information, with respect to beneficial ownership, on information furnished by each director or officer, contained in filings made with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, or contained in the Company's records.

(2) This amount includes the following shares over which Mr. Ackerman shares voting and dispositive power: (a) 2,000 shares held by Mr. Ackerman's trust, and (b) 4,000 shares
held by the trust of Mr. Ackerman's wife. The remaining 15,000 shares of Common Stock included herein are shares that Mr. Ackerman may acquire pursuant to currently exercisable
non-qualified stock options granted to him by the Company.

(3) The amount shown includes 15,000 shares of Common Stock that Dr. Brown may acquire pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options granted to him by the
Company. The shares, with respect to which Dr. Brown shares the voting and dispositive power, consists of 122,516 shares owned by Dr. Brown's wife, 50,727 shares owned by Robert
C. Brown, M.D., Inc., a corporation wholly-owned by Dr. Brown, and 20,086 shares held by the Robert C. Brown M.D., Inc. Employee Profit Sharing Plan, of which Dr. Brown serves as
the trustee. The amount shown does not include 46,907 shares owned directly, or through trusts, by the children of Dr. Brown and the son-in-law of Dr. Brown, David M. Shear, all
of which Dr. Brown disclaims beneficial ownership.

(4) Mr. Burtch has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which may be acquired by Mr. Burtch pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options granted
to him by the Company.

(5) Mr. Donovan has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 13,000 shares of Common Stock and 31,169 shares of Common Stock that Mr. Donovan has the
right to acquire upon conversion of 7,200 shares of Series 2 Preferred.

(6) Dr. Ford has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares that Dr. Ford has the right to acquire upon conversion of 100 shares of Series 2 Preferred. 

(7) See footnotes (3), (4), and (6) of the table under "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" for a description of the amount and nature of the shares beneficially
owned by B. Golsen.

(8) See footnotes (3), (4), and (6) of the table under "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" for a description of the amount and nature of the shares beneficially
owned by J. Golsen.

(9) Mr. Goss has the sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 191,000 shares that Mr. Goss has the right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to options
granted under the Company's stock option plans. 

(10) The amount includes (a) 15,000 shares that Mr. Ille may purchase pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options, over which Mr. Ille has the sole voting and
dispositive power, and (b) 20,000 shares owned of record by Mr. Ille's wife, voting and dispositive power of which are shared by Mr. Ille and his wife.

(11) Mr. Munson has the sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include (a) 432 shares of Common Stock that Mr. Munson has the right to acquire upon conversion
of 100 shares of Series 2 Preferred and (b) 15,000 shares that Mr. Munson may purchase pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options.
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(12) Mr. Rhodes has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 15,000 shares that may be acquired by Mr. Rhodes pursuant to currently exercisable non-
qualified stock options granted to him by the Company.

(13) Mr. Shelby has the sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 191,000 shares that Mr. Shelby has the right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to
options granted under the Company's stock option plans and 15,584 shares that Mr. Shelby has the right to acquire upon conversion of 3,600 shares of Series 2 Preferred.

(14) Mr. Shear has the sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 155,544 shares that Mr. Shear has the right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to
options granted under the Company's stock option plans. This amount includes 14,456 shares that Mr. Shear acquired upon the exercise in January 2004 of options granted under the
Company's stock option plans. This amount does not include, and Mr. Shear disclaims beneficial ownership of, the shares beneficially owned by Mr. Shear's wife, which consist of
16,240 share over which she has the sole voting and dispositive power, 18,760 shares that she has the right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to options granted under the
Company's stock option plans, and 279,108 shares, the beneficial ownership of which is disclaimed by her, that are held by trusts of which she is the trustee.

(15) The amount shown includes 1,225,544 shares of Common Stock that executive officers, directors, or entities controlled by executive officers and directors of the Company have
the right to acquire within 60 days.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance Based solely on a review of copies of the Forms 3, 4 and 5 and amendments thereto furnished to the Company with respect to
2003, or written representations that no such reports were required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Company believes that during 2003 all directors
and officers of the Company and beneficial owners of more than 10% of any class of equity securities of the Company registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act filed
their required Forms 3, 4, or 5, as required by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, on a timely basis, except for Jack E. Golsen filed one late Form
4 to report two transactions.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions Northwest Internal Medicine Associates ("Northwest"), a division of Plaza Medical Group, P.C., has an agreement with the Company to



perform medical examinations of the management and supervisory personnel of the Company and its subsidiaries. Under such agreement, Northwest is paid $2,000 a month to perform
all such examinations. Dr. Brown (a director of the Company) is Vice President and Treasurer of Plaza Medical Group, P.C. Dr. Brown is also paid $2,000 per month to perform
medical director services for the Company's health plan.

LSB Chemical Corp., a subsidiary of the Company ("LSB Chemical"), issued promissory notes totaling approximately $700,000 to certain former owners of EDC in connection with the
payment of a portion of the purchase price of EDC. Jack E. Golsen guaranteed LSB Chemical's payment obligation under the promissory notes. The unpaid balance of these notes at
May 31, 2004, was $300,000. In 2001, a subsidiary of the Company borrowed from SBL Corporation, a corporation owned by the immediate family of Jack E. Golsen (including Barry H.
Golsen), the principal sum of $1,350,000 (the "Note"). The subsidiary issued to SBL's lender a limited guaranty of the lender's loan to SBL, and pledged to SBL's lender certain
shares of the Company's Common Stock that were owned by the subsidiary. Thereafter, the Company, the subsidiary, and SBL entered into an agreement whereby the Company issued to
SBL 1,000,000 shares of the Company's Series D Preferred. As a result, SBL (a) reduced the principal amount of the Prime Note by $1,000,000, (b) caused the subsidiary's limited
guaranty to be reduced to an amount not to exceed $350,000, and (c) caused the shares of the Company's Common Stock pledged by the subsidiary to SBL's lender to be reduced by
1,000,000 shares. In February 2003, SBL's lender terminated the subsidiary's limited guaranty and released all shares of Common Stock pledged by the
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subsidiary to secure the limited guaranty. At May 31, 2004, $50,000 remains outstanding under the Note which is payable on demand.

See footnote (11) to the table "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" regarding the Company's March 25, 2003 private placement to Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P. 

Family Relationships Jack E. Golsen is the father of Barry H. Golsen and the brother-in-law of Robert C. Brown, M.D. Robert C. Brown, M.D. is the uncle of Barry H. Golsen. David
M. Shear is the nephew by marriage to Jack E. Golsen and son-in-law of Robert C. Brown, M.D.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
AND OTHER INFORMATION

Executive Compensation The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the compensation of the Company's Chief Executive Officer and each of the Company's
other four most highly-paid executive officers (which includes the Vice Chairman of the Board who also serves as President and President of the Company's Climate Control
Business) for services to the Company and its subsidiaries. The table includes amounts paid for services rendered during 2003, plus any cash paid during 2003 for services
rendered in a prior year.

Summary Compensation Table

 
Annual Compensation

 Long-term
Compensation 

Awards

Name and Position

 

Year

 

Salary
($)

 

Bonus
($) (1)

 
Securities
Underlying

Stock
Options

Jack E. Golsen,
Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer

 2003
2002
2001

 477,400
477,400
477,400

 -
- -
- -

 -
- -
- -

         
Barry H. Golsen, 
Vice Chairman of the Board
of Directors, President, and
President of the Climate Control Business

 2003
2002
2001

 326,600
326,600
226,600

 85,000
85,000
60,000

 -
- -

20,000

         
David R. Goss,
Executive Vice President of
Operations

 2003
2002
2001

 209,577
190,500
190,500

 -
75,000
50,000

 -
- -

15,000

         
Tony M. Shelby,
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

 2003
2002
2001

 214,108
190,500
190,500

 -
85,000
100,000

 -
- -

15,000

         
David M. Shear,
Vice President and
General Counsel

 2003
2002
2001

 184,077
165,000
165,000

 -
50,000
50,000

 -
- -

15,000

(1) Bonuses are for services rendered for the prior fiscal year.
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Option Grants in 2003 There were no individual grants of stock options made to any of the named executive officers in the above Summary Compensation table during 2003.

Fiscal Year End Option Values

The following table sets forth information concerning the number and value of unexercised options held by each of the named executive officers during 2003 and the year-end value
of unexercised options. None of these officers exercised options during 2003.

   Number of 
Securities
 Underlying
 Unexercised 
Options at 
FY End (1)

 
Value of 

Unexercised In-
the-Money Options at Fiscal

Year
 End (1) (2)

 Name
 

Exercisable/Unexercisable
 

Exercisable/Unexercisable
Jack E. Golsen     265,500 / -   $ 1,348,388 / -

        
Barry H. Golsen   163,000 / 12,000  $ 810,905 / $ 42,382

        
David R. Goss   191,000 / 9,000  $ 722,825 / $ 32,850

        
Tony M. Shelby   191,000 / 9,000  $ 722,825 / $ 32,850

        
David M. Shear   170,000 / 9,000  $ 676,220 / $ 32,850

(1) The stock options granted under the Company's stock option plans become exercisable 20% after one year from date of grant, an additional 20% after two years, an additional
30% after three years, and the remaining 30% after four years.

(2) The values are based on the difference between the price of the Company's Common Stock on the American Stock Exchange at the close of trading on December 31, 2003 of $6.38
per share and the exercise price of such option. The actual value realized by a named executive officer on the exercise of these options depends on the market value of the
Company's Common Stock on the date of exercise.

Other Plans The Board of Directors has adopted an LSB Industries, Inc., Employee Savings Plan (the "401(k) Plan") for the employees (including executive officers) of the Company
and its subsidiaries, excluding certain (but not all) employees covered under union agreements. The 401(k) Plan is an employee contribution plan, and the Company and its
subsidiaries make no contributions (with limited matching exceptions at two certain locations) to the 401(k) Plan. The amount that an employee may contribute to the 401(k) Plan
equals a certain percentage of the employee's compensation, with the percentage based on the employee's income and certain other criteria as required under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Company or subsidiary deducts the amounts contributed to the 401(k) Plan from the employee's compensation each pay period, in accordance with the
employee's instructions, and pays the amount into the 401(k) Plan for the employee's benefit. The Summary Compensation Table set for th above includes any amount contributed and
deferred during the 2003, 2002, and 2001 fiscal years pursuant to the 401(k) Plan by the named executive officers of the Company.

The Company has a death benefit plan for certain key employees which is in the process of being revised. Under the existing plan, the designated beneficiary of an employee
covered by the plan will receive a monthly benefit for a period of 10
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years if the employee dies while in the employment of the Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The agreement with each employee provides, in addition to being
subject to other terms and conditions set forth in the agreement, that the Company may terminate the agreement as to any employee at anytime prior to the employee's death. The
Company has purchased life insurance on the life of each employee covered under the plan to provide, in large part, a source of funds for the Company's obligations under the
plan. The Company also will fund a portion of the benefits by investing the proceeds of such insurance policy received by the Company upon the employee's death. The Company is
the owner and sole beneficiary of the insurance policy, with the proceeds payable to the Company upon the death of the employee. The following table sets forth the amounts of
annual benefits payable to the designated beneficiary or beneficiaries of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above under the above-described
death benefits plan.

 
Name of Individual

 Amount of Annual
Payment

 Jack E. Golsen  $ 175,000

 Barry H. Golsen  $ 30,000

 David R. Goss  $ 35,000

 Tony M. Shelby  $ 35,000

D id M Sh $ N/A



 David M. Shear  $ N/A

In addition to the above-described plans, during 1991 the Company entered into a non-qualified arrangement with certain key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to
provide compensation to such individuals in the event that they are employed by the Company or a subsidiary of the Company at age 65. This arrangement is also in the process of
being revised. Under the plan, the employee will be eligible to receive for the life of such employee, a designated benefit as set forth in the plan. In addition, if prior to
attaining the age 65 the employee dies while in the employment of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company, the designated beneficiary of the employee will receive a monthly
benefit for a period of 10 years. The agreement with each employee provides, in addition to being subject to other terms and conditions set forth in the agreement, that the
Company may terminate the agreement as to any employee at any time prior to the employee's death. The Company has purchased in surance on the life of each employee covered under
the plan where the Company is the owner and sole beneficiary of the insurance policy, with the proceeds payable to the Company to provide a source of funds for the Company's
obligations under the plan. The Company may also fund a portion of the benefits by investing the proceeds of such insurance policies. Under the terms of the plan, if the employee
becomes disabled while in the employment of the Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the employee may request the Company to cash-in any life insurance on the
life of such employee purchased to fund the Company's obligations under the plan. Jack E. Golsen does not participate in the plan. The following table sets forth the amounts of
annual benefits payable to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above under such retirement plan.

 
Name of Individual

 Amount of Annual
Payment

 Barry H. Golsen  $ 17,480

 David R. Goss  $ 17,403

 Tony M. Shelby  $ 15,605

 David M. Shear  $ 17,822
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Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change in Control Arrangements

(a) Termination of Employment and Change in Control Agreements The Company has entered into severance agreements with Jack E. Golsen, Barry H. Golsen, Tony M. Shelby, David R.
Goss, David M. Shear, and certain other officers of the Company and subsidiaries of the Company.

Each severance agreement provides (among other things) that if, within 24 months after the occurrence of a change in control (as defined) of the Company, the Company terminates
the officer's employment other than for cause (as defined), or the officer terminates his employment for good reason (as defined), the Company must pay the officer an amount
equal to 2.9 times the officer's base amount (as defined). The phrase "base amount" means the average annual gross compensation paid by the Company to the officer and includable
in the officer's gross income during the period consisting of the most recent five year period immediately preceding the change in control. If the officer has been employed by
the Company for less than five years, the base amount is calculated with respect to the most recent number of taxable years ending before the change in control that the officer
worked for the Company.

The severance agreements provide that a "change in control" means a change in control of the Company of a nature that would require the filing of a Form 8-K with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and, in any event, would mean when: (a) any individual, firm, corporation, entity, or group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as mended) becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 30% or more of the combined voting power of the Company's outstanding voting securities having the
right to vote for the election of directors, except acquisitions by (i) any person, firm, corporation, entity, or group which, as of the date of the severance agreement, has that
ownership, or (ii) Jack E. Golsen, his wife; his children and the spouses of his children; his estate; executor or administrator of any estate, guardian or custodian for Jack E.
Golsen, his wife, his children, or the spouses of his children, any corporation, trust, partnership, or other entity of which Jack E. Golsen, his wife, children, or the spouses
of his children own at least 80% of the outstanding beneficial voting or equity interests, directly or indirectly, either by any one or more of the above-described persons,
entities, or estates; and certain affiliates and associates of any of the above-described persons, entities, or estates; (b) individuals who, as of the date of the severance
agreement, constitute the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Incumbent Board") and who cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the Board of Directors except that
any person becoming a director subsequent to the date of the severance agreement, whose election or nomination for election is approved by a majority of the Incumbent Board (with
certain limited exceptions), will constitute a member of the Incumbent Board; or (c) the sale by the Company of all or substantially all of its assets.

Except for the severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen, the termination of an officer's employment with the Company "for cause" means termination because of: (a) the mental or
physical disability from performing the officer's duties for a period of 120 consecutive days or one hundred eighty days (even though not consecutive) within a 360 day period;
(b) the conviction of a felony; (c) the embezzlement by the officer of Company assets resulting in substantial personal enrichment of the officer at the expense of the Company;
or (d) the willful failure (when not mentally or physically disabled) to follow a direct written order from the Company's Board of Directors within the reasonable scope of the
officer's duties performed during the 60 day period prior to the change in control. The definition of "Cause" contained in the severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen means
termination because of: (a) the conviction of Mr. Golsen of a felony invo lving moral turpitude after all appeals have been completed; or (b) if due to Mr. Golsen's serious,
willful, gross misconduct or willful, gross
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neglect of his duties has resulted in material damages to the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, provided that (i) no action or failure to act by Mr. Golsen will
constitute a reason for termination if he believed, in good faith, that such action or failure to act was in the Company's or its subsidiaries' best interest, and (ii) failure of
Mr. Golsen to perform his duties hereunder due to disability shall not be considered willful, gross misconduct or willful, gross negligence of his duties for any purpose.

The termination of an officer's employment with the Company for "good reason" means termination because of (a) the assignment to the officer of duties inconsistent with the
officer's position, authority, duties, or responsibilities during the 60 day period immediately preceding the change in control of the Company or any other action which results
in the diminishment of those duties, position, authority, or responsibilities; (b) the relocation of the officer; (c) any purported termination by the Company of the officer's
employment with the Company otherwise than as permitted by the severance agreement; or (d) in the event of a change in control of the Company, the failure of the successor or
parent company to agree, in form and substance satisfactory to the officer, to assume (as to a successor) or guarantee (as to a parent) the severance agreement as of no change in
control had occurred.

Except for the severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen, each severance agreement is effective until the earlier of: (a) three years after the date of the severance agreement, or
(b) the officer's normal retirement date from the Company; however, beginning on the first anniversary of the severance agreement and on each annual anniversary thereafter, the
term of the severance agreement automatically extends for an additional one-year period, unless the Company gives notice otherwise at least 60 days prior to the anniversary date.
The severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen is effective for a period of three years from the date of the severance agreement; except that, commencing on the date one year after
the date of such severance agreement and on each annual anniversary thereafter, the term of such severance agreement shall be automatically extended so as to terminate three
years from such renewal date, unless the Company gives notices otherwise at least one year prior to the renewal date. 

(b) Employment Agreement The Company has an employment agreement with Jack E. Golsen, the Chairman of the Board and President of the Company, which requires the Company to employ
Mr. Golsen as an executive officer of the Company. The current term of the employment agreement will expire March 21, 2005; however, pursuant to an amendment to the employment
agreement approved by the Board of Directors in 2002, the term will be automatically renewed for up to three additional three-year periods. The employment agreement may be
terminated by either party by written notice at least one year prior to the expiration of the then current term. Under the terms of such employment agreement, Mr. Golsen shall be
paid (a) an annual base salary at his 1995 base rate, as adjusted from time to time by the Executive Salary Review Committee, but such shall never be adjusted to an amount less
than Mr. Golsen's 1995 base salary, (b) an annual bonus in an amount as determined by the Executive Salary Review Committee, an d (c) receive from the Company certain other
fringe benefits. 

The employment agreement provides that Mr. Golsen's employment may not be terminated, except (a) upon conviction of a felony involving moral turpitude after all appeals have been
exhausted, (b) Mr. Golsen's serious, willful, gross misconduct or willful, gross negligence of duties resulting in material damage to the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a
whole, unless Mr. Golsen believed, in good faith, that such action or failure to act was in the Company's or its subsidiaries' best interest, and (c) Mr. Golsen's death. However,
no such termination under (a) or (b) above may occur unless and until the Company has delivered to Mr. Golsen a resolution duly adopted by an affirmative vote of three-fourths of
the entire membership of the Board of Directors at a meeting
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called for such purpose after reasonable notice given to Mr. Golsen finding, in good faith, that Mr. Golsen violated (a) or (b) above. 

If Mr. Golsen's employment is terminated in breach of the employment agreement, then he shall, in addition to his other rights and remedies, receive and the Company shall pay to
Mr. Golsen (a) in a lump sum cash payment, on the date of termination, a sum equal to the amount of Mr. Golsen's annual base salary at the time of such termination and the amount
of the last bonus paid to Mr. Golsen prior to such termination times the number of years remaining under the then current term of the employment agreement and (b) provide to Mr.
Golsen all of the fringe benefits that the Company was obligated to provide during his employment under the employment agreement for the remainder of the term of the employment
agreement. 

If there is a change in control (as defined in the severance agreement between Mr. Golsen and the Company) and within 24 months after such change in control Mr. Golsen is
terminated, other than for Cause (as defined in the severance agreement), then in such event, the severance agreement between Mr. Golsen and the Company shall be controlling.

In the event Mr. Golsen becomes disabled and is not able to perform his duties under the employment agreement as a result thereof for a period of 12 consecutive months within any
two year period, the Company shall pay Mr. Golsen his full salary for the remainder of the term of the employment agreement and thereafter 60% of such salary until Mr. Golsen's
death.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation No member of the Executive Salary Review Committee is, or ever has been, an officer or employee of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries. 

See "Compensation of Directors" for information concerning compensation paid to each non-employee director of the Company during 2003 for services as a director to the Company.
See "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" for information concerning compensation paid to Dr. Brown and an affiliate of Dr. Brown. See "Election of Directors - Certain
Committees and Meetings of the Board of Directors" as to anticipated changes in the composition of the Executive Salary Review Committee.

Report of Executive Salary Review Committee

General The Executive Salary Review Committee ("Committee") is presently comprised of Bernard G. Ille and Dr. Robert A. Brown, neither of whom is a current or former employee of
the Company; however, Dr. Brown is the brother-in-law of Jack E. Golsen. The Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the compensation paid to executive officers of
the Company. 

Compensation Policy for Executive Officers Although the Committee has not established specific quantitative compensation policies for executive officers of the Company, including
the Chief Executive Officer, the Committee reviews each executive officer's performance on behalf of the Company during the last preceding year in establishing the executive
officer's bonus for such year, if any, and any increase or decreases to such executive officers' compensation for the next year. The guiding principle of the Committee is based
on the following objectives: (a) to attract and retain qualified executives in a highly competitive environment who will play significant roles in achieving the Company's goals;
(b) to reward executives for strategic management and the long-term enhancement of stockholder value; (c) to create a performance-oriented environment that rewards performance
with respect to financial and operational goals of the Company; and, (d) motivate executives to protect the interests of the Company in all situations. The key elements of the
Company's executive compensation program have consisted of a base salary, bonus and stock options.
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As to the compensation (salary and bonus) paid or payable to executive officers, other than the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Executive Officer makes a recommendation to the
Committee. The Committee considers such recommendations. The Chief Executive Officer's recommendation with respect to base salary and the Committee's approval or disapproval of
such recommendation is primarily based on the objectives set forth above. Recommendations by the Chief Executive Officer of bonus compensation and the Committee's decision to
approve or disapprove such recommendations is closely tied to the individual's performance and the Company's financial performance. 



Jack E. Golsen has been Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its formation in 1969. In March, 1996, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Golsen,
which sets Mr. Golsen's salary at his 1995 base rate, as adjusted from time to time by the Committee. In determining any adjustments to Mr. Golsen's compensation, the Committee
takes into account the fact that Mr. Golsen continues the strategy of developing the Company through internal growth, acquisitions, redeployment of assets and personnel, the
complexity of issues required to be dealt with, and development of international markets. There were no increases in Mr. Golsen's annual salary for 2001, 2002 or 2003. 

Bonuses, if any, are paid to executive officers in arrears for performance during the previous fiscal year. The Committee considers the payment of bonuses to be consistent with
the goals set forth above. Bonuses were paid in 2003, 2002 and 2001. See "Executive Compensation." Bonuses have not been determined for 2003 performance.

The Company utilizes the granting of stock options to compensate executive officers of the Company. This practice is founded on the belief that stock options offer executive
officers a valuable incentive to achieve increased profitability of the Company in order to enhance stockholder value. There are no specific factors used to determine the number
of options granted or to the timing of such grants; however, certain criteria are considered such as length of service, level of responsibility, and the achievement of the
Company's earnings objectives. No stock options were granted to the Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers of the Company during 2003.

                                                            Members of the Committee:
                                                            Bernard G. Ille, Chairman
                                                            Robert C. Brown, M.D.

The foregoing report of the Executive Salary Review Committee shall not be considered incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this Proxy
Statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (collectively, the "Acts"), except to the extent that the Company specifically
incorporates this information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed to be soliciting material or to be filed under such Acts. 

Performance Graph. The following table compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total stockholder return of (a) the Company, (b) a composite index ("Peer Group")
comprised of a peer group of entities from two distinct industries which represent the Company's two primary lines of business (Climate Control and Chemical), and (c) the
American Stock Exchange Market Value Index ("AMEX MVI)." The table set forth below covers the period from year-end 1998 through year-end 2003.
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FISCAL YEAR ENDING

 12/31/1998 12/31/1999 12/31/2000 12/29/2001 12/31/2002 12/31/2003

LSB Industries, Inc.  100.00  42.57 73.80 78.72 84.78 193.17

PEER GROUP  100.00  90.92 88.25 93.92 86.49 112.97

AMEX MVI  100.00  124.37 123.14 117.47 112.78 153.50

Assumes $100 invested at year-end 1998 in the Company, the Peer Group, and the AMEX MVI, and the investment of dividends, if any.

The Peer Group was developed for the Company by CoreData and is comprised of certain companies that have Standard Industrial Classification ("SIC") codes which the Company
believes correspond to the Company's primary lines of business. The companies which comprise the Peer Group are listed on Exhibit "A" to this Proxy Statement. The Peer Group is
comprised of (a) climate control companies having SIC code 634 (general building materials) and (b) chemical companies having SIC codes 112 (agricultural chemicals) and 113
(specialty chemicals), and is provided for comparison to the Company's two primary lines of business, Climate Control and Chemical. The AMEX MVI line is provided because the
Company believes that those companies listed in the AMEX most closely resemble the size and composition of the Company. The Company has been advised that the cumulative total
return of each component company in the Peer Group has been weighted according to the respective company's stock market capitalization. In light of the Company's unique industry
diversification and current market capitalization, the Company believes that the Peer Group and AMEX MVI are appropriate for comparison to the Company.

-22-

The above Performance Graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this Proxy Statement into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (collectively, the "Acts"), except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this information by
reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed to be soliciting material or to be filed under such Acts.

PROPOSAL 2

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has appointed the firm of Ernst & Young LLP, certified public accountants ("Ernst & Young"), as the Company's auditors for 2004. Ernst & Young has served as
the Company's auditors for more than five years, including the fiscal year most recently completed. If the stockholders do not ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young, the Audit
Committee will reconsider the appointment.

In line with past practices, it is expected that one or more representatives of Ernst & Young will attend the Annual Meeting and will be available to respond to appropriate
questions or make a statement should they desire to do so.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" THE RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP.

OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Board of Directors knows of no other matters which may come before the Annual Meeting. If any other business properly comes before the
meeting, the persons named in the Proxy Card will vote with respect to that matter in accordance with their best judgment.

Pursuant to the By-laws of the Company, only such business shall be conducted at the Annual Meeting as shall have been brought before the meeting (a) by or at the direction of
the Board of Directors of the Company, or (b) by any stockholder of the Company who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting and who complies with the following notice
requirements. No business may be properly brought before the Annual Meeting by a stockholder unless the stockholder gives written notice to the Secretary of the Company of the
business to be presented at the Annual Meeting not less than 50 days prior to the date of the Annual Meeting (or in the event that less than 60 days notice, or public disclosure
of the date of the Annual Meeting, is given or made to stockholders, written notice by the stockholder must be received by the Secretary of the Company not later than the close
of business on the 10th day following the day on which notice of the date o f the meeting was mailed or public disclosure was made). The written notice must set forth: (a) a
brief description of the business desired to be presented before the Annual Meeting and reasons for conducting such business at the meeting; (b) the name and address, as they
appear on the Company's books, of the stockholder proposing such business; (c) the class and number of shares of the Company's voting stock beneficially owned by such
stockholder; and (d) any material interest of such stockholder in such business.
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A copy of the Company's 2003 Annual Report accompanies this Proxy Statement. Upon written request, the Company will send you, without charge, a copy of its Annual Report on
Form 10-K (without exhibits) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003, which the Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Copies of exhibits to the
Form 10-K are available, but a reasonable fee per page will be charged to the requesting stockholder. Stockholders may make requests in writing to Director - Communications
Department, c/o LSB Industries, Inc., 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue, Post Office Box 754, Oklahoma City, OK 73101.

                                                                                            LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
                                                                                            BY ORDER OF 
                                                                                            THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

                                                                                            David M. Shear
                                                                                            Secretary

June 24, 2004
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

-24-

Exhibit "A"



AAON INC
ACETO CORP
ADM TRONICS UNLIMITED
ADSERO CORP
AGRIUM INC
AGRONIX INC
ALCIDE CORP
AMCOL INTERNATIONAL CORP
AMERICAN SOIL TECH
AMERICAN STANDARD COS
AMERICAN STONE INDS
AMERICAN VANGUARD CORP
AMERON INTERNAT CORP
ARMSTRONG HOLDINGS INC
BALCHEM CORP
BERGER HOLDINGS INC LTD
BRADY CORPORATION CL A
BRASKEM SA
BUNGE LTD
BUTLER MANUFACTURING CO
CABOT CORP
CABOT MICROELECTRONICS
CAMBREX CORP
CARBO CERAMICS INC
CERADYNE INC
CFC INTERNAT INC CL CM
CGI HOLDING
CIBA SPECIALTY CHEM HLDG 
CONTINENTIAL MATERIALS CP 
CROMPTON CORPORATION
CROWN ENERGY 
CYANOTECH CORP
CYTEC INDUSTRIES INC
DANAHER CORP
DEMARCO ENERGY SYS 
DIATECT INTERNATL CORP
DICUT INC
DREW INDUSTRIES INC
DYNAMOTIVE ENERGY SYSTS
EDEN BIOSCIENCE CORP 
ELKCORP
ETYHL CORP
FERRO CORP
FLAMEMASTER CORP
FLEXIBLE SOLUTIONS INTL 
 

 GLOBAL ENERGY GROUP INC
GREEN DOLPHIN SYSTEMS
GREENSMART CORP
GRIFFON CORP
H.B. FULLER CO
HELIX BIOMEDIX
HERC PRODUCTS 
IGENE BIOTECH INC
IMC GLOBAL INC
IMPERIAL IND INC
INTERNACIONAL DE CERAMIC
INTERNAT ALUMINUM CORP 
INTERNAT BARRIER TECHNL
INTERNAT FLAVORS & FRAG 
IONATRON, INC.
JILIN CHEMICAL INDUSTRL
JOYSTAR INC
KYZEN CORP CL A
LANCER CORP
LESCO INC
LUBRIZOL CORP
MACDERMID INC
MACE SECURITY INTERNAT
MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIAL
MESTEK INC
METHANEX CORPORATION
MISSISSIPPI CHEMICAL CP
MONSANTO CO
NCI BUILDING SYSTEMS INC
NEVADA CHEMICAL INC
NO FIRE TECH
NORTHERN TECHNOLOGY
OIL-DRI CORP OF AMERICA
OM GROUP INC
OMNOVA SOLUTIONS INC
OWENS-CORNING
PENDFORD CORP 
PHOSPHATE RESOURCE PTNRS
POLYDEX PHARMACEUTICALS 
PROLONG INTERNAT CORP 
QUAKER CHEMICAL CORP
RHODIA ADS
RONSON CORP
RPM INTERNATIONAL INC DE
SCOTTS CO CL A
 

 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO
SOCIEDAD QUIMICA Y MINER
SURMODICS INC
SYNGENTA AD FOR NVS
SYNTHETECH INC.
TAT TECHNOL LTD
TECH FLAVORS & FRAGRANCE
TECUMSEH PRODUCTS CL A
TECUMSEH PRODUCTS CL B
TERRA NITROGEN CO L.P.
TRAMFORD INTERNAT LTD
TS&B HOLDINGS INC 
U.S. LIME & MINERALS INC
URECOATS INDUSTRIES INC
USG CORP
VALHI INC
VALSPAR CORPORATION, THE
VERIDIEN CORP
VULCAN MATERIALS CO
W.R. GRACE & CO
WD-40 CO
YORK INTERNAT CORP
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Exhibit "B"

AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER - 2003

A. Purpose. The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors of LSB Industries, Inc. (the "Company") for the following purposes:

1. Assisting the Board of Directors in discharging its oversight responsibility relating to: (a) the accounting, reporting, and financial practices of the Company and
its subsidiaries, including the integrity of the Company's financial statements; (b) the surveillance of administration and financial controls and the Company's

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (c) the outside auditing firm's qualifications and independence; and (d) the performance of the Company's internal

audit function and the Company's outside auditing firm; and

2. Preparing the report required by the rules of the SEC to be included in the Company's annual proxy statement.

In fulfilling its purpose, the Audit Committee should endeavor to maintain free and open means of communication between the members of the Committee, other members of the Board
of Directors, the outside auditor, the senior and financial management of the Company, and with any employees of the Company or other individuals who desire to bring accounting,
internal accounting controls, auditing, or other matters to the Committee's attention.

In the exercise of its oversight responsibilities, it is not the duty of the Audit Committee to plan or conduct audits or to determine that the Company's financial statements
fairly present the Company's financial position and results of operation and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Instead, such duties remain the
responsibility of management and the outside auditor. Nothing contained in this charter is intended to alter or impair the operation of the "business judgment rule" as
interpreted by the courts under the Delaware General Corporation Law. Further, nothing contained in this charter is intended to alter or impair the right of the members of the
Audit Committee under the Delaware General Corporation Law to rely, in discharging their responsibilities, on the records of the Company and on other information presented to the
Audit Committee, Board of Directors, or Company by officers of employees or by outside experts such as the outside auditor.

B. Members. The Board of Directors shall appoint an Audit Committee of at least three members, and shall designate one member as chairperson. Each member of the Audit Committee
must meet the independence and experience requirements of relevant law, including rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") and, if the
Company's securities are listed for trading on a national securities exchange or the Nasdaq Stock Market ("NASDAQ"), the rules and regulations of such applicable national
securities exchange or NASDAQ on which the Company's securities are listed for trading. Each member shall be able to read and understand financial statements at the time of their
appointment.

The members of the Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee or a majority of
the independent directors and may be removed and replaced by the Board in its discretion.

C. Authorities and Responsibilities. Among its specific duties and responsibilities, the Audit Committee shall, consistent with and subject to applicable law and rules and
regulations promulgated by the Commission and, if the Company's securities are listed for trading on a national securities
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exchange or NASDAQ, the rules and regulations of such national securities exchange or NASDAQ:

1. Be directly responsible, in its capacity as a committee of the Board of Directors, for the appointment, compensation and oversight of the outside
auditing firm. In this regard, the Audit Committee shall have the sole authority to (a) appoint and retain (subject to ratification by the Company's
stockholders), (b) determine the funding for, and (c) when appropriate, terminate, the outside auditing firm, which shall report directly to the Audit
Committee.

2. Approve in advance all audit services to be provided by the outside auditing firm, including any written engagement letters related thereto;
establish policies and procedures for the engagement of the outside auditing firm to provide permissible non-audit services, which shall require pre-
approval by the Audit Committee of all permissible non-audit services to be provided by the outside auditing firm; and, at the discretion of the Audit
Committee, delegate such pre-approval of services to the chairman of the Audit Committee (provided that the chairman shall provide subsequent
notification to the Audit Committee of any such pre-approval at scheduled meetings of the Audit Committee).

3. Consider, at least annually, the independence of the outside auditing firm, including whether the outside auditing firm's performance of permissible
non-audit services is compatible with the auditor's independence; obtain and review a report by the outside auditing firm describing any relationships
between the outside auditing firm and the Company or any other relationships that may adversely affect the independence of the auditor; discuss with the
outside auditing firm any disclosed relationships or services that may impact the objectivity and independence of the auditor; and present to the Board
of Directors the Audit Committee's conclusions with respect to the independence of the outside auditing firm.

4. Review and discuss with the outside auditing firm: (a) the scope of the audit, the results of the annual audit examination by the auditor and any
accompanying management letters, and any difficulties the auditor encountered in the course of their audit work, including any restrictions on the scope
of the outside auditing firm's activities or on access to requested information, and any significant disagreements with management; (b) any reports of
the outside auditing firm with respect to interim periods; and (c) the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61 as
then in effect.

5. Review and discuss with management and the outside auditing firm the annual audited and quarterly unaudited financial statements of the Company,
including: (a) an analysis of the auditor's judgment as to the quality of the Company's accounting principles, setting forth significant financial
reporting issues and judgments made in connection with the preparation of the financial statements; (b) the Company's disclosures under "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," including the development, selection and reporting of accounting policies
that may be regarded as critical; and (c) major issues regarding the Company's accounting principles and financial statement presentations, including
any significant changes in the Company's selection or application of accounting principles and financial statement presentations.
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6. Recommend to the Board based on the review and discussion described in paragraphs 3 - 5 above, whether the financial statements should be included in
the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

7. Periodically review and discuss the adequacy of the Company's internal controls, any significant deficiencies in internal controls, and significant
changes in such controls; and review and discuss with the principal internal auditor of the Company and such others as the Audit Committee deems
appropriate, the scope and results of the internal audit program.

8. Periodically review and discuss the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures and management reports thereon.

9. Review and discuss with management and the outside auditors any material financial or non-financial arrangements of the Company which do not appear
on the financial statements of the Company.

10. Review any related party transactions involving directors or executive officers of the Company.

11. Review with the General Counsel or, if the Company does not have a General Counsel, the Company's principal, outside legal counsel, material pending
legal proceedings involving the Company and other contingent liabilities.



12. Establish procedures in compliance with relevant law, including rules and regulations adopted by the Commission or NASDAQ for receiving and handling
complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls and auditing matters, including procedures for confidential, anonymous submission of
concerns by employees regarding accounting and auditing matters.

13. Establish policies for the Company's hiring of employees of the outside auditing firm and former employees of the outside auditing firm.

14. Evaluate annually the performance of the Audit Committee and the adequacy of the Audit Committee charter.

D. Meetings. The Audit Committee shall meet as often as may be deemed necessary or appropriate in its judgment, but not less than quarterly, either in person or telephonically.
At least annually, the Audit Committee shall meet in executive session with each of management, the principal internal auditor of the Company, and the independent auditing firm.
The Audit Committee may create subcommittees who shall report to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall report to the full Board of Directors with respect to its
meetings. The majority of the members of the Audit Committee shall constitute a quorum.

E. Outside Advisors. The Audit Committee shall have the authority to retain such outside counsel, experts, and other advisors as it determines appropriate to assist in the full
performance of its functions.

F. Funding by the Company. The Company shall provide appropriate funding, as determined by the Audit Committee, in its capacity as a committee of the Board of Directors, for
payment of compensation to the independent auditing firm
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employed by the Company for the purpose of rendering or issuing an audit report and to any advisors employed by the Audit Committee.

G. Investigations. The Audit Committee shall have the authority to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its scope of responsibilities and shall have the
authority to retain outside advisors to assist it in the conduct of any investigation.

 

 

The persons named above will vote the shares of stock represented by this Proxy Card in accordance with the specifications made in Items 1 and 2. If the undersigned makes no specification, the persons named above will vote the shares "FOR" Items 1
and 2.

Please sign exactly as your name appears below, date and return this Proxy Card promptly, using the self-addressed, prepaid envelope enclosed for your convenience. Please correct your address before returning this Proxy Card. Persons
signing in a fiduciary capacity should indicate that fact and give 7their full title. If a corporation, please sign in the full corporate name by the president or other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in the partnership name by an
authorized person. If joint tenants, both persons should sign.

___________________
Date

____________________________________________________________
Name of Shareholder (Please Print)

____________________________________________________________
New Address (Street, City, State)

____________________________________________________________
Signature and Title

____________________________________________________________
Signature and Title

____________________________________________________________
Signature and Title

 

 

LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.                                                     PROXY                                                             THIS PROXY IS
16 South Pennsylvania                                 FOR THE 2004 ANNUAL MEETING                             SOLICITED BY THE
Post Office Box 754                                             OF STOCKHOLDERS                                          BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73101                                                                                                       OF LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.
 

The undersigned hereby appoints Jack E. Golsen and Tony M. Shelby, and each of them, the undersigned's proxy, with full power of substitution, to attend the annual meeting of the
shareholders of LSB Industries, Inc. (the "Company") on Thursday July 22, 2004, at 11:30 a.m., Central Daylight Time, at the Company's offices located at 16 South Pennsylvania
Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73107, and at any adjournment of that meeting and to vote the undersigned's shares of the Common Stock, Convertible Noncumulative Preferred Stock,
12 % Series B Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, and Series D 6% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, all of which vote as single class, as designated below.

               (1) Election of Directors 

                For All Nominees Listed Below (except as marked to the contrary below) Withhold Authority to vote for All Nominees Listed Below 
                (Instruction: To withhold authority for an individual nominee, strike through the nominee's name below.)

                                Jack E. Golsen                         Horace G. Rhodes                         Charles A. Burtch

                The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" all nominees.

               (2) The ratification of the Audit Committee appointment of independent auditors, Ernst & Young, LLP

                        [  ]   FOR                             [  ] AGAINST                                     [  ]  ABSTAIN

                The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" this item.

               (3) In their discretion, the Proxies are authorized to vote upon such other business as may properly come before the meeting.
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LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.

is a manufacturing and marketing company. Its core businesses manufacture and sell climate control products and chemicals. It also provides machinery and related
chemical and industrial engineering services worldwide. 

The Company's major business groups consisting of multiple, separate subsidiaries are referred to as "Businesses." LSB's Businesses are market leaders in specific
segments of the industrial acids and climate control markets. 

LSB's corporate offices are based in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, U.S.A. The Company was formed in 1968 as an Oklahoma corporation. It became a Delaware corporation in
1977.

                                                                                                                                        _________________________________________

THE CLIMATE CONTROL BUSINESS

manufactures and sells a broad range of fan coils, air-handling, air-conditioning, heating, water source heat pumps, geothermal heat pumps, dehumidification, and air
purification products targeted to commercial and residential new-building construction, renovation of existing buildings, and replacement of existing systems. It
currently has operations in the United States and Western Europe and markets its products worldwide.

THE CHEMICAL BUSINESS

manufactures and sells low-density (industrial-grade) ammonium nitrate, various concentrations of nitric acid, high-grade mixed acids, and sulfuric acid for
industrial markets. It also manufactures high-density, prilled ammonium nitrate, anhydrous ammonia, and liquid fertilizers to the agrochemical industry.

ENGINEERED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Company markets other industrial products and designs, engineers, tools, specifies and furnishes world-class chemical and industrial manufacturing facilities for
international clients.

To Our Shareholders:

As a fellow shareholder, allow me to review with you the top level results of 2003, the current activities of our core businesses, their market positions and other recent
developments of our Company. In 2003, LSB made significant progress. Looking ahead, I find a great deal to be optimistic about.

LSB realized $3.1 million net income from all sources on revenues of $317.3 million in 2003. This compared to a net profit of $99 thousand on revenues of $283.8 million in 2002,
marking the fourth straight year of profits for our Company.

We have included our Form 10K report as part of this Annual Report. It contains the details of our financial reports for 2003 operations and prior years.

Climate Control Business

We have leading market positions in certain niche air conditioning and heating products which are widely used in new construction and renovation projects including multi-family
housing, lodging, assisted living and healthcare, schools and universities, office buildings, single family residences and many other types of structures. Our strategy is to have
the broadest line of the most technologically advanced products available in the market within our niche product categories. We believe that our Climate Control business holds
leading positions in the hydronic fan coil, water source heat pump and geothermal technology segments of the HVAC industry. Within the hydronic fan coil segment, we believe that
we hold an approximate 39% market share and are widely considered the dominant manufacturer in this segment. Within the water source heat pump and geothermal technology segments,
we believe we hold an approximate 30% market share and again have the broadest product offerings in the HVAC industry and are considered the leader in these segments.

We have recently developed and launched a line of large custom air handlers and a modular chiller. We have already gone through the process of product and market development with
these new product lines. 

We will continue to upgrade and grow our existing core product lines to increase our market position. To do this, we have introduced a new "SureFlow"® line of fan coils which is
targeted to expand the usage and market size for hydronic fan coils. We have introduced a new three-tier commercial water source heat pump line that is the most comprehensive in
the industry. In addition, we introduced our "Tranquility 27"™ line of geothermal heat pumps which is the most efficient air conditioning and heating product of any type on the
market today.

Chemical Business

We primarily manufacture nitrogen based products for the industrial and agrochemical markets. We supply many major chemical companies with these products. In addition to the
manufacture of all concentrations of nitric acid, we make sulfuric acid, industrial and fertilizer grade ammonium nitrate, urea ammonium nitrate (A UAN@ ) and anhydrous ammonia.
We believe that our Chemical business is the largest merchant supplier of concentrated nitric acid in the United States. We are the second largest ammonium nitrate fertilizer
producer in the South Central United States. Our Chemical products are used to ultimately produce mining and agricultural products, nylon, urethane intermediates, specialty
fibers and other specialty chemicals.

The raw materials for most of our products are natural gas and anhydrous ammonia, a derivative of natural gas. Traditionally, our products have been sold predominantly to the
agricultural industry at spot market prices. Because of unpredictable prices of natural gas and anhydrous ammonia, we have developed a new model for this business with the
strategy of emphasizing sales to industrial customers on a cost-plus pricing arrangement or similar basis, thus reducing the risk associated with a disconnect between our costs
and spot market selling prices of our products. To-date we have converted approximately 62% of our business to agreements that provide for a pass through of costs. Although we
believe that there will always be spot market sales, our objective is to increase the percentage of our business which is on a cost-plus basis, further reducing the risk of spot-
market fluctuations. 

In the past two years, numerous bankruptcies in the nitrogen chemical industry have resulted in reducing the volume of competing nitrogen products produced in the USA. This has
resulted in a reduction of total industry manufacturing capacity and more closely matching the supply to the overall demand for our products. We believe that there may be an
opportunity for us to fill some of the voids created by this situation.

Other Developments

Aside from regular activities, there have been several exciting developments in our Company which I would like to share with you.

In November 2003, we listed our common stock on the American Stock Exchange (AMEX). Our symbol is LXU. 

In February 2004, our directors elected Barry Golsen to the position of President of LSB. Barry has been part of management of the Company for over twenty years and has been
responsible for the growth and development of our Climate Control Business. He has also been Vice Chairman of our Board of Directors for 10 years.

In April 2004, Paul Rydlund was elected President of our El Dorado, Arkansas, and Cherokee, Alabama, chemical companies. Previously Paul was Senior Vice President of El Dorado
Chemical.

In June, our El Dorado Nitrogen subsidiary in Baytown, Texas, received the A Star of Stars@ award for outstanding safety compliance from the U.S. Department of Labor. This
represents the most prestigious industry award and is representative of our company wide safety initiative.

Our Future Direction

We are presently working on several opportunities to improve our capital structure and reposition our long term debt capital to enable future growth.

During the next few years we expect our major growth will be through our Climate Control Business, because it has the strongest market position and most potential for growth.

Once again, we thank the Shareholders who have invested in our Company and the employees, business partners, customers and lenders who continue to help us build the Company.

Sincerely,

Jack E. Golsen
Chairman of Board, CEO

June 1, 2004

This letter contains certain A Forward-Looking Statements@ .. All estimates and other statements (other than statements of historical facts) contained in this letter are Forward-
Looking Statements, such as leadership positions in certain markets, or products, to develop long-term agreements to provide for the pass-through of the more volatile raw
materials and operating costs to non-agricultural customers, various strategies, market share, growing existing product lines, development of new cost plus pricing arrangements,
new opportunities, improve capital structure and reposition long-term debt to enable future growth and major growth through our Climate Control Business. Please read A Special
Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements@ contained in the Form 10-K for a discussion of a variety of factors which could cause the future outcome to differ materially from
Forward-Looking Statements contained herein.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

General 

LSB Industries, Inc. (the "Company", "We", "Us", or "Our") was formed in 1968 as an Oklahoma corporation, and in 1977 became a Delaware corporation. We are a diversified holding
company which engages, through our subsidiaries, in:

the manufacturing and selling of a broad range of hydronic fan coils and water source heat pumps as well as other products including large custom air handlers used in

commercial and residential air conditioning systems (the "Climate Control Business") and

the manufacturing and selling of chemical products for the agricultural, mining and varied industrial markets (the "Chemical Business").

Certain statements contained in this Part I may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. See "Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

Our Chemical Business continues to develop long-term cost plus contracts with our customers, which enable us to lock in gross margins and alleviate swings in raw material costs
inherent in our spot market business. Currently we generate approximately 62% of our net sales in this business from long-term cost plus contracts. In addition, our Climate
Control Business continues to establish leadership positions in niche markets by offering extensive product lines, custom tailored products and proprietary new technologies.
Under this focused strategy, we have developed an extensive line of hydronic fan coils and water source heat pumps. We have developed flexible production to allow us to custom
design units for the growing retrofit and replacement markets. Products developed by our Climate Control Business include large custom air handlers, modular chillers and
ultraviolet light units for bacteria removal. Our Climate Control Business has developed the use of geothermal water source heat pumps in residential and commercial applications.
We believe that an aging installed base of residential HVAC systems, coupled with relatively short payback periods of geothermal systems, will continue to increase demand for our
geothermal products in the residential replacement market. 

Our Chemical Business focuses on specific geographic areas to develop freight and distribution advantages and establish a leading regional presence, provide value-added services
as a means of building customer loyalty, and expand and modify the product mix towards higher margin products. In the agricultural products market, we believe we have developed
geographic advantages in the Texas, Oklahoma, Missouri, Alabama and Tennessee markets by establishing an extensive network of wholesale and retail distribution centers for
nitrogen-based fertilizer tailored for regional farming practices and by providing value-added services. 

We finance our working capital requirements for our wholly-owned subsidiary ClimaChem, Inc. ("ClimaChem") and its wholly-owned subsidiaries through borrowings under a $50 million
credit facility with a lender (the "Working Capital Revolver Loan") maturing in April 2005. See Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations."
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Segment information and Foreign and Domestic Operations and Export Sales 

Schedules of the amounts of net sales, gross profit, operating profit, and identifiable assets attributable to each of our lines of business and of the amount of our export sales
in the aggregate and by major geographic area for each of the last three years appear in Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this
report.

All discussions below relate to our continuing operations and accordingly exclude the discontinued operations sold in 2002. See Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Climate Control Business 

General 

Our Climate Control Business manufactures and sells a broad range of standard and custom designed hydronic fan coils and water source heat pumps as well as other niche products
for use in commercial and residential heating ventilation and air conditioning ("HVAC") systems. The construction of commercial, institutional and residential buildings including
single family homes, the renovation of existing buildings and the replacement of existing systems drive the demand for our Climate Control Business' products. Our Climate Control
Business' commercial products are used in a wide variety of buildings, such as: hotels, motels, office buildings, schools, universities, apartments, condominiums, hospitals,
nursing homes, extended care facilities, industrial and high tech manufacturing facilities, food and chemical processing facilities, and pharmaceutical manufacturing facilities.
We target many of our products to meet increasingly stringent indoor air quality and energy efficiency standards. 

The following table summarizes net sales information relating to our products of the Climate Control Business:

 2003  2002  2001

Percentage of net sales of the Climate Control Business:          
  Hydronic fan coils  40%  44%  44%

  Water source heat pumps  51%  45%  44%

  Other HVAC products  9%  11%  12%

  100%  100%  100%

Percentage of consolidated net sales:          
  Hydronic fan coils  15%  20%  20%

  Water source heat pumps  19%  20%  19%

  Other HVAC products  4%  5%  5%

  38%  45%  44%

Hydronic Fan Coils 

As a leading provider of hydronic fan coils, our Climate Control Business targets the commercial and institutional markets. Hydronic fan coils use heated or chilled water,
provided by a centralized chiller or boiler through a water pipe system, to condition the air and allow individual room control. Hydronic fan coil systems are quieter and have
longer lives and lower maintenance costs than other comparable systems used where individual room
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control is required. Important components of our strategy for competing in the commercial and institutional renovation and replacement markets include the breadth of our product
line coupled with customization capability provided by a flexible manufacturing process. The lodging industry is a significant user of hydronic fan coils. During 2003 and 2002, a
decline of major lodging construction projects in several key geographic markets had an impact on our hydronic fan coil operations. We do not believe this is a long-term trend
and, going forward, we expect this specific market to return to historical levels.

Water Source Heat Pumps 

We are a leading provider of water source heat pumps to the commercial construction and renovation markets in the United States. These highly efficient heating and cooling
products enable individual room climate control through the transfer of heat through a water pipe system which is connected to a centralized cooling tower or heat injector. Water
source heat pumps enjoy a broad range of commercial applications, particularly in medium to large sized buildings with many small, individually controlled spaces. We believe the
market for commercial water source heat pumps will continue to grow due to the relative efficiency and long life of such systems as compared to other air conditioning and heating
systems, as well as to the emergence of the replacement market for those systems. 

Our Climate Control Business has also developed the use of geothermal water source heat pumps in residential and commercial applications. Geothermal systems, which circulate
water and antifreeze through an underground heat exchanger, are among the most energy efficient systems available. We believe the longer life, lower cost to operate, and
relatively short payback periods of geothermal systems, as compared with air-to-air systems, will continue to increase demand for our geothermal products. We specifically target
new residential construction of moderate and high end single family homes.

Hydronic Fan Coil and Water Source Heat Pump Market 

We estimate the annual United States market for hydronic fan coils and water source heat pumps to be in excess of $280 million. Levels of repair, replacement, and new
construction activity generally drive demand in these markets. In aggregate, the United States market for fan coils and water source heat pump products has returned to the level
experienced five years ago with a slight decline in the total market in each of the last four years. The primary reason for this activity is the slowdown in construction and
refurbishment related to the hospitality and lodging industry and has been attributed to the events of September 11, 2001 and world unrest.

Production and Backlog 

Most of our Climate Control Business production occurs on a specific order basis. We manufacture the units in many sizes and configurations, as required by the purchaser, to fit
the space and capacity requirements of hotels, motels, schools, hospitals, apartment buildings, office buildings and other commercial or residential structures. As of December
31, 2003 and 2002, the backlog of confirmed orders for our Climate Control Business was approximately $22.8 million and $25.1 million, respectively. This reduction is
attributable to a lower backlog in hydronic fan coils due to the decline in major lodging construction projects and manufacturing efficiencies which
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reduced customer order lead times. The balance of the business experienced an increase in the levels of backlog between 2002 and 2003. Past experience indicates that customers
generally do not cancel orders after we receive them. As of the date of this report, our Climate Control Business had released the majority of the December 31, 2003 backlog to
production. All of the December 31, 2003 backlog is expected to be filled during 2004. 

Marketing and Distribution

Distribution

Our Climate Control Business sells its products to mechanical contractors, original equipment manufacturers and distributors. Our sales to mechanical contractors primarily occur
through independent manufacturers' representatives, who also represent complementary product lines not manufactured by us. Original equipment manufacturers generally consist of
other air conditioning and heating equipment manufacturers who resell under their own brand name the products purchased from our Climate Control Business in competition with us.
For each of the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, sales to original equipment manufacturers accounted for approximately 23%, 22% and 22%, respectively, of the net sales of our Climate
Control Business and approximately 8%, 10% and 9%, respectively, of our consolidated net sales.

Market 

Our Climate Control Business depends primarily on the commercial construction industry, including new construction and the remodeling and renovation of older buildings, and on
the residential construction industry for both new and replacement markets relating to their geothermal products. 

Raw Materials 

Numerous domestic and foreign sources exist for the materials used by our Climate Control Business, which materials include compressors, steel, electric motors, valves and
copper. Periodically, our Climate Control Business enters into fixed-price copper and steel contracts. We expect to obtain our requirements for steel in 2004, however, the
current industry-wide shortage of steel could result in increased costs to obtain our complete requirements. We believe the majority of cost increases, if any, will be passed to
our customers in the form of higher prices and while we believe we will have sufficient materials, a shortage of steel could impact production of Climate Control products. We do
not expect to have any difficulties in obtaining any other necessary materials for our Climate Control Business.

Competition 

Our Climate Control Business competes primarily with five companies, some of whom are also our customers. Some of our competitors have greater financial and other resources than
we do. Our Climate Control Business manufactures a broader line of fan coil and water source heat pump products than any other manufacturer in the United States, and we believe
that we are competitive as to price, service, warranty and product performance.
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Chemical Business 

General 

Our Chemical Business manufactures three principal product lines that are derived from natural gas, anhydrous ammonia, and sulfur:

fertilizer grade ammonium nitrate and urea ammonium nitrate ("UAN") for the agricultural industry,

industrial grade ammonium nitrate and solutions for the mining industry and

concentrated, blended and regular nitric acid, metallurgical grade anhydrous ammonia and sulfuric acid for industrial applications.

Our Chemical Business' principal manufacturing facilities are located in El Dorado, Arkansas ("El Dorado Facility"), Cherokee, Alabama, ("Cherokee Facility") and Baytown, Texas
("Baytown Facility"). We also operate an acids blending facility in Wilmington, North Carolina. 

The following table summarizes net sales information relating to our products of the Chemical Business:

 2003  2002  2001

Percentage of net sales of the Chemical 
Business:

         
Agricultural products 40% 38% 36%



   
Mining products  27%  25%  32%

Industrial acids  33%  37%  32%

  100%  100%  100%

Percentage of consolidated net sales:          
Agricultural products  25%  20%  19%

Mining products  16%  13%  18%

Industrial acids  20%  20%  17%

  61%  53%  54%

Agricultural Products 

Our Chemical Business produces agricultural grade ammonium nitrate, a nitrogen-based fertilizer, at the El Dorado Facility and the Cherokee Facility and also produces anhydrous
ammonia, UAN and urea at the Cherokee Facility. Ammonium nitrate and UAN are two of several forms of nitrogen-based fertilizers which are derived from anhydrous ammonia.
Although, to some extent, the various forms of nitrogen-based fertilizers are interchangeable, each has its own characteristics which produce agronomic preferences among end
users. Farmers decide which type of nitrogen-based fertilizer to apply based on the crop planted, soil and weather conditions, regional farming practices and relative nitrogen
fertilizer prices. We sell these agricultural products to farmers, fertilizer dealers and distributors located primarily in the South Central and Southeastern United States.

Our Chemical Business' agricultural markets are in relatively close proximity to our El Dorado, Arkansas and Cherokee, Alabama facilities and include a high concentration of
pastureland and row crops which favor our products. We develop our market position in these areas by emphasizing high quality products, customer service and technical advice.
Using a proprietary
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prilling process, our El Dorado Facility produces a high performance ammonium nitrate fertilizer that, because of its uniform size, is easier to apply than many competing
nitrogen-based fertilizer products. We believe that our "E-2" brand ammonium nitrate fertilizer is recognized as a premium product within our primary market. In addition, our El
Dorado Facility establishes long-term relationships with end-users through its network of 20 wholesale and retail distribution centers and our Cherokee Facility sells directly to
agricultural co-op customers.

Mining Products 

Our Chemical Business manufactures industrial grade ammonium nitrate and 83% ammonium nitrate solution for the mining industry. One of our subsidiaries, El Dorado Chemical
Company ("EDC"), is a party to a long-term cost-plus supply agreement. Under this supply agreement, EDC will supply this customer with approximately 190,000 tons of industrial
grade ammonium nitrate per year for a term through at least December 2006, with provisions for renewal thereafter. 

In addition, another subsidiary is party to a long-term cost-plus supply agreement under which it will supply this customer its requirements of 83% ammonium nitrate solution for
a term through September 2006.

Industrial Acids 

Our Chemical Business manufactures and sells industrial acids, primarily to the polyurethane, paper, chemical and electronics industries. We are a major supplier of concentrated
nitric acid, a special grade of nitric acid used in the manufacture of fibers, herbicides, explosives, and other chemical products. In addition, we produce and sell blended and
regular nitric acid, metallurgical grade ammonia and sulfuric acid. We compete on the basis of price and service, including on-time reliability and distribution capabilities. We
provide inventory management as part of the value-added services offered to our customers.

The Baytown Facility is one of the two largest single train nitric acid manufacturing units in the United States, with name plate capacity of 443,000 short tons per year.
Subsidiaries within our Chemical Business entered into a series of agreements with Bayer Corporation ("Bayer") (collectively, the "Bayer Agreement"). Under the Bayer Agreement,
El Dorado Nitric Company ("EDNC") operates the Baytown Facility at Bayer's Baytown, Texas operation. Under the terms of the Bayer Agreement, Bayer will purchase from EDNC all of
its requirements for nitric acid at its Baytown operation for a term through at least May 2009. EDNC purchases from Bayer certain of its requirements for materials, utilities and
services for the manufacture of nitric acid. Upon expiration of the initial ten-year term, the Bayer Agreement may be renewed for up to six renewal terms of five years each;
however, prior to each renewal period, either party to the Bayer Agreement may opt against renewal.

Major Customers 

For each of the years 2003, 2002 and 2001, net sales to one customer, Bayer, of our Chemical Business segment represented approximately 19%, 21% and 19% of the respective net
sales of our Chemical Business and approximately 12%, 11%, and 10% of our consolidated net sales for each respective year.
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Net sales to another customer, Orica USA, Inc., of our Chemical Business segment represented approximately 18%, 16%, and 4% of the net sales of our Chemical Business and
approximately 11%, 8%, and 2% of our consolidated net sales for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Raw Materials 

Anhydrous ammonia and natural gas represent the primary components in the production of most of the products of our Chemical Business. See Item 7 "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." 

In January 2004, EDC reached an agreement with its supplier of anhydrous ammonia whereby the former long-term purchase commitment was terminated and replaced by a new agreement.
Under the new agreement, EDC will purchase 100% of its requirements of purchased ammonia pursuant to a formula-based market price plus transportation to the manufacturing
facility in El Dorado, Arkansas through December 2004. We believe that we could obtain anhydrous ammonia from other sources in the event of a termination or interruption of
service under the above-referenced contract. Our Chemical Business natural gas feedstock requirements are generally purchased at spot market price for delivery at our Cherokee
Facility. Periodically, our Chemical Business enters into fixed-price natural gas contracts. 

Seasonality 

We believe that the only seasonal products of our Chemical Business are fertilizer and related chemical products sold to the agricultural industry. The selling seasons for those
products are primarily during the spring and fall planting seasons, which typically extend from March through June and from September through November in the geographical markets
in which the majority of our agricultural products are distributed. As a result, our Chemical Business increases its inventory of ammonium nitrate and UAN prior to the beginning
of each planting season. In addition, the amount and timing of sales to the agricultural markets depend upon weather conditions and other circumstances beyond our control. 

Regulatory Matters 

Our Chemical Business is subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws, rules and regulations. See "Environmental Matters" and "Legal Proceedings".

Competition 

Our Chemical Business competes with other chemical companies in our markets, many of whom have greater financial and other resources than the Company. We believe that competition
within the markets served by our Chemical Business is primarily based upon price, location of production and distribution sites, service and product performance.

Employees 

As of December 31, 2003, we employed 1,238 persons. As of that date, our Climate Control Business employed 821 persons, none of whom are represented by a union, and our Chemical
Business employed 357 persons, with 132 represented by unions under agreements expiring in July and October of 2004.
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Environmental Matters 

Our operations are subject to numerous environmental laws ("Environmental Laws") and to other federal, state and local laws regarding health and safety matters ("Health Laws").
In particular, the manufacture and distribution of chemical products are activities which entail environmental risks and impose obligations under the Environmental Laws and the
Health Laws, many of which provide for substantial fines and criminal sanctions for violations. There can be no assurance that material costs or liabilities will not be incurred
by us in complying with such laws or in paying fines or penalties for violation of such laws. The Environmental Laws and Health Laws and enforcement policies thereunder relating
to our Chemical Business have in the past resulted, and could in the future result, in penalties, cleanup costs, or other liabilities relating to the handling, manufacture, use,
emission, discharge or disposal of pollutants or other substances at or from our facilities or the use or disposal of certain of its chemical products. Historically, significant
expenditures have been incurred by our subsidiary, El Dorado Chemical Company ("EDC") at its El Dorado, Arkansas plant (the "El Dorado Facility") in order to comply with the
Environmental Laws and Health Laws. Our Chemical Business could be required to make significant additional site or operational modifications at this or other facilities involving
substantial expenditures. In addition, if we should decide to no longer operate the El Dorado Facility and if such facility is retired, we may be required to continue to operate
equipment relating to discharge water, the cost and timing of which is presently unknown.

Water Matters

Discharge Water Issues

The Chemical Business' El Dorado Facility generates process water discharge consisting of cooling tower and boiler blowdown streams, contact storm water (rainfall inside the
plant area which picks up impurities, primarily nitrogen), and miscellaneous spills and leaks from process equipment ("Discharge Water"). The Discharge Water at the El Dorado
Facility is governed by a state of Arkansas permit renewed every five years. The current permit expired in 1995, and the state of Arkansas and EDC have been negotiating since
early 1997 on the issuance of a new permit. EDC and the state of Arkansas agreed to a formal Consent Administrative Order ("CAO") in September, 1998, which CAO contained certain
deadlines for the completion of activities at the El Dorado Facility pending issuance of a new permit. In June 2002, a formal amendment to the CAO became effective, which
extended the compliance date until three years after the effective date of the renewal permit. The renewal permit was issued by the state of Arkansas containing effluent limits
that EDC believed were inappropriately stringent and which EDC believed it could not meet. That permit was appealed by EDC. The appeal has been resolved by the parties entering
into a settlement agreement that provides for effluent limits which EDC believes are acceptable. The settlement agreement has become final. The Arkansas Department of
Environmental Quality ("ADEQ") has issued a revised draft of an National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") water discharge permit pursuant to the terms of the
settlement agreement. 

In January 2004, an adjoining landowner of the El Dorado Facility, who is also the plaintiff in a lawsuit against EDC (See below "Property Damage Lawsuit"), filed comments on the
draft permit requesting effluent limits
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and conditions more restrictive than those provided in the settlement agreement and draft permit. The El Dorado Facility has submitted a response to the comments asserting, among
other things, that the landowner lacks standing to raise issues that were resolved in a prior administrative proceeding. ADEQ has indicated to counsel for EDC that it agrees with
the position asserted by the El Dorado Facility, although there is no assurance that the ADEQ will rule in accordance with such indication. 



We believe that the revised NPDES permit issued in conformity with the settlement agreement will require additional expenditures, estimated to be approximately $3 to $4 million,
which would be expended over the next three years. This estimate assumes that the City of El Dorado, Arkansas (the "City") builds its own discharge pipeline to a nearby river and
we are permitted to tie our pipeline into the City's pipeline. We do not have any reliable estimates of the cost of an alternative solution in the event that the pipeline is not
ultimately built by the City. The CAO included a $183,700 penalty which has been satisfied, either through waste minimization activities or payments.

In addition, the CAO recognizes the presence of nitrate contamination in the shallow groundwater at the El Dorado Facility. A new CAO will be executed to address the shallow
groundwater contamination, which will include an evaluation of the current conditions and remediation based upon a risk assessment. The final remedy for shallow groundwater
contamination, should any remediation be required, will be selected pursuant to the new CAO and based upon the risk assessment. There are no known users of this shallow
groundwater in the area, and preliminary risk assessments have not identified any public health risk that would require additional remediation. No reserve has been established
because the extent of the remediation effort, if any, is not presently known nor estimable. 

Drainage of Pond at El Dorado Facility and Investigation 

In response to a maintenance emergency and to prevent an uncontrolled release, the equalization pond located at the El Dorado Facility was drained to accommodate repairs to an
underground discharge pipe in September 2001. Although, no adverse environmental conditions were noted at the time of the discharge, the sustained discharge was out of compliance
with the mass effluent limits contained in the facility's permit. EDC's environmental compliance manager determined that proper procedure would be to notify the state of Arkansas
in the month end report. The state disagreed and took the position that they should have been notified immediately. EDC and the state of Arkansas have agreed to a Consent
Administrative Order to settle any civil penalty claims relating to this discharge event whereby EDC paid a $50,000 civil penalty and has funded $50,000 on supplemental
environmental projects. 

In January 2002, the U.S. Attorney for the Western District of Arkansas opened an investigation as a result of the drainage of the pond. EDC and two EDC employees received
letters during April, 2002, from the United States Attorney's office in Fort Smith, Arkansas ("AUSA") indicating that a criminal charge could be brought against EDC and the two
employees as a result of the draining of the equalization pond. EDC denies that it violated any criminal laws, and contends that the discharge event giving rise to the exceedance
under its NPDES permit was accidental and impossible to prevent. Although counsel for EDC in this matter has advised that in their opinion it is likely that the matter will be
resolved on favorable
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terms to EDC, there are no assurances that this will occur and it is not possible to estimate the range of potential loss upon resolution of this matter.

Air Matters

In March 2002, EDC received a letter from the state of Arkansas as to several alleged violations of the El Dorado Facility air permit. EDC and the ADEQ have entered into a
consent administrative order ("Air CAO") to resolve the above alleged violations. The Air CAO provides for a civil penalty of approximately $10,000, and requires EDC to establish
a system to monitor air quality at the perimeter of the El Dorado Facility and to submit revised testing protocols for demonstrating compliance at the various emission sources.
The Air CAO also requires EDC to install within 90 days of its effective date a continuous air monitoring system, which is estimated to cost not less than $90,000. The Air CAO
has been published for public comment and is anticipated to be effective in the near term.

As part of the state's investigation of an application filed by EDC for a permit modification relating to the sulfuric acid plant, the state initiated an inquiry regarding
historical equipment upgrades and repairs at the sulfuric acid plant, and whether any of those modifications should have been reviewed under the regulations. The state and EDC
have entered into negotiations in an attempt to compromise and resolve a potential dispute as to what regulations should apply to the sulfuric acid plant. These negotiations have
resulted in an Air CAO that resolves any possible regulatory violations associated with the sulfuric acid plant through the implementation of additional emission controls at that
plant. The ultimate cost of any technology changes required cannot presently be determined, but is believed to cost between $1.5 million to $3 million. The implementation of the
technological change, and related expenditures will be made during the next 3 to 6 years.

Other Environmental Matter

Slurry Explosive Corporation

In April 2002, Slurry Explosive Corporation ("Slurry") entered into a Consent Administrative Order ("Slurry Consent Order") with the state of Kansas, regarding Slurry's
Hallowell, Kansas manufacturing facility ("Hallowell Facility"). The Slurry Consent Order addresses the release of contaminants from the facility into the soils and groundwater
and surface water in the strip-pits adjacent to the Hallowell Facility. There are no known users of the groundwater in the area. The adjacent strip pit is used for fishing. Under
the terms of the Slurry Consent Order, Slurry is required to, among other things, submit an environmental assessment work plan to the state of Kansas for review and approval, and
agree with the state as to any required corrective actions to be performed at the Hallowell Facility.

In connection with the sale of substantially all of the operating assets of Slurry and Universal Tech Corporation ("UTeC"), subsidiaries of the Company, in December 2002, UTeC
leased the Hallowell Facility to the buyer under a triple net long-term lease agreement. However, Slurry retained the obligation to be responsible for, and perform the activities
under, the Slurry Consent Order.
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In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company agreed to indemnify the buyer of such assets for these environmental matters. Slurry has placed the prior owners of the Hallowell
Facility on notice of their responsibility for contribution towards the costs to investigate and remediate this site. Representatives of a prior owner have recently agreed to pay
for one-half of the costs of the investigation on an interim, non-binding basis. At December 31, 2003, a reserve of $168,000 has been established for the Company's share of the
estimated investigation and remediation costs. However, these estimates may be revised in the near term based on the results of our investigation and remediation.

Grand Jury Subpoenas - Slurry - Hallowell Facility 

In 2002, Slurry and the Company received grand jury subpoenas requesting business records of Slurry. The Company and Slurry have complied with these subpoenas. This grand jury
investigation appears to be related to Slurry's alleged violations of explosive storage and related regulations, which resulted in the revocation by the Bureau of Alcohol,
Tobacco and Firearms of Slurry's license to manufacture explosives at the Hallowell Facility.

Property Damage Lawsuit

In January 2003, the owners of 283 acres of property adjacent to the El Dorado Facility filed suit against EDC alleging property damage and punitive damages. The lawsuit is
pending in the United States District Court, Western District of Arkansas, El Dorado Division. The El Dorado Facility utilizes a discharge water treatment system which discharges
into a creek which passes through the plaintiffs' property pursuant to a permit issued by the state of Arkansas. The plaintiffs contend that these permitted discharges into the
creek are an unauthorized trespass, have damaged their property, have resulted in fish kills in the creek, and that leakage from EDC's two holding ponds has contaminated the
shallow groundwater on the plaintiffs' property.

Plaintiffs are pursuing claims under theories of negligence, trespass and nuisance, and are claiming actual and punitive damages as well as injunctive relief. The plaintiffs are
alleging that their property has diminished in value by $275,000 as a result of EDC's discharges.

EDC's Discharge Water contains elevated levels of ammonia and nitrogen. However, monitoring wells around its treatment ponds indicate little, if any, impact on the shallow
groundwater. We have put our insurance carrier on notice of this claim. Under the policy, we have a $500,000 deductible. No reserve has been established in connection with this
matter.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

Climate Control Business 

Our Climate Control Business conducts its fan coil manufacturing operations in a facility located in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, consisting of approximately 265,000 square feet. We
own this facility subject to a mortgage. As of December 31, 2003, our Climate Control Business was using 79% of the productive capacity, based on one eight-hour shift per day and
a five-day week.
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Our Climate Control Business manufactures most of its heat pump products in a 270,000 square foot facility ("Building") in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. We lease the Building, with an
option to buy, through May 2016, with options to renew for three additional five-year periods. As of December 31, 2003, 76% of the productive capacity of this manufacturing
operation was being utilized, based on two ten-hour shifts per day and a four-day week in one department and one ten-hour shift per day and a four-day week in all other
departments.

All of the properties utilized by our Climate Control Business are considered by our management to be suitable and adequate to meet the current needs of that business.

Chemical Business 

Our Chemical Business primarily conducts manufacturing operations (a) on 150 acres of a 1,400 acre tract of land located at the El Dorado Facility, (b) on 120 acres of a 1,300
acre tract of land located at the Cherokee Facility, (c) in a mixed acid plant in Wilmington, North Carolina ("Wilmington Plant"), and (d) in a nitric acid plant at the Baytown
Facility. The Company and/or its subsidiaries own all of its manufacturing facilities except the Baytown Facility. The Baytown Facility is being leased pursuant to a long-term
lease with an unrelated third party. As discussed in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the El Dorado Facility (excluding the DSN Plant and other exceptions)
and the Cherokee Facility are being used to secure loans under a financing agreement. As of December 31, 2003, the El Dorado Facility and Cherokee Facility were utilized at
approximately 75% and 49% of capacity, respectively, based on continuous operation. 

Our Chemical Business distributes its agricultural products through 20 wholesale and retail distribution centers, with 15 of the centers located in Texas (12 of which we own and
3 of which we lease); 2 centers located in Missouri (1 of which we own and 1 of which we lease); 2 centers located in Tennessee (owned); and 1 center located in Illinois
(leased).

All of the properties utilized by our Chemical Business are considered by our management to be suitable and adequate to meet the current needs of that business. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

1. Environmental and Grand Jury Proceedings. See "Business - Environmental Matters" for a discussion as to:

consent administrative orders that our Chemical Business has entered into with the states of Arkansas and Kansas relating to various environmental issues,

grand jury proceedings involving allegations that the El Dorado Facility violated its water discharge permit and drainage of a pond located at the facility,

grand jury subpoenas involving Slurry Hallowell Facility, and

lawsuit pending against EDC in the United States District Court, Western District of Arkansas, El Dorado Division, brought by the owners of 283 acres of property adjacent

to the El Dorado Facility. The style of the lawsuit is Marty Davis, et al. V. El Dorado Chemical Company.

-15-

2. During January 2004, EDC finalized the settlement of its dispute with its ammonia supplier by entering into a new ammonia supply agreement. Under the terms of the new supply
agreement, the supplier is to sell to the EDC all of its requirements of ammonia for a one year period beginning January 2004, and each party released the other of any claims
that each may have had under the previous supply agreement.



3. A lawsuit was filed in August 2002, against Trison Construction, Inc. ("Trison"), a subsidiary within our Climate Control Business, in the District Court, State of Oklahoma,
Pontotoc County, in the case styled Trade Mechanical Contractors, Inc., et al. V. Trison Construction, Inc. In this lawsuit, the plaintiff alleges that Trison breached its
contract with the plaintiff by delaying contract performance and refusal of payment, and that the actions by Trison damaged the plaintiff. The plaintiff alleges that Trison owes
it approximately $231,000, inclusive of overhead, cost and profit; approximately $94,000 in extended overhead and expenses and lost profits of an unspecified amount. Trison has
asserted a counterclaim against the plaintiff for recovery of its costs and attorneys fees associated with the defense of this case and approximately $306,000 in damages due to
plaintiff's breach of contract.

4. International Environmental Corporation ("IEC"), a subsidiary within our Climate Control Business, has been sued, together with 18 other defendants and 8 other parties added
by the original named defendants, in the case styled Hilton Hotels, et al. V. International Environmental Corporation, et al., pending in the First Circuit Court of Hawaii. The
plaintiffs' claims arise out of construction of a hotel in Hawaii. The plaintiffs claim that it was necessary to close the hotel approximately one year after it was opened due to
an infestation of mold, requiring the hotel owner to undertake a mold remediation project. The owner of the hotel sued many of the parties involved in the design and
construction, or supply of equipment for the hotel, alleging the improper design, construction, installation and/or air conditioning equipment. IEC supplied certain portions of
the air conditioning equipment, which the plaintiff alleges was defec tive. The plaintiff has not specified the amount of damages. The Company has notified its insurance carrier,
which is providing a defense under a reservation of rights.

5. During January 2004, EDC was named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed by the trustee for Lodestar Energy, Inc., et al. The litigation is styled William D. Bishop, Chapter 7
Trustee for Lodestar Energy, Inc., et al. V. El Dorado Chemical Company, pending in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Eastern District of Oklahoma. Lodestar is in chapter 7
bankruptcy proceeding. The complaint seeks to recover approximately $1,100,000 for allegedly preferential payments that were made to EDC during the 90 day period preceding the
filing of Lodestar's bankruptcy. Although counsel has advised that it is unlikely that a substantial unfavorable outcome will occur, there are no assurances that there will not
be an unfavorable outcome in this matter. EDC intends to vigorously defend this matter.

6. Cherokee Nitrogen, Inc. ("Cherokee"), a subsidiary within our Chemical Business, has been sued for an undisclosed amount of monies based on claims that the subsidiary breached
an agreement by overcharging the plaintiff for ammonium nitrate for use by the plaintiff in the manufacture of commercial explosives as a result of inflated prices for natural
gas used to manufacture the ammonium nitrate. The suit is pending in Alabama state court and styled Nelson Brothers, LLC v. Cherokee Nitrogen v. Dynegy
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Marketing. The subsidiary has filed a third party complaint against Dynegy, Inc. and a subsidiary asserting that Dynegy was the party responsible for fraudulently causing
artificial natural gas prices to exist and seeking an undisclosed amount from Dynegy, including any amounts which may be recovered by the plaintiff. Dynegy has filed a
counterclaim against the subsidiary for monies allegedly owed on account, which is alleged by Dynegy to be $600,000. Although there is no assurance, counsel for Cherokee has
advised the Company that, at this time, they believe that there is a good likelihood that the subsidiary will recover monies from Dynegy over and above any monies which may be
recovered by the plaintiff or owed to Dynegy.

7. In February 2000, our Board of Directors authorized management to proceed with the sale of the automotive business, since the automotive business was no longer one of our
"core businesses". In May 2000, we sold substantially all of the assets within our automotive business. After the authorization by the board, but prior to the sale, the
automotive business purchased the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Zeller Corporation ("Zeller"). The liabilities of Zeller assumed by the automotive business included
Zeller's pension plan, which is not a multi-employer pension plan. In June 2003, the principal owner ("Owner") of the buyer of the automotive business was contacted by a
representative of the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation ("PBGC") regarding the plan. The Owner has been informed by the PBGC of a possible underfunding of the plan and a
possible takeover of the plan by the PBGC. The Owner has notified the Company of these events. We have also been contacted by the PBGC and have been advised tha t the alleged
under funding is approximately $600,000. We have been advised by ERISA counsel that based upon, numerous representations made by us and the assumption that the trier of fact
determining our obligations with respect to the plan would find that: we disposed, in May 4, 2000, of interest in the automotive business including the Zeller assets and business
pursuant to a bona fide purchase agreement under the terms of which the purchaser assumed all obligations with respect to the operation, including funding of the Zeller plan, the
purpose of the sale of the automotive business did not include an attempt to evade liability for funding the Zeller plan, at the time we disposed of our interest in the
automotive business, the Zeller plan was adequately funded, on an ongoing basis and all required contributions had been made, and the Zeller plan did not terminate at anytime
that any member of our controlled group of entities was a contribution sponsor to the Zeller plan, that the possibility of an unfavor able outcome to us in a lawsuit if the PBGC
attempts to hold us liable for the underfunding of the Zeller plan is remote.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

No matters were submitted to a vote of our shareholders during the fourth quarter of 2003.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANY'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

Market Information 

Since December 15, 2003, our Common Stock has been listed for trading on the American Stock Exchange. Prior to that date, our Common Stock traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin
Board ("OTC") for the periods indicated below. The following table shows, for the periods indicated, the high and low bid information for our Common Stock which reflects inter-
dealer prices, without retail markup, markdown or commission, and may not represent actual transactions.

 Fiscal Year Ended

 December 31,

 2003  2002

 Quarter  High  Low  High  Low

 First  3.80 2.80 3.40 2.55

 Second  5.30 3.70 3.60 3.20

 Third  5.15 3.80 3.35 2.26

 Fourth  6.45 5.00 2.90 2.35

Stockholders 

As of April 2, 2004, we had 824 record holders of our Common Stock.

Dividends 

We are a holding company and, accordingly, our ability to pay cash dividends on our Preferred Stock and our Common Stock depends in large part on our ability to obtain funds from
our subsidiaries. The ability of ClimaChem (which owns substantially all of the companies comprising the Climate Control Business and Chemical Business) and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries to pay dividends and to make distributions to us is restricted by certain covenants contained in the Working Capital Revolver Loan to which they are parties.

Under the terms of the Working Capital Revolver Loan, ClimaChem cannot transfer funds to us in the form of cash dividends or other distributions or advances, except for (a) the
amount of income taxes that ClimaChem would be required to pay if they were not consolidated with us and (b) an amount not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of ClimaChem's cumulative
net income from January 1, 1998 through the end of the period for which the calculation is made for the purpose of proposing a payment, and (c) the amount of direct and indirect
costs and expenses incurred by us on behalf of ClimaChem pursuant to a certain services agreement and a certain management agreement between us and ClimaChem. See Item 7
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations".

Holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends only if and when declared by our Board of Directors. No cash dividends may be paid on our Common Stock until all
required dividends are paid on the outstanding shares

-18-

of our Preferred Stock, or declared and amounts set apart for the current period, and, if cumulative, prior periods.

As of December 31, 2003, we have issued and outstanding, 623,550 shares of $3.25 Convertible Exchangeable Class C Preferred Stock, Series 2 ("Series 2 Preferred"), 1,000,000
shares of Series D Cumulative Convertible Class C Preferred Stock ("Series D Preferred"), 1,084 shares of a series of Convertible Non Cumulative Preferred Stock ("Non Cumulative
Preferred Stock") and 20,000 shares of Series B 12% Convertible, Cumulative Preferred Stock ("Series B Preferred"). Each share of Preferred Stock is entitled to receive an annual
dividend, if and when declared by our Board of Directors, payable as follows: (a) Series 2 Preferred at the annual rate of $3.25 a share payable quarterly in arrears on March 15,
June 15, September 15 and December 15, which dividend is cumulative, (b) Series D Preferred at the rate of $.06 a share payable on October 9, which dividend is cumulative but
will be paid only after accrued and unpaid dividends are paid on the Series 2 Preferred, (c) Non Cumulative Preferred Stock at the rate of $10.00 a share payable April 1, which
are non-cumulative and (d) Series B Preferred at the rate of $12.00 a share payable January 1, which dividend is cumulative. 

Due to our previous operating losses and our subsidiaries limited borrowing ability under the credit facility then in effect, our Board of Directors discontinued payment of cash
dividends on our Common Stock for periods subsequent to January 1, 1999, until our Board of Directors determines otherwise. Also due to our previous operating losses and our
liquidity position, we have not declared or paid the regular quarterly dividends of $.8125 on our outstanding Series 2 Preferred since June 15, 1999. In addition, we did not
declare or pay the regular annual dividend of $12.00 on the Series B Preferred since 1999. 

No dividends or other distributions, other than dividends payable in Common Stock, shall be declared or paid, and no purchase, redemption or other acquisition shall be made, by
us in connection with any shares of Common Stock until all cumulative and unpaid dividends on the Series 2 Preferred, Series D Preferred and Series B Preferred shall have been
paid. As of December 31, 2003, the aggregate amount of unpaid dividends in arrears on our Series 2 Preferred, Series D Preferred and Series B Preferred totaled approximately $9.1
million, $.1 million and $1 million, respectively. We do not anticipate having funds available to pay dividends on our stock (Common or Preferred) for the foreseeable future.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

 Years ended December 31,

 2003  2002  2001  2000  1999

 (Dollars in Thousands, except per share data)

Selected Statement of Operations Data:

  Net sales (1) (2) $ 317,263  $ 283,811  $ 314,942  $ 272,668  $ 237,369 
  Interest expense (1) (4) $ 5,559  $ 7,590  $ 13,338  $ 14,707  $ 14,497 
  Income (loss) from continuing operations before
   cumulative effect of accounting change (1) (3) $ 3,111

 
$ 2,700

  
$ 7,330

 
$ 7,969

 
$ (32,863)



  Net income (loss) $ 3,111  $ 99  $ 8,557  $ 6,195  $ (49,767)

  Net income (loss) applicable to common stock
$ 784

 
$ (2,228)

 
$ 6,290

  
$ 3,424

 
$ (52,995)

  Income (loss) per common share applicable to common
   stock:                    
     Basic:

      Income (loss) from continuing operations before 
       cumulative effect of accounting change $ ..06 $ ..03 $ ..43 $ ..44 $ (3.05)
      Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net

$ - -
 

$ (.29)
 

$ ..10
 

$ (.15)
 

$ (1.43)
  Net income (loss) $ .06 $ (.19) $ .53 $ .29 $ (4.48)

    Diluted:

     Income (loss) from continuing operations before
      cumulative effect of accounting change $ ..05 $ ..03 $ ..41 $ ..43 $ (3.05)
     Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net $ - $ (.29) $ .09 $ (.14) $ (1.43)

     Net income (loss) $ .05 $ (.19) $ .50 $ .29 $ (4.48)

1. Amounts are shown excluding balances related to businesses disposed.

2. Net sales for 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 include $45.5 million, $33.4 million, $35.9 million and $7.1 million, respectively, associated with a subsidiary's operation of the
Cherokee Facility acquired in October 2000.

3. Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of accounting change includes gains on sales of property and equipment of $6.6 million for 2001 and gains
on extinguishment of debt of $1.5 million, $2.6 million and $20.1 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively.

4. In the second quarter of 2002, the repurchase of Senior Unsecured Notes using proceeds from a Financing Agreement was accounted for as a voluntary debt restructuring. As a
result, all interest payments associated with the Financing Agreement debt since that date have been recognized against the unrecognized gain on the transaction.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (CONTINUED)

 Years ended December 31,

 2003  2002  2001  2000  1999

 (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Balance Sheet Data:                    
   Total assets (1) $ 158,294  $ 162,782  $ 179,838  $ 193,989  $ 189,278 
Redeemable preferred stock $ 103  $ 111  $ 123  $ 139  $ 139 
Long-term debt, including current portion (2) $ 103,275  $ 113,361  $ 131,620  $ 134,980  $ 157,077 
Stockholders' equity (deficit) $ 5,681  $ 503  $ (1,962)  $ (9,442)  $ (14,173 )

Selected other data:                    
   Cash dividends declared per common share $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 

(1) Certain reclassifications have been made in our consolidated balance sheets for previous years to conform to our consolidated balance sheet presentation for December 31,
2003.

(2)Amounts are shown excluding balances related to businesses disposed of.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with a review of our December 31, 2003
Consolidated Financial Statements, Item 6 "Selected Financial Data" and Item 1 "Business" included elsewhere in this report.

Certain statements contained in this "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations" may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. See
"Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

All discussions below relate to our continuing operations and accordingly exclude the discontinued operations sold in 2002. See Note 17 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Overview 

General

We are a diversified holding company and, as a result, depend on credit agreements and our ability to obtain funds from our subsidiaries in order to pay our obligations. Our
wholly-owned subsidiary, ClimaChem, through its subsidiaries, owns substantially all of our core businesses consisting of the Climate Control and Chemical Businesses.
Historically, ClimaChem's primary cash needs have been for operating expenses, working capital and capital expenditures. ClimaChem and its subsidiaries depend on credit
agreements, internally generated cash flows, and secured equipment financing in order to fund operations and pay obligations.

ClimaChem is restricted as to the funds that it may transfer to us, the non-ClimaChem companies and certain ClimaChem companies under its Financing Agreement and Working Capital
Revolver Loan.

The Climate Control Business has significant market share in its niche of the United States commercial and residential heating ventilation and air conditioning "HVAC" business.
Most of their products have proprietary aspects and are produced to customer orders that are placed well in advance of required delivery dates. As a result, the Climate Control
Business carries significant back logs that eliminate the necessity to carry substantial inventories other than for firm customer orders. The Climate Control Business has
historically generated consistent annual profits and positive cash flows. 

During 2002 and 2003, the Climate Control Business' profitability was reduced by start-up costs and losses of certain new product lines. In 2004, the emphasis will be to increase
the sales of these start-up operations, getting them past the start-up mode and into an operating profit. During 2003, the Climate Control Business' profitability has also been
adversely impacted by the reduced demand for hydronic fan coils caused by a slowdown in the hospitality and lodging industry. Construction industry forecasts predict that new
hotel construction starts and renovation will increase during 2004.

The Climate Control Business' objectives include the continued emphasis on increasing the sales and operating margins of existing products and on new product development.
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The Chemical Business is primarily a nitrogen business. The primary raw material feedstocks (anhydrous ammonia and natural gas) are commodities, subject to significant price
fluctuations and are purchased at prices in effect at time of purchase. The cost of the raw material feedstock is usually decoupled from the sales price of the Company's
products. The spot prices of agricultural nitrogen products generally begin to drop as more production is pushed into the market.

A problem with profitability in the spot price market has been an imbalance of supply and demand. For a number of years, the production capacity for prilled ammonium nitrate has
exceeded the demand, resulting in low selling prices compared to the cost of production. As a result of certain plant closures in our geographical markets and an overall
reduction in the world grain stocks-to-use ratio, current selling prices are relatively strong. In summary, the balance of supply vs. demand has improved in 2004.

Due to the uncertainty of the spot sales price, management has pursued a strategy of developing customers that purchase substantial quantities of products pursuant to contracts
and/or formulas that provide for the full pass through of costs plus a profit margin. 

The Chemical Business' nitrogen plants are volume sensitive. The majority of the costs to operate the plants are fixed costs. Production has to be maintained at a level to fully
absorb the fixed operating costs.

The Chemical Business has historically required significant investment to fund capital expenditures. We have carefully managed those expenditures to projects necessary to execute
our business plans and those for environmental and safety compliance.

The Chemical Business will continue to pursue the strategy of:

selling products on a basis whereby the customer accepts the risk of price volatility of anhydrous ammonia and natural gas,

running the plants at optimum rates of production to more fully absorb fixed overhead costs, and

where possible, hedge raw materials to try to optimize the profit or manage the risk of our products that are sold at spot prices.

ClimaChem's operations are largely dependent upon a positive cash flow from operations and borrowing availability under the working capital revolver. Cash flow and liquidity will
continue to be managed very carefully with close oversight by corporate executives. In 2004, management will begin the process of renegotiating the working capital revolver which
matures in April 2005. We have maintained compliance with all loan covenants and expect to continue to do so.

Although we believe we will have adequate liquidity to meet our obligations in the near future, during 2003 and the first few months of 2004, management continued its efforts to
improve our financial position. We have recently selected an investment banker to serve as our financial advisor and are exploring alternatives to improve our liquidity,
including additional debt through a debt placement. See "Liquidity and Capital Resources" for further discussion.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As discussed above, we depend on credit agreements and our ability to obtain funds from our subsidiaries in order to pay our obligations. Our Summit Machine Tool Manufacturing
Corp. subsidiary (not a subsidiary of ClimaChem) finances its working capital requirements through borrowings under a credit facility ("Facility") with a different lender than
ClimaChem's lender. The Facility provides a revolving line of credit of $650,000 and has a maturity date of February 22, 2005. 

ClimaChem's ability to maintain an adequate amount of borrowing availability under its existing working capital revolver depends on its ability to comply with the terms and
conditions of such agreement, the lender's commitment to making the facility available to us and cash flow from operations, investing activities and required debt service.



As discussed in Note 6 (A) and (B) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, ClimaChem is restricted under its credit agreements as to the funds that it may transfer to us
and our affiliates. This limitation does not prohibit payment of amounts due under a Services Agreement, Management Agreement and a Tax Sharing Agreement.

As of December 31, 2003, ClimaChem had cash and working capital availability of $12.1 million while non-ClimaChem entities had cash and working capital availability of $.5
million.

Management's plan for 2004 forecasts that we will have adequate cash in 2004 from internal cash flows and financing sources to enable us to satisfy our cash requirements. Certain
key initiatives and assumptions include:

building on our successful Climate Control Business with an emphasis on our energy-saving geothermal product line, an upturn in the hospitality and lodging industry and

improving our operating results in our start-up businesses,

controlling our costs through negotiated cost reductions and improving productivity,

continuing to move our Chemical Business toward cost-plus type arrangements with customers to minimize the risk of raw material price volatility,

maximizing the production from our existing plants to minimize the effect of unabsorbed fixed operating costs,

taking advantage of opportunities in the market presented by the closure of certain nitrogen plants that previously moved product into our markets, and

limiting capital expenditures to only those projects essential to the execution of our business plan, or those with potentially high return on investment that can be

financed.

The Climate Control Business has significant market share in its niche of the United States commercial and residential HVAC business. Climate Control's two primary product lines
are hydronic fan coils and water source heat pumps. The Climate Control Business has historically generated consistent profits and cash flow although their profitability was
lower in 2003 due to the impact of reduced demand for hydronic fan coils nationally (sales of hydronic fan coils represented approximately 40% of the Climate Control Business'
revenues in 2003) caused by a slowdown in the hospitality and lodging
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industry attributed to the events of September 11, 2001 and the subsequent reduction of travel. Construction industry forecasts predict that new hotel construction starts and
renovation will increase during 2004. The water source heat pump product line, which represented 51% of Climate Control's revenues experienced a 5% growth in 2003 and is planning
additional growth in 2004. A recent addition to the product offering is the large custom air handler product line, which accounted for approximately 7% of Climate Control's
revenue. Included in Climate Control's operating results are certain start-up operations and/or services that have adversely affected operating results in recent periods. We
believe that we have significantly strengthened the sales and marketing infrastructure of these start-up operations during the last two years and expect growth in sales and near
break even results compared to aggregate operating losses of approximately $4.2 million in 2003 of these start-up operations.

The Chemical Business is primarily a nitrogen business with plants in Arkansas, Alabama and Texas, that serve markets which, for the most part, are freight logical to these
locations. The primary raw material feedstocks (anhydrous ammonia and natural gas) are commodities, subject to significant price fluctuations and are purchased at prices in
effect at time of purchase. The cost of the raw material feedstocks does not directly influence the sales price of our Chemical Business products. Currently, approximately 38% of
the sales of the Chemical Business, primarily agricultural nitrogen products, are sold at the spot market price in effect at the time of shipment. The spot market sales price
does not always provide for a full recovery of raw material costs incurred. As a result, management has pursued a strategy of developing customers that purchase substantial
quantities of products pursuant to contracts and/or formulas that provide for the full pass through of costs plus a profit margin. Currently, approx imately 62% of the sales of
the Chemical Business are based upon a formula of cost plus a profit margin. We expect similar arrangements in 2004. These cost-plus arrangements help to reduce our raw material
price exposure.

The recent problem with profitability in the agricultural market has been an imbalance of supply and demand. The production capacity for prilled ammonium nitrate for a number of
years has exceeded the demand, resulting in low selling prices compared to the cost of production. This oversupply in the market of agricultural nitrogen products of the kind we
produce has resulted in an inability to pass through the full natural gas and ammonia cost increases when they occur. We believe that in 2004 there will be some improvement in
this imbalance condition. We currently believe that with the shut down of several nitrogen-based competitors in recent periods and stable imports, the market has achieved a
reduction in the oversupply of product relative to demand. In summary, we are expecting stronger sales prices in 2004 due to the improved supply/demand balance. 

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate the product lines of the operations of our chemical plants for profitability consistent with management's goal to minimize the negative impact
that changing prices of natural gas and anhydrous ammonia have on our sales and operating results. Management's plan for 2004 anticipates that the industrial-grade products that
are sold pursuant to long-term cost-plus agreements will continue in 2004 at or about the same volume levels as in 2003. We expect that the 2004 production levels for nitrogen
products sold as fertilizers into the agricultural markets will approximate the 2003 production levels but the sales as expressed in dollars will be higher due to correspondingly
higher unit sales prices. Due to the volatility of sales prices and the costs of feedstocks (anhydrous ammonia and
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natural gas) it is difficult to predict whether or not the sales of nitrogen products sold as fertilizer into the agricultural markets (approximately 38% of our sales) will be
profitable for 2004. 

Effective January 20, 2004, the Chemical Business and its ammonia supplier entered into a new supply agreement whereby the supplier will sell to the Chemical Business' El Dorado
Facility all of its ammonia requirements through December 31, 2004.

Our Chemical Business has historically required significant investment to fund capital expenditures while our Climate Control Business has been much less capital intensive. We
believe we have approximately $6 million of committed capital expenditures related to our Chemical Business in 2004, which includes:

$1 million relating to the sulfuric acid plant at the El Dorado Facility,

$1.9 million primarily relating to the annual turnaround at the Cherokee Facility,

$2.6 million relating to operations, and

$.3 million for environmental compliance.

Other capital expenditures are believed to be discretionary and are dependent upon an adequate amount of liquidity and/or obtaining acceptable funding.

If the Discharge Water permit (See Item 1 "Business - Environmental Matters" and Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) for the El Dorado Facility is approved as
negotiated, if the City of El Dorado, Arkansas (the "City") builds its own discharge pipeline to a nearby river and if we are permitted to tie our pipeline into the City's
pipeline, we currently expect to incur capital expenditures of approximately $3 to $4 million over the next three years. Management is continuing to review the design and
configurations of treatment and discharge facilities to address the permitting issues. 

Also as discussed in Item 1 "Business - Environmental Matters" and Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, certain expenditures will be required to bring the
sulfuric acid plant's air emissions to lower limits. The design of additional emission controls at this plant is underway. The ultimate cost of any technological changes required
cannot presently be determined, but is believed to be a minimum of $1.5 million. These projects are expected to require funding over a six year period, beginning in 2004. 

Due to the Company and ClimaChem's previous operating losses and limited borrowing ability under the credit facility then in effect, we discontinued payment of cash dividends on
Common Stock for periods subsequent to January 1, 1999, until the Board of Directors determines otherwise. Although dividends on all of our outstanding series of preferred stock
are payable if and when declared by the Board of Directors, the terms of each outstanding series of preferred stock provide that dividends are cumulative, except for the
redeemable noncumulative convertible preferred stock as discussed in Item 5 - "Market for Company's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters" and Note 9 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. As of the date of this report, there is approximately $10.8 million of accrued and unpaid dividends

-26-

on our outstanding preferred stocks. We do not anticipate having funds available to pay dividends on our stock for the foreseeable future.

Management expects to utilize the net borrowing availability provided by the Working Capital Revolver Loan at a relatively high level during the spring agricultural season of
2004. After that period of high usage, the net borrowing is forecasted to decrease until the fourth quarter of 2004. Borrowing is expected to increase in the fourth quarter of
2004 as a result of funding the $10 million lease payment in December 2004 related to the Baytown Facility. This forecast is based upon information currently available. The
current outlook is subject to changes in economic conditions as well as market pricing of our products and costs of the various raw materials consumed.

During the first quarter of 2004, we expect to report approximately $1.9 million of other income from the sale of certain assets which were purchased in 2003.

In order to supplement the Working Capital Revolver Loan and the internally generated funds as sources to meet capital requirements and to refinance the Financing Agreement, we
have entered into an agreement with an investment banker (placement agent) to act as our financial advisor to, and initial purchaser for, us or our subsidiary, ClimaChem, in
connection with the structuring, issuance and sale of up to $90 million, or such other principal amount which is expected not to be less than $80 million as agreed to, of 10 year
senior secured notes ("Notes") in a private placement. The proposed Notes are not to be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), and may not be
offered or sold in the Unites States absent registration or pursuant to an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Act. If completed, the Notes will be
offered and sold only to qualified institutional buyers in reliance on Rule 144A of the Act. If completed, the net proceeds from the sale of the N otes will be used to repay a
substantial amount of our indebtedness, with the right to re-borrow under our outstanding Working Capital Revolver Loan and rights to incur certain other additional indebtedness.
This transaction is subject to numerous conditions being met. This does not constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy the proposed Notes.

Although the volatility of the Chemical Business is such that the forecasted results can fluctuate significantly, our cash flow forecasts indicate that there will be sufficient
liquidity to meet our obligations as they come due during 2004. However, actual results may be materially different than our forecasts and the resolution of outstanding
contingencies, as discussed in "Business - Environmental Matters", "Legal Proceedings" and Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, could have an impact on our
liquidity and future operating results. 

Longer-term liquidity is dependent upon new financing being available prior to maturity of the Working Capital Revolver Loan and Financing Agreement.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
disclosures of contingent
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liabilities. The more significant areas of financial reporting impacted by management's judgment, estimates and assumptions include the following:

Receivables and Credit Risk - Our sales to contractors and independent sales representatives are generally subject to a mechanics lien in the Climate Control Business. Our other
sales are generally unsecured. Credit is extended to customers based on an evaluation of the customer's financial condition and other factors. Credit losses are provided for in
the financial statements based on historical experience and periodic assessment of outstanding accounts receivable, particularly those accounts which are past due (determined
based upon how recently payments have been received). Our periodic assessment of accounts and credit loss provisions are based on our best estimate of amounts that are not
recoverable. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the large number of customers comprising our customer bases and their dispersion
across many different industries and geographic areas. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, our trade accounts receivable were net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $3.2 million
and $2.4 million, respectively.

Inventory Valuations - Inventories are priced at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined using the first-in, first-out basis, except for certain heat pump
products which are carried at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined using the last-in, first-out basis. The carrying value of certain nitrogen-based inventories
produced by our Chemical Business was reduced to the market price. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the difference between current cost and the market price was $.6 million and
$1.2 million, respectively.



Impairment of Long-Lived Assets including Goodwill - We have considered impairment of our long-lived assets and related goodwill related to our Chemical operations as a result of
unfavorable operating results over the last several years. We obtained third party appraisals of the fair values associated with the El Dorado and Cherokee Facilities and made
estimates of fair values for others. The timing of impairments cannot be predicted with any certainty and are primarily dependent on market conditions outside our control. Should
sales prices drop dramatically without a similar decline in the raw material costs or should other matters, including the environmental requirements and/or operating requirements
set by Federal and State agencies change substantially from our current expectations, a provision for impairment may be required based upon such event or events. See Item 1
"Business-Environmental Matters." 

Compliance with Long-Term Debt Covenants - As fully discussed in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, the Financing Agreement and Working Capital Revolver Loan,
as amended, of ClimaChem and its subsidiaries require that ClimaChem meet certain lender defined earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA")
and capital expenditure limitation amounts quarterly, on a trailing twelve-month basis and annually achieve a specified fixed charge coverage ratio. ClimaChem's forecasts for
2004 indicate that ClimaChem will be able to meet all required covenant tests for all quarters and the year ending in December 2004.

In addition, the Working Capital Revolver Loan contains "a material adverse change in operating results or financial condition" provision which is construed to be a subjective
acceleration clause. Our ability to realize our assets and discharge our liabilities is dependent upon, among other things, the lender not exercising its rights under the
subjective acceleration clause and our ability to successfully meet the EBITDA covenants for 2004 and beyond. As a result of the subjective
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acceleration clause, our outstanding borrowings under the Working Capital Revolver Loan are classified as due within one year in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Environmental and Regulatory Compliance - As fully discussed in Item 1 "Business-Environmental Matters", the Chemical Business is subject to specific federal and state regulatory
and environmental compliance laws and guidelines. We have developed policies and procedures related to environmental and regulatory compliance. We must continually monitor
whether we have maintained compliance with such laws and regulations and the operating implications, if any, and amount of penalties, fines and assessments that may result from
noncompliance. We have entered into a settlement agreement with the Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality ("ADEQ") relating to the NPDES water discharge permit at the El
Dorado Facility through various site modification projects currently underway and other projects acceptable to the ADEQ. We currently estimate that the site modification projects
will cost approximately $3 - $4 million, assuming the City of El Dorado, Arkansas (the "City") builds its own discharge pipelin e to a nearby river and we are permitted to tie
our pipeline into the City's pipeline. We do not have any reliable estimates of the cost of an alternative solution in the event that the pipeline is not ultimately built by the
City.

In addition, the state of Arkansas and EDC have entered into negotiations in an attempt to compromise and resolve a potential dispute as to what regulations should apply to EDC's
sulfuric acid plant. These negotiations have resulted in drafting language in the draft Air CAO that would resolve any possible regulatory violations associated with the sulfuric
acid plant through the implementation of additional emission controls at that plant. Based on the enforcement director of the applicable state agency request, EDC has provided to
the state a report on technology alternatives. The ultimate cost of any technology changes required cannot presently be determined, but is believed to cost between $1.5 million
to $3 million. The timing of the implementation of any technological change is not known, however, it is our belief that such expenditures will be made over the next 3 to 6 years
(See "Business Environmental Matters"). 

Asset Retirement Obligations - If we should decide to no longer operate the El Dorado Facility and if such facility is retired, we may be required to continue to operate
equipment relating to discharge water, the cost and timing of which is presently unknown.

Income Tax Accruals Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes, and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of
the deferred tax asset will not be realized. We are able to realize deferred tax assets up to an amount equal to the future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences.
The taxable temporary differences will turn around in the loss carry forward period as the differences reverse. Other differences will turn around as the assets are realized or
liabilities are paid in the normal course of business. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, our deferred tax assets were net of a valuation allowance of $28.3 million and $28.6
million, respectively (See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).
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Contingencies - We are a party to various litigation and other contingencies, the ultimate outcome of which is not presently known. Should the ultimate outcome of these
contingencies be adverse, such could create an event of default under ClimaChem's Working Capital Revolver Loan and the Financing Agreement and could adversely impact our
liquidity and capital resources. 

Revenue Recognition - We recognize revenue for substantially all of our operations at the time title to the goods transfers to the buyer and there remains no significant future
performance obligations by us. If revenue relates to construction contracts, we recognize revenue using the percentage-of-completion method based primarily on contract costs
incurred to date compared with total estimated contract costs. Changes to total estimated contract costs or losses, if any, are recognized in the period in which they are
determined.

Management's judgment and estimates in these areas are based on information available from internal and external resources at that time. Actual results could differ materially
from these estimates and judgments, as additional information becomes known. Our significant accounting policies are discussed in greater detail in Note 2 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Transactions with Related Parties

As discussed in Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we, through our subsidiaries, entered into loan agreements where we loaned funds to the parent company of
Multi Clima, S.A. ("Multi Clima") from 1994 through 1997. One of our subsidiaries has the option, which expires June 15, 2005, to exchange its rights under the loan agreements
for 100% of the borrower's outstanding common stock. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the outstanding notes receivable balance, net of reserve, was $2.6 million which is included
in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In addition, certain of our subsidiaries owed Multi Clima $.5 million and $.8 million at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively, for purchases of HVAC equipment. For 2003, 2002 and 2001, purchases of HVAC equipment from Multi Clima were $.5 million, $1.8 million and $1.1 million,
respectively.
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Results of Operations

As discussed in Note 18 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, our Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the operations of two of our subsidiaries, Slurry Explosive
Corporation ("Slurry") and Universal Technology Corporation ("UTeC"), as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Therefore, the operations of Slurry and UTeC are
excluded from the results of our Chemical Business. The following table contains certain information about our continuing operations in different industry segments for each of
the three years ended December 31:

 2003  2002  2001

 (In thousands)

Net sales:            
   Climate Control $ 119,032  $ 128,128  $ 138,435 
   Chemical (1)  193,770   151,358   170,092 
   Other (2)  4,461   4,325   6,415 
 $ 317,263  $ 283,811  $ 314,942 
            
Gross profit: (3)            
   Climate Control $ 35,737  $ 37,454  $ 37,890 
   Chemical (1) (4)  12,204   6,207   11,007 
   Other  1,491   1,332   1,877 
 $ 49,432  $ 44,993  $ 50,774 
            
Operating profit (loss): (5)            
   Climate Control $ 11,736  $ 14,705  $ 12,500 
   Chemical (1) (4)  3,754   (204)   3,702 
  15,490   14,501   16,202 
            
General corporate expense and other business
 operations, net

 
(6,578)

  
(5,950)

  
(7,358)

Interest expense  (5,559)   (7,590)   (13,338)

Gains on sales of property and equipment  -   47   6,615 
Gains on extinguishment of debt  258   1,458   2,631 
Provision for impairment on long-lived assets  (500)   -   - 
Benefit from termination of firm purchase commitments
 - Chemical

 
- -
   

290
  

2,688
 

Income from continuing operations before provision 
 for income taxes and cumulative effect of
 accounting change $ 3,111

  
$ 2,756

 
 

$ 7,440

            
    
(1 )  In April 2002, a portion of the El Dorado Facility experienced damage from high winds and a

likely tornado. Plant management and engineers surveyed the damage which affected the
production facilities for ammonium nitrate, certain acid plants, a large cooling tower, and
other equipment. The repairs were completed in 2002. During the repair time, we were not able
to produce industrial grade ammonium nitrate until the middle of May 2002. Production of our
other products, agricultural grade ammonium nitrate and industrial acids, continued without
material interruption. Our property insurance covering the chemical plant entitled us to
receive approximate replacement value for the damaged
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property less an aggregate $1 million deductible. We also had a thirty-day waiting period
before our business interruption insurance coverage became effective. In October of 2002, a
final settlement of $2.5 million, net of the $1 million deductible, was reached for the
property and business interruption insurance claims. The net proceeds relating to our property
insurance claim exceeded the cash expenditures for repairs and the depreciated value of the
damaged assets. As a result, a net gain relating to property damage of approximately $1.4
million is classified as other income and a business interruption insurance recovery of
approximately $.3 million is classified as a reduction of cost of sales and is included in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for 2002.

    
(2 )  Excludes intersegment sales to Climate Control of $371,000 for 2001. There were minimal

intersegment sales in 2003 and 2002.

    
(3 )  Gross profit by industry segment represents net sales less cost of sales.

    
(4 )  During 2003, a cost recovery was recognized of $1.6 million of precious metals used in the

manufacturing process at the El Dorado Facility for metals accumulated from several operating
units over the last several years. During 2002 and 2001, we wrote down the carrying value of
certain nitrogen-based inventories by $.9 million and $.3 million, respectively. In addition,
we recognized a loss on firm sales commitments of $.1 million and $.7 million in 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

    
(5 )  Operating profit by industry segment represents net sales less operating expenses before adding

or deducting general corporate expense and other business operations, interest expense, gains
on sales of property and equipment, gains on extinguishment of debt, benefit from termination
of (provision for loss on) firm sales and purchase commitments, income taxes, results from
discontinued operations and cumulative effect of accounting change.
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Year Ended December 31, 2003 vs. Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net Sales

Net sales for 2003 were $317.3 million compared to $283.8 million for 2002 or an increase of $33.5 million. This increase is attributed to increased sales in our Chemical
Business of $42.4 million caused primarily by the increased cost of the raw material feedstock, as discussed elsewhere, which resulted in higher sales prices. Sales prices
increased overall by 25% in 2003 while volume of tons sold increased 4%. The increased cost of the raw material feedstock is substantially reflected in the higher cost of sales.
The increase in sales in the Chemical Business was partially offset by decreased sales of $9.1 million in our Climate Control Business due largely to the decrease in sales of our
hydronic fan coil products as a result of a softening in demand primarily in the lodging sector market. 

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $49.4 million or 15.6% as a percentage of net sales for 2003, compared to $45 million or 15.9% for 2002. The increase in gross profit is due primarily to our
Chemical Business caused, in part, to the improvement in our ability to pass on to our customers in the form of higher sales prices the effect of the increased costs of our
primary raw material feedstocks (natural gas and anhydrous ammonia) as discussed in "Liquidity and Capital Resources." In addition, we follow the practice of expensing precious
metals used as a catalyst in the Chemical Business manufacturing processes as they are used, because the amount and timing of recovery is not predictable. Periodically, we
recover a portion of the amount previously expensed. During 2003, a recovery of $1.6 million also contributed to an increase in gross profit. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expenses were $41.7 million for 2003, compared to $39.4 million for 2002. The increase is primarily the result of increased shipping
and handling costs of the Climate Control Business and costs relating to insurance.

Other Income

Other income was $1.8 million for 2003 compared to $3.5 million for 2002. Other income for 2002 includes the recognition of $1.5 million from a property insurance claim.

Gains on Extinguishment of Debt

As discussed in Notes 6 and 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, in December 2002, we sold the remaining assets that comprised all of the explosives manufacturing
and distribution business. Approximately $3.5 million of the sales proceeds were used as a prepayment on borrowings under a Financing Agreement entered into in May 2002. Due to
this prepayment, ClimaChem recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of $1.5 million representing accrued interest through maturity on the prepaid principal.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense was $5.6 million in 2003 compared to $7.6 million in 2002. The decrease of $2 million primarily resulted from the elimination of interest expense recognition on
the Financing Agreement indebtedness, since that transaction for the repurchase of Senior Unsecured Notes was accounted for as a voluntary debt restructuring during the second
quarter of 2002 and at that time all future interest payments associated with the Financing Agreement indebtedness were recognized in long-term debt.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

As discussed in Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, in December 2002, the remaining assets that comprised all of the explosives manufacturing and distribution
business of Slurry and UTeC were sold which operations are reflected as discontinued operations. These operations were formerly included in the Chemical Business. The loss from
discontinued operations of $3.5 million for 2002 is net of a gain on disposal of $1.6 million. 

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

Upon adoption of Statement No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" on January 1, 2002, we recognized $.9 million of negative goodwill as a cumulative effect of accounting
change for 2002.

Year ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2001

Net Sales

Net sales for 2002 were $283.8 million compared to $314.9 million for 2001 or a decrease of $31.1 million. The decrease in sales resulted primarily from decreased sales in our
Chemical Business of $18.7 million resulting from (a) a decrease in sales of mining products of $17.7 million resulting primarily from the elimination of certain products
subsequent to the sale of all of its distribution centers for mining products in October 2001, (b) lower sales prices, due primarily to lower cost of the raw material feedstock
which is passed through to the sales prices, (c) an over-supply of agricultural products within the market we serve and (d) the reduction in volume of industrial grade ammonium
nitrate due to the business interruption at the El Dorado Facility plant in April 2002. Our Climate Control Business sales were lower by approximately $10.3 million resulting
principally from the elimination of an unprofitable product line during the fourth quarter of 2001 and a reduction in volume of hydronic fan coil a nd water source heat pump
products, due in part, to a general softening in demand from the markets we serve.

Gross Profit

Gross profit was $45 million or 15.9% as a percentage of net sales for 2002, compared to $50.8 million or 16.1% for 2001. The profit margins in our Climate Control Business
improved, due in part, to the elimination of certain low-margin products during the fourth quarter of 2001 and improved profit margins for the majority of remaining non-OEM
products resulting from a combination of price increases and cost reductions. This improvement was offset by lower profit margins in our Chemical Business due primarily to (a)
the effect of the business interruption at the El Dorado Facility which
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lasted approximately 50 days, (b) a decrease in profit margins relating to agricultural products, due in part, to an over supply within our market, (c) a loss recognized on firm
sales commitments and (d) the increase in the amount of inventory write-downs due to the costs of certain products exceeding the actual sales prices. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expenses were $39.4 million for 2002, compared to $43.6 million for 2001. This decrease is primarily the result of the reduction of
expenses relating to the elimination of certain low-margin products in our Climate Control Business and our non-core businesses during 2001.

Other Income

Other income for 2002 includes the recognition of $1.5 million from the recovery of property insurance. Other income for 2001 includes the recovery of $1.1 million of precious
metals and the recognition of $.5 million from the recovery of property insurance.

Gains on Sales of Property and Equipment

For 2001, we recognized gains on sales of property and equipment of $6.6 million (the amount for 2002 was minimal). The gain in 2001 includes $3.3 million from the sale of the
Crystal City Plant site and $2.7 million from the sale of distribution sites for mining products.

Gains on Extinguishment of Debt

As discussed above, in December 2002, we sold the remaining assets that comprised all of the explosives manufacturing and distribution business. Approximately $3.5 million of the
sales proceeds were used as a prepayment on borrowings under a Financing Agreement entered into in May 2002. Due to this prepayment, ClimaChem recognized a gain on extinguishment
of debt of $1.5 million representing accrued interest through maturity on the prepaid principal.

During 2001, ClimaChem repurchased Senior Unsecured Notes having a face value of $4.7 million and recognized a gain of $2.6 million.



Benefit from Termination of Firm Purchase Commitments

We had a gain of $.3 million on firm purchase commitments for 2002 compared to $2.7 million for 2001. 

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $7.6 million in 2002 compared to $13.3 million in 2001. The decrease of $5.7 million primarily resulted from the elimination of interest expense recognition
on the Financing Agreement indebtedness, (as that transaction was accounted for as a voluntary debt restructuring during the second quarter of 2002), the repurchase of Senior
Unsecured Notes during the third quarter of 2001, lower interest rates and the decrease in borrowings from our revolving credit facilities.
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Income from Continuing Operations before Provision for Income Taxes and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 

As a result of the items discussed above, we had income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change of $2.8 million
for 2002 compared to income of $7.4 million for 2001. Our Climate Control Business reported a substantial increase in operating results for 2002 compared to 2001. Our Chemical
Business reported a significant decline in operating results in 2002 as compared to 2001 due to selling prices for agricultural products decreasing more than the cost of raw
material feedstock and the business interruption losses incurred relating to the storm damage as discussed above.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

As discussed above, in December 2002, the remaining assets that comprised all of the explosives manufacturing and distribution business were sold which operations are reflected
as discontinued operations. These operations were formerly included in the Chemical Business. The loss from discontinued operations of $3.5 million for 2002 is net of a gain on
disposal of $1.6 million. For 2001, we recognized income from discontinued operations of $1.2 million.

Cash Flow From Operations 

Historically, our primary cash needs have been for operating expenses, working capital and capital expenditures. We have financed our cash requirements primarily through
internally generated cash flow, borrowings under our revolving credit facilities, secured equipment financing and the sale of assets. See additional discussion concerning cash
flows from our Climate Control and Chemical Businesses in "Liquidity andCapital Resources." 

Net cash provided by continuing operating activities for 2003 was $13.2 million resulting primarily from operating cash flow and net cash provided from the change in accrued and
other noncurrent liabilities offset by an increase in accounts receivable and supplies and a decrease in accounts payable. The change in accrued and other noncurrent liabilities
is due primarily to the increase in the amount of customer deposits held and the increase in costs expected to be incurred in our planned major maintenance activities in our
Chemical Business. The increase in accounts receivable is a result of improved sales of our water source heat pumps and certain other HVAC products during the fourth quarter of
2003 offset, in part, by the decline in sales of our hydronic fan coil products in our Climate Control Business. The increase in supplies relates to an increase in cost of
precious metals used in the manufacturing process in the Chemical Business. The decrease in accounts payable relates primarily to the decrease i n the number of days our payables
were outstanding in our Chemical Business.

Cash Flow from Investing and Financing Activities 

Net cash used by investing activities for 2003 included $7.2 million for capital expenditures of which $5.7 million is for the benefit of our Chemical Business offset, in part,
by the release of $1.8 million held in a cash collateral account as discussed in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Net cash used in financing activities for 2003 included payments on long-term and other debt of $7.7 million and a net decrease in revolving debt of $3.4 million partially offset
by long-term and other borrowings of $1.9 million and proceeds from the issuance of common stock and warrants of $1.8 million. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Our aggregate contractual obligations as of December 31, 2003 are summarized in the following table. See discussion in "Liquidity and Capital Resources" and Notes 3, 6 an 8 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Payments Due in the Year Ending December 31,

Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter

 (in thousands)

Long-term debt:

  Working Capital Revolver Loan
(1)

$ 24,027 $ 24,027 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

  Senior Unsecured Notes due 2007 18,300 - - - 18,300 - -

  Financing Agreement due 2005 31,700 - 31,700 - - - -

  Accrued interest on Financing
   Agreement due 2005

  
11,295

   
3,384

    
7,911

       
- -
   

- -
   

- -
 

  Other 17,953 4,219 4,916 1,613 1,316 1,404 4,485

Total long-term debt 103,275 31,630 44,527 1,613 19,616 1,404 4,485

Operating leases:

  Baytown lease 48,708 13,001 2,250 8,175 9,227 11,173 4,882

  Other operating leases 11,410 2,494 1,515 1,066 830 691 4,814

Purchase obligations 7,625 2,384 953 953 953 953 1,429

Other long-term liabilities 4,139 - 675 705 687 593 1,479

Total $ 175,157 $ 49,509 $ 49,920 $ 12,512 $ 31,313 $ 14,814 $ 17,089

1. The Working Capital Revolver Loan is not due by its terms until April 2005; however, the underlying agreement contains "a material adverse change in operating results or
financial condition" provision which is construed to be a subjective acceleration clause. Therefore, the Loan is classified as due within one year at December 31, 2003 in

the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
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Loan Agreements - Terms and Conditions

As discussed in Note 6 (A) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, ClimaChem finances it working capital requirements through borrowings under a Working Capital Revolver
Loan that matures in April 2005. As of December 31, 2003, borrowings outstanding were $24 million and the net credit available for additional borrowings was $9.2 million. The
Working Capital Revolver Loan requires that ClimaChem and its Climate Control Business meet certain financial covenants. The required EBITDA amounts for each quarterly
measurement date in 2004 are $13.8 million for the trailing twelve months ended March 31, 2004 and escalate to $15 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The trailing
twelve-months EBITDA requirement is fixed at $10 million for the Climate Control Business for all 2004 quarterly measurement dates. The EBITDA requirements were set at amounts
based upon our forecasts which are presently considered by management to be achievable.

We have the ability to set our financial covenants under our lending agreements with our lender on an annual basis each January. In setting these covenants, we provide the
lenders with a forecast that we believe to be a very conservative estimate of our operating results for the coming year. For 2004, we have established mutually agreeable limits
that we believe are well within our ability to achieve.

ClimaChem's customers remit payments on their accounts directly to the working capital lender under a lock-box arrangement, and the lender applies such payments to reduce the
debt outstanding under the Working Capital Revolver Loan. ClimaChem may request additional borrowings under the Working Capital Revolver Loan; however, one of several conditions
(as determined by the lender) precedent to additional borrowings is that no "material adverse change" (as defined in the Working Capital Revolver Loan agreement) shall have
occurred. This provision in the Working Capital Revolver Loan agreement may allow the lender to terminate additional borrowings by ClimaChem and effectively accelerate the
scheduled maturity of the debt under conditions that may not be objectively determinable (the "Subjective Acceleration Clause"). Management does not anticipate that the lender
will invoke the Subjective Acceleration Clause. 

In the event the Company does not remain in compliance with the covenants and/or the lender exercises its rights under the Subjective Acceleration Clause in the Working Capital
Revolver Loan, thus terminating additional borrowings, ClimaChem would have no immediate borrowing availability. If a new lender arrangement was not available to fund obligations
as they become due, a significant curtailment of operations could occur. In that event, if the proceeds from sales of remaining inventories and collections of accounts receivable
of the businesses involved did not provide sufficient funds, ClimaChem could be required to sell other key assets. In that event, ClimaChem would be required to obtain working
capital financing from other sources for its remaining businesses. There are no assurances that we would be successful in replacing, on a timely basis, the Working Capital
Revolver Loan needed to fund ClimaChem's remaining operations.

As discussed in Note 6 (B) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, ClimaChem entered into a Financing Agreement that requires that ClimaChem and its Climate Control
Business meet certain financial covenants. For quarters ending after December 31, 2003, ClimaChem is required to maintain EBITDA on a trailing twelve-month basis of at least $12
million to prevent a triggering
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event ("Trigger Event). ClimaChem does not expect that a Trigger Event will occur in 2004. 



The Working Capital Revolver Loan agreement and the Financing Agreement contain cross-default provisions. If the Trigger Event occurs and/or ClimaChem fails to meet the other
financial covenants of the Financing Agreement, the lender may declare an event of default, making the debt due on demand. If this should occur, there are no assurances that we
would have funds available to pay such amount or that alternative borrowing arrangements would be available. Accordingly, ClimaChem could be required to curtail operations and/or
sell key assets as discussed above. These actions could result in the recognition of losses that may be material.

Availability of Company's Loss Carry-Overs 

For a discussion on our net operating loss carry-overs, see Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

General 

Our results of operations and operating cash flows are impacted by changes in market interest rates and changes in market prices of copper, steel, anhydrous ammonia and natural
gas.

Commodity Price Risk

Our Climate Control Business buys substantial quantities of copper and steel for use in manufacturing processes and our Chemical Business buys substantial quantities of anhydrous
ammonia and natural gas as feedstocks generally at market prices. Periodically, our Climate Control Business enters into exchange-traded futures for copper and steel, and our
Chemical Business enters into exchange-traded futures for natural gas, which contracts are generally accounted for on a mark-to-market basis. At December 31, 2003, the purchase
commitments under these contracts were for 300,000 MMBtu of natural gas through June 2004 at a weighted average cost of $4.77 per MMBtu ($1,431,000) and a weighted average market
value of $5.55 per MMBtu ($1,665,000).

Interest Rate Risk 

Our interest rate risk exposure results from our debt portfolio which is impacted by short-term rates, primarily prime rate-based borrowings from commercial banks, and long-term
rates, primarily fixed-rate notes, some of which prohibit prepayment or require substantial prepayment penalties.

The following table presents principal amounts and related weighted-average interest rates by maturity date for our interest rate sensitive financial instruments as of December
31, 2003.
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 YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31,  
 (Dollars in thousands)

 2004  2005  2006  2007  2008  THEREAFTER  TOTAL

Expected maturities of long-term
 debt:

                           
  Variable rate debt (1) $ 25,267  $ 1,471  $ 599  $ 614  $ 701  $ 740  $ 29,392 
   Weighted average                            
     interest rate (2)  5.62 %   4.58 %   4.61 %   4.97 %   5.22 %   5.12 %   5.52 %

  Fixed rate debt (3) $ 2,980  $ 35,144  $ 1,014  $ 19,002  $ 703  $ 3,745  $ 62,588 
   Weighted average                            
     interest rate (3)  12.95 %   12.10 %   9.81 %   9.36 %   6.62 %   6.55 %   10.88 %

1. The Working Capital Revolver Loan is not due by its terms until April 2005; however, the underlying agreement contains "a material adverse change in operating results or
financial condition" provision which is construed to be a subjective acceleration clause. Therefore, the Loan ($24,027 of this total) is classified as due within one year
at December 31, 2003 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

2. Interest rate is based on the aggregate amount of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2003. On ClimaChem's Working Capital Revolver Loan, the interest rate is based on the
lender's prime rate plus 2% per annum, or at its option, LIBOR plus 4.5% per annum.

3. The fixed rate debt and weighted average interest rate are based on the aggregate amount of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2003, excluding the accrued interest
classified as debt on a Financing Agreement due in 2005 as discussed in Note 6 (B) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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 December 31, 2003  December 31, 2002

 Estimated
Fair Value

 Carrying
Value

 Estimated
Fair Value

 Carrying
Value

 (in thousands)

Variable Rate:

Bank debt and equipment financing $ 29,392 $ 29,392 $ 32,831 $ 32,831

Fixed Rate:

Bank debt and equipment financing 13,727 12,588 17,346 15,874
Financing Agreement (including accrued
interest) due 2005 (1)

 
35,893

  
42,995

  
35,351

  
46,356

$ 79,012  84,975  85,528  95,061

Senior Unsecured Notes due 2007 (2) 18,300 7,320 18,300

$ 103,275 $ 92,848 $ 113,361

(1) In the second quarter of 2002, the repurchase of certain Senior Unsecured Notes using the proceeds from a Financing Agreement was accounted for as a voluntary debt
restructuring. As a result, all interest payments associated with the Financing Agreement indebtedness were accrued and classified as debt.

(2) Currently, there is no active market for the Senior Unsecured Notes due 2007. Therefore the fair value is not determinable. At December 31, 2002, estimated fair value was
based on market quotations.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

We have included the financial statements and supplementary financial information required by this item immediately following Part IV of this report and hereby incorporate by
reference the relevant portions of those statements and information into this Item 8.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the periodic reports filed by us with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "SEC") is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management. Based on their most recent evaluation, which was completed as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer believe that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended) do not contain material weaknesses and ensure that material information relating to us is made known to us by others within our consolidated entities. There
were no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these internal contro ls subsequent to the date of the most recent
evaluation.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained within this report may be deemed "Forward-Looking Statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements in this report other than statements of historical fact are Forward-Looking Statements that are
subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause actual results and performance of the Company to differ materially from such statements. The
words "believe", "expect", "anticipate", "intend", "will", and similar expressions identify Forward-Looking Statements. Forward-Looking Statements contained herein relate to,
among other things,

 the demand for our geothermal products will increase,

 the extensive network of wholesale and retail distribution centers for nitrogen-based
fertilizer provides geographic advantages,



 the impact on our hydronic fan coil operations due to the decline in major lodging construction
projects is not a long-term trend and will return to historical levels,

 the "E-2" brand ammonium nitrate fertilizer is recognized as a premium product,

 the agricultural products are the only seasonal products,

 competition within the Chemical and Climate Control Businesses is primarily based on price,
location of production and distribution sites, service, warranty and product performance,

 the market and revenues for commercial water source heat pumps will continue to grow,

 the backlog of confirmed orders for Climate Control products at December 31, 2003 will be
filled during 2004,

 construction industry forecasts predict that new hotel construction starts and renovation will
increase during 2004,

 similar cost-plus arrangements in 2004,

 as it relates to the Chemical Business, we will continue to sell products on a basis whereby
the customer accepts the risk of price volatility of anhydrous ammonia and natural gas, running
the plants at optimum rates, and where possible, hedge raw materials,

 we expect to obtain our requirements for steel in 2004, however, the current industry-wide
shortage of steel could result in increased costs to obtain our complete requirements. We
believe the majority of cost increases, if any, will be passed to our customers in the form of
higher prices and while we believe we will have sufficient materials, a shortage of steel could
impact production of Climate Control products. We do not expect to have any difficulties in
obtaining any other necessary materials for our Climate Control Business,

 EDC or its employees having a criminal exposure in the equalization pond matter,

 the anticipated consent order for Slurry will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company,

 the amount of committed capital expenditures related to our Chemical Business,

 amounts to be spent relating to compliance with federal, state and local environmental laws at
the El Dorado Facility including matters relating to the sulfuric acid plant,

 liquidity and availability of funds,

 anticipated financial performance,

 adequate cash in 2004 from internal cash flows and financing sources to
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meet our presently anticipated working capital requirements,
 

 adequate resources to meet our obligations as they come due,

 ability to make planned capital improvements,

 amount of and ability to obtain financing for the Discharge Water disposal project,

 under the terms of an agreement with a supplier, EDC purchasing 100% of its requirements of
purchased ammonia through December 31, 2004,

 under the terms of an agreement with a customer, EDC supplying this customer with approximately
190,000 tons of industrial grade ammonium nitrate per year through at least December 2006,

 under the terms of an agreement with a customer, our subsidiary supplying this customer its
requirements of 83% ammonium nitrate through at least September 2006,

 under the terms of an agreement, Bayer purchasing from EDNC all of its requirements for nitric
acid at its Baytown operation through at least May 2009,

 the 2004 production levels for nitrogen products sold as fertilizers will approximate the 2003
production levels, but with higher unit sales prices,

 the Working Capital Revolver lender will not invoke the Subjective Acceleration Clause,

 sales volume of industrial-grade products sold pursuant to long-term cost-plus agreements will
continue in 2004 at or about the same level as in 2003,

 a Trigger Event under the Financing Agreement will not occur in 2004,

 the Air CAO will be effective in the near term,

 ClimaChem's forecasts for 2004 for ClimaChem's operating results meeting all required covenant
tests for all quarters and the year ending in 2004,

 management anticipation that these contingent claims will result in no substantial adverse
impact on our operating results and/or liquidity,

 the permit governing the Discharge Water being revised provides appropriate credits and
effluent guidelines that are acceptable to EDC,

 the amount of additional expenditures required under the revised Discharge Water permit,

 EDC's ability to comply with the terms of the revised permit due to current liquidity and other
information,

 the amount of additional expenditures relating to the draft Air CAO,

 the good likelihood that Cherokee will recover monies from Dynegy over and above any monies
which may be recovered by the plaintiff or owed to Dynegy,

 Climate Control's start-up operations will increase sales and have near break even results,

 improvement in the imbalance of supply and demand in the agricultural market which will result
in stronger sales prices in 2004,

 management utilizing the net borrowing availability under the Working Capital Revolver at a
relatively high level during 2004,



 during the first quarter of 2004, we expect to report approximately $1.9 million of other
income from the sale of certain assets which were purchased in 2003, and

 the effects of, and what the Company anticipates it can do if, its Working Capital lender
decides not to continue to fund the Company's ClimaChem subsidiaries under it Working Capital
Revolver.

While we believe the expectations reflected in such Forward-Looking Statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance such expectations will prove to have been correct. There
are a variety of factors which could cause future outcomes to differ materially from those described in this
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 report, including, but not limited to,

 decline in general economic conditions, both domestic and foreign,

 material reduction in revenues,

 material increase in interest rates,

 ability to collect in a timely manner a material amount of receivables,

 increased competitive pressures,

 changes in federal, state and local laws and regulations, especially environmental
regulations, or in interpretation of such, pending,

 additional releases (particularly air emissions) into the environment,

 material increases in equipment, maintenance, operating or labor costs not presently
anticipated by us,

 the requirement to use internally generated funds for purposes not presently anticipated,

 the inability to secure additional financing for planned capital expenditures,

 the cost for the purchase of anhydrous ammonia and natural gas,

 changes in competition,

 the loss of any significant customer,

 changes in operating strategy or development plans,

 inability to fund the working capital and expansion of our businesses,

 adverse results in any of our pending litigation,

 inability to obtain necessary raw materials,

 inability to have the revised permit governing the Discharge Water finalized to comply with
legal guidelines that the El Dorado Facility will be able to meet,

 inability to obtain a replacement for its current working capital line if its working capital
lender terminates the Company's ability to borrow additional funds and effectively accelerates
its Working Capital Revolver, and

 other factors described in "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operation" contained in this report.

Given these uncertainties, all parties are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such Forward-Looking Statements. We disclaim any obligation to update any such factors or to
publicly announce the result of any revisions to any of the Forward-Looking Statements contained herein to reflect future events or developments.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

General The Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws of the Company provide for the division of the Board of Directors into three classes, each class consisting as nearly as
possible of one-third of the whole. The term of office of one class of directors expires each year, with each class of directors elected for a term of three years and until the
shareholders elect their qualified successors.

The Company's By-laws provide that the Board of Directors, by resolution from time to time, may fix the number of directors that shall constitute the whole Board of Directors.
The By-laws presently provide that the number of directors may consist of not less than 3 nor more than 12. As of the date of this report, the Board of Directors currently has
set the number of directors at 12.

The By-laws of the Company further provide that only persons nominated by or at the direction of: (a) the Board of Directors of the Company, or (b) any stockholder of the Company
entitled to vote for the election of the directors that complies with certain notice procedures, shall be eligible for election as a director of the Company. Any stockholder
desiring to nominate any person as a director of the Company must give written notice to the Secretary of the Company at the Company's principal executive office not less than 50
days prior to the date of the meeting of stockholders to elect directors; except, if less than 60 day's notice or prior disclosure of the date of such meeting is given to the
stockholders, then written notice by the stockholder must be received by the Secretary of the Company not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the day on
which such notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or such public disclosure was made. In addition, if the stockholder proposes to no minate any person, the stockholder's
written notice to the Company must provide all information relating to such person that the stockholder desires to nominate that is required to be disclosed in solicitation of
proxies pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Series 2 Preferred The terms of the $3.25 Convertible Exchangeable Class C Preferred Stock, Series 2 ("Series 2 Preferred") provide that whenever dividends on the Series 2
Preferred are in arrears and unpaid in an amount equal to at least six quarterly dividends: (a) the number of members of the Board of Directors of the Company shall be increased
by two effective as of the time of election of such directors; (b) the Company shall, upon the written request of the record holder of 10% of the shares of Series 2 Preferred,
call a special meeting of the Preferred Stockholders for the purpose of electing such two additional directors; and (c) the Preferred Stockholders have the exclusive right to
vote for and elect such two additional directors. In March 2002, the holders of the Company's Series 2 Preferred elected Dr. Allen Ford and Mr. Grant Donovan to serve as members
of the Company's Board of Directors pursuant to the terms of the Series 2 Preferred. 

The terms of the Series 2 Preferred provide that the right of the holders of the Series 2 Preferred to vote for such two additional directors shall terminate, subject to re-
vesting in the event of a subsequent similar arrearage, when all cumulative and unpaid dividends on the Series 2 Preferred have been declared and set apart for payment. Also,
pursuant to the terms of
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the Series 2 Preferred, the term of office will terminate immediately upon the termination of the right of the Series 2 Preferred holders to vote for such two additional
directors, subject to the requirements of Delaware law. The Series 2 Preferred holders have the right to remove without cause at any time and replace either of the two directors
that the Series 2 Preferred holders have elected.

Directors Information regarding the Company's directors is as follows:

Jack E. Golsen, age 75. Mr. Golsen first became a director in 1969. His term will expire in 2004. Mr.
Golsen, founder of the Company, is Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and has served in that capacity since the inception of the Company in 1969. During 1996, he
was inducted into the Oklahoma Commerce and Industry Hall of Honor as one of Oklahoma's leading
industrialists. Mr. Golsen has a degree from the University of New Mexico in Biochemistry.

 
Horace G. Rhodes, age 76. Mr. Rhodes first became a director in 1996. His term will expire in 2004. Mr.
Rhodes is the Chairman of the law firm of Kerr, Irvine, Rhodes & Ables and has served in such capacity
and has practiced law for more than five years. Since 1972 until 2001, he served as Executive Vice



President and General Counsel for the Association of Oklahoma Life Insurance Companies and since 1982
served as Executive Vice President and General Counsel for the Oklahoma Life and Health Insurance
Guaranty Association. Mr. Rhodes received his undergraduate and law degrees from the University of
Oklahoma.

 
Charles A. Burtch, age 69. Mr. Burtch first became a director in 1999. His term will expire in 2004.
Mr. Burtch was formerly Executive Vice-President and West Division Manager of BankAmerica, where he
managed BankAmerica's asset-based lending division for the western third of the United States. He
retired in 1998 and has since been engaged as a private investor. Mr. Burtch is a graduate of Arizona
State University.

 
Raymond B. Ackerman, age 81. Mr. Ackerman first became a director in 1993. His term will expire in
2005. From 1972 until his retirement in 1992, Mr. Ackerman served as Chairman of the Board and
President of Ackerman McQueen, Inc., the largest advertising and public relations firm headquartered in
Oklahoma. He currently serves as Chairman Emeritus of the company. He retired as a Rear Admiral in the
United States Naval Reserve. He is a graduate of Oklahoma City University, and in 1996, was awarded an
honorary doctorate from the school. He was elected to the Oklahoma Hall of Fame in 1993.

 
Bernard G. Ille, age 77. Mr. Ille first became a director in 1971. His term will expire in 2005. Mr.
Ille served as President and Chief Executive Officer of First Life Assurance Company from May 1988,
until it was acquired by another company in March 1994. For more than five years prior to joining First
Life, he served as President of United Founders Life Insurance Company. He is a director of Landmark
Land Company, Inc., which was parent company of First Life. He is also a director for Quail Creek Bank,
N.A. Mr. Ille is currently President of BML Consultants and a private investor. He is a graduate of the
University of Oklahoma.

 
Donald W. Munson, age 71. Mr. Munson first became a director in 1997. His term will expire in 2005.
From January 1988, until his retirement in August 1992, Mr. Munson served as President and Chief
Operating Officer of Lennox Industries. Prior to his election as President and Chief Operating Officer
of Lennox
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Industries, he served as Executive Vice President of Lennox Industries' Division Operations, President
of Lennox Canada and Managing Director of Lennox Industries' European Operations. Prior to joining
Lennox Industries, Mr. Munson served in various capacities with the Howden Group, a company located in
England, and The Trane Company, including serving as the managing director of various companies within
the Howden Group and Vice President Europe for The Trane Company. He is currently a consultant and
international distributor for the Ducane Company, an equipment manufacturer, and is serving as a member
of the Board of Directors of Multi Clima SA, a French manufacturer of air conditioning - heating
equipment, which a subsidiary of the Company has an option to acquire. Mr. Munson is a resident of
England. He has degrees in mechanical engineering and business administration from the University of
Minnesota.

 
Tony M. Shelby, age 62. Mr. Shelby first became a director in 1971. His term will expire in 2005. Mr.
Shelby, a certified public accountant, is Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, a position he has held for more than five years. Prior to becoming Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, he served as Chief Financial Officer of a subsidiary of the
Company and was with the accounting firm of Arthur Young & Co., a predecessor to Ernst & Young LLP. Mr.
Shelby is a graduate of Oklahoma City University.

 
Barry H. Golsen, J.D., age 53. Mr. Golsen first became a director in 1981. His term will expire in
2006. Mr. Golsen has served as Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company since August 1994, and for
more than five years has been the President of the Company's Climate Control Business. Mr. Golsen has
both his undergraduate and law degrees from the University of Oklahoma.

 
David R. Goss, age 63. Mr. Goss first became a director in 1971. His term will expire in 2006. Mr. Goss
a certified public accountant, is Executive Vice President of Operations of the Company and has served
in substantially the same capacity for more than five years. Mr. Goss is a graduate of Rutgers
University.

 
Robert C. Brown, M.D., age 73. Dr. Brown first became a director in 1969. His term will expire in 2006.
Dr. Brown has practiced medicine for many years and is Vice President and Treasurer of Plaza Medical
Group, P.C. Dr. Brown is a graduate of Tufts University and received his medical degree from Tufts
University.

 
Grant J. Donovan, age 47. Mr. Donovan first became a director in 2002. Mr. Donovan is President and
founder of Galehead, Inc. a company specializing on the collections of accounts receivable in the
international maritime trade business. Prior to forming Galehead, Inc., Mr. Donovan was a partner in a
real estate development firm specializing in revitalizing functionally obsolete industrial buildings.
Mr. Donovan received his MBA from Stanford University and his undergraduate degree in Civil Engineering
from the University of Vermont. He currently is on the board of directors of EngenderHealth, a 50 year
old international aid organization focused on improving women's healthcare.

 
Dr. N. Allen Ford, age 61. Dr. Ford first became a director in 2002. Dr. Ford joined the University of
Kansas in 1976. He received his Ph.D. in Accounting from the University of Arkansas. Dr. Ford's
teaching and research duties focus mainly on taxation. At the University of Kansas, Professor Ford
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has won several teaching awards and is the Larry D. Horner/KPMG Peat Marwick Distinguished Professor of
Accounting. Dr. Ford teaches the following courses in taxation: individual, corporate, partnership, S
corporation, gift and estate tax. He is active in professional organizations such as the American
Taxation Association and the American Accounting Association.

Family Relationships Jack E. Golsen is the father of Barry H. Golsen and the brother-in-law of Robert C. Brown, M.D. Robert C. Brown, M.D. is the uncle of Barry H. Golsen. David
M. Shear is the nephew by marriage to Jack E. Golsen and son-in-law of Robert C. Brown, M.D.

Executive Officers 

Our officers serve one-year terms, renewable on an annual basis by the Board of Directors. Information regarding the Company's executive officers is as follows:

Jack E. Golsen  Board Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. See information regarding Mr.
Golsen above under "Directors".

   
Barry H. Golsen  Board Vice Chairman, President, and President of the Climate Control Business.

See information regarding Mr. Golsen above under "Directors".

   
David R. Goss  Executive Vice President of Operations and Director. See information regarding

Mr. Goss above under "Directors".

   
Tony M. Shelby  Executive Vice President - Chief Financial Officer, and Director. See

information regarding Mr. Shelby above under "Directors".

   
Jim D. Jones, 
age 62

 Senior Vice President - Treasurer and Corporate Controller. Mr. Jones has been
Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Controller since July 2003, and
has served as an officer of the Company since April 1977.

   
David M. Shear, 
age 44

 Vice President and General Counsel. Mr. Shear has been Vice President and
General Counsel since March 1990, and has served as an officer of the Company
since March 1990.

Audit Committee

The Company has a separately designated standing audit committee established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"). The members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Bernard Ille, Charles Burtch, Horace Rhodes, and Ray Ackerman. The Board has determined that each member of the
Audit Committee is independent, as defined in the listing standards of the American Stock Exchange ("AMEX") as of the Company's fiscal year end. During 2003, the Audit Committee
had seven meetings.

Audit Committee Financial Expert 

While the Board of Directors endorses the effectiveness of the Company's Audit Committee, its membership does not presently include a director that qualifies for designation as
an "Audit Committee Financial Expert", a new concept under federal regulations. However, each of our current members of
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the Audit Committee is able to read and understand fundamental financial statements and at least one of its members is "financially sophisticated" pursuant to the applicable AMEX
rules. The Board of Directors believes that the background of each member of the Audit Committee is sufficient to fulfill the duties of the Audit Committee.

Although members of our Audit Committee are not professionally engaged in the practice of accounting or auditing, the Company's Board of Directors has concluded that the ability
of the Company's Audit Committee to perform its duties would not be impaired by the absence of an "Audit Committee Financial Expert" since its members otherwise satisfy the AMEX
standards.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance Based solely on a review of copies of the Forms 3, 4 and 5 and amendments thereto furnished to the Company with respect to
2003, or written representations that no such reports were required to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Company believes that during 2003 all directors
and officers of the Company and beneficial owners of more than 10% of any class of equity securities of the Company registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act filed
their required Forms 3, 4, or 5, as required by Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, on a timely basis, except for Jack Golsen filed one late Form 4
to report two transactions.

Code of Ethics The Company and all of its subsidiary companies have adopted a Statement of Policy Concerning Business Conduct applicable to their employees. In addition, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the principal accounting officer, and the controller of each of the Company's subsidiaries, or persons performing similar
functions, are subject to the Company's Code of Ethics. The Company's Statement of Policy Concerning Business Conduct and the Code of Ethics will be available on the Company's
website at www.lsb-okc.com. We will post any amendments to these documents, as well as any waivers that are required to be disclosed pursuant to the rules of either the
Securities and Exchange Commission or the American Stock Exchange, on our website. 

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table shows the aggregate cash compensation which the Company and its subsidiaries paid or accrued to the Chief Executive Officer and each of the other four most
highly-paid executive officers of the Company (which includes the Vice Chairman of the Board who also serves as President and President of the Company's Climate Control
Business). The table includes cash paid for services rendered during 2003, plus any cash paid during 2003 for services rendered in a prior year, less any amount relating to those
services previously included in the cash compensation table for a prior year.
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Summary Compensation Table

 
Annual Compensation

 Long-term
Compensation 

Awards

Name and Position

 

Year

 
Salary
($)

 
Bonus
($) (1)

 Securities
Underlying

Stock
Options

Jack E. Golsen,
Chairman of the Board of Directors
 and Chief Executive Officer

 2003
2002
2001

 477,400
477,400
477,400

 -
- -
- -

 -
- -
- -

         
Barry H. Golsen,
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors,
President, and President of the Climate
Control Business

 2003
2002
2001

 326,600
326,600
226,600

 85,000
85,000
60,000

 -
- -

20,000

         
David R. Goss,
Executive Vice President of Operations

 2003
2002
2001

 209,577
190,500
190,500

 -
75,000
50,000

 -
- -

15,000

         
Tony M. Shelby,
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

 2003
2002
2001

 214,108
190,500
190,500

 -
85,000
100,000

 -
- -

15,000

         
David M. Shear, 
Vice President and General Counsel

 2003
2002
2001

 184,077
165,000
165,000

 -
50,000
50,000

 -
- -

15,000

(1) Bonuses are for services rendered for the prior fiscal year. 

Certain Option Grants in 2003 There were no individual grants of stock options made to any of the named executive officers in the above Summary Compensation table during 2003.
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Aggregated Option Exercises in 2003
and Fiscal Year End Option Values

The following table sets forth information concerning the number and value of unexercised options held by each of the named executive officers during 2003 and the year-end value
of unexercised options. None of these officers exercised options during 2003.

  Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options at 
FY End (1)

 Value of
Unexercised
In-the-Money
Options at
Fiscal Year
End (1) (2)

 
 

Name   Exercisable/Unexercisable  Exercisable/Unexercisable

Jack E. Golsen   265,500 / -  $ 1,348,388 / -

        
Barry H. Golsen   163,000 / 12,000  $ 810,905 / $ 42,382

        
David R. Goss   191,000 / 9,000  $ 722,825 / $ 32,850

        
Tony M. Shelby   191,000 / 9,000  $ 722,825 / $ 32,850

        
David M. Shear   170,000 / 9,000  $ 676,220 / $ 32,850

(1) The stock options granted under the Company's stock option plans become exercisable 20% after one year from date of grant, an additional 20% after two years, an additional
30% after three years, and the remaining 30% after four years.

(2) The values are based on the difference between the price of the Company's Common Stock on the American Stock Exchange at the close of trading on December 31, 2003 of $6.38
per share and the exercise price of such option. The actual value realized by a named executive officer on the exercise of these options depends on the market value of the
Company's Common Stock on the date of exercise.

Other Plans The Board of Directors has adopted an LSB Industries, Inc., Employee Savings Plan (the "401(k) Plan") for the employees (including executive officers) of the Company
and its subsidiaries, excluding certain (but not all) employees covered under union agreements. The 401(k) Plan is an employee contribution plan, and the Company and its
subsidiaries make no contributions (with limited matching exceptions at two certain locations) to the 401(k) Plan. The amount that an employee may contribute to the 401(k) Plan
equals a certain percentage of the employee's compensation, with the percentage based on the employee's income and certain other criteria as required under Section 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Company or subsidiary deducts the amounts contributed to the 401(k) Plan from the employee's compensation each pay period, in accordance with the
employee's instructions, and pays the amount into the 401(k) Plan for the employee's benefit. The Summary Compensation Table set for th above includes any amount contributed and
deferred during the 2003, 2002, and 2001 fiscal years pursuant to the 401(k) Plan by the named executive officers of the Company.

The Company has a death benefit plan for certain key employees which is in the process of being revised. Under the existing plan, the designated
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beneficiary of an employee covered by the plan will receive a monthly benefit for a period of 10 years if the employee dies while in the employment of the Company or a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The agreement with each employee provides, in addition to being subject to other terms and conditions set forth in the agreement, that the
Company may terminate the agreement as to any employee at anytime prior to the employee's death. The Company has purchased life insurance on the life of each employee covered
under the plan to provide, in large part, a source of funds for the Company's obligations under the plan. The Company also will fund a portion of the benefits by investing the
proceeds of such insurance policy received by the Company upon the employee's death. The Company is the owner and sole beneficiary of the insurance policy, with the proceeds
payable to the Company upon the death of the employee. The following table sets forth the amounts of annual benefits payable to the designated beneficiary or beneficiaries of the
executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above under the above-described death benefits plan.

 
Name of Individual

 Amount of Annual
Payment

 Jack E. Golsen  $ 175,000

 Barry H. Golsen  $ 30,000

 David R. Goss  $ 35,000

 Tony M. Shelby  $ 35,000



 David M. Shear  $ N/A

In addition to the above-described plans, during 1991 the Company entered into a non-qualified arrangement with certain key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to
provide compensation to such individuals in the event that they are employed by the Company or a subsidiary of the Company at age 65. This arrangement is also in the process of
being revised. Under the plan, the employee will be eligible to receive for the life of such employee, a designated benefit as set forth in the plan. In addition, if prior to
attaining the age 65 the employee dies while in the employment of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company, the designated beneficiary of the employee will receive a monthly
benefit for a period of 10 years. The agreement with each employee provides, in addition to being subject to other terms and conditions set forth in the agreement, that the
Company may terminate the agreement as to any employee at any time prior to the employee's death. The Company has purchased in surance on the life of each employee covered under
the plan where the Company is the owner and sole beneficiary of the insurance policy, with the proceeds payable to the Company to provide a source of funds for the Company's
obligations under the plan. The Company may also fund a portion of the benefits by investing the proceeds of such insurance policies. Under the terms of the plan, if the employee
becomes disabled while in the employment of the Company or a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the employee may request the Company to cash-in any life insurance on the
life of such employee purchased to fund the Company's obligations under the plan. Jack E. Golsen does not participate in the plan. The following table sets forth the amounts of
annual benefits payable to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above under such retirement plan.
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Name of Individual

 Amount of Annual
Payment

 Barry H. Golsen  $ 17,480

 David R. Goss  $ 17,403

 Tony M. Shelby  $ 15,605

 David M. Shear  $ 17,822

The two plans set forth above are in the process of being revised into a single proposed program which would provide a combined benefit. The details of the proposed program which
will replace the death benefit plan and the non-qualified arrangement described above are being finalized. The proposed plan may be materially altered prior to such finalization.
It provides for a non-qualified arrangement with certain key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to provide compensation to such individuals in the event that they are
employed by the Company or a subsidiary of the Company at age 65 (and participate in the plan for 10 years). Under the plan the employee will be eligible to receive a designated
benefit as set forth in the plan for 10 years. In addition, if prior to attaining age 65 the employee dies while in the employment of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company,
the designated beneficiary of the employee will receive a monthly be nefit for a period of 10 years. The agreement with each employee would provide, in addition to being subject
to other terms and conditions set forth in the agreement, that the Company may terminate the agreement as to any employee at any time prior to the employee's death. The Company
has purchased insurance on the life of each employee covered under the proposed plan where the Company is the owner and sole beneficiary of the insurance policy, with the
proceeds payable to the Company to provide a source of funds for the Company's obligations under the proposed plan. The Company may also fund a portion of the benefits by
investing the proceeds of such insurance policies. Under the terms of the proposed plan, if the employee becomes disabled while in the employment of the Company or a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, the employee may request the Company to cash-in any life insurance on the life of such employee purchased to fund the Company's obligations under the
plan. Jack E. Golsen participates only in the death benefit aspect of the proposed plan. The following table sets forth the amounts of annual benefits payable to the
beneficiaries of the employee or to the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above under such proposed plan.

 

Name of Individual

 
Death Benefit

Amount of Annual
Payment

 Maximum Salary
Continuation
Amount of
Payment(1)

 Jack E. Golsen  $ 120,050 $ -

 Barry H. Golsen  $ 97,213 $ 97,213

 David R. Goss  $ 60,363 $ 60,363

 Tony M. Shelby  $ 72,888 $ 72,888

 David M. Shear  $ 37,500 $ 37,500

(1) This amount assumes that the employee attains age 65 and completes 10 years participation in the plan. Employees who reach age 65 prior to 10 years participation in the plan
will receive a reduced benefit depending on years of participation.
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Compensation of Directors 

In 2003, the Company compensated eight non-employee directors $1,125 each for their services as directors on the Company's Board. Certain non-employee directors also served on
the Board of Directors of the Company's subsidiary, ClimaChem, Inc. and received additional fees of $3,375 each for their services. The non-employee directors of the Company also
received $500 for every meeting of the Board of Directors attended during 2003. 

Mr. Ackerman received an additional $20,000 for his services on the Audit and Public Relations and Marketing Committees in 2003. Mr. Ille received an additional $20,000 for his
services on the Audit, Public Relations and Marketing, and Executive Salary Review Committees in 2003. Messrs. Burtch and Rhodes received an additional $20,000 each for their
services on the Audit Committee in 2003. Dr. Brown received an additional $20,000 for his services on the Executive Salary Review Committees in 2003. During 2003, Mr. Munson was
paid $39,072 for consulting services in connection with developing the Company's European business.

As discussed in Item 12 "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters," the Company maintains the 1993 Non-Employee Director
Stock Option Plan and the Outside Directors Stock Purchase Plan. The Company did not grant options under these plans during 2003, 2002, or 2001.

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change in Control Arrangements

(a) Termination of Employment and Change in Control Agreements The Company has entered into severance agreements with Jack E. Golsen, Barry H. Golsen, Tony M. Shelby, David R.
Goss, David M. Shear, and certain other officers of the Company and subsidiaries of the Company.

Each severance agreement provides (among other things) that if, within 24 months after the occurrence of a change in control (as defined) of the Company, the Company terminates
the officer's employment other than for cause (as defined), or the officer terminates his employment for good reason (as defined), the Company must pay the officer an amount
equal to 2.9 times the officer's base amount (as defined). The phrase "base amount" means the average annual gross compensation paid by the Company to the officer and includable
in the officer's gross income during the period consisting of the most recent five year period immediately preceding the change in control. If the officer has been employed by
the Company for less than five years, the base amount is calculated with respect to the most recent number of taxable years ending before the change in control that the officer
worked for the Company.

The severance agreements provide that a "change in control" means a change in control of the Company of a nature that would require the filing of a Form 8-K with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and, in any event, would mean when: (a) any individual, firm, corporation, entity, or group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as mended) becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 30% or more of the combined voting power of the Company's outstanding voting securities having the
right to vote for the election of directors, except acquisitions by (i) any person, firm, corporation, entity, or group which, as of the date of the severance agreement, has that
ownership, or (ii) Jack E. Golsen, his wife; his children
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and the spouses of his children; his estate; executor or administrator of any estate, guardian or custodian for Jack E. Golsen, his wife, his children, or the spouses of his
children, any corporation, trust, partnership, or other entity of which Jack E. Golsen, his wife, children, or the spouses of his children own at least 80% of the outstanding
beneficial voting or equity interests, directly or indirectly, either by any one or more of the above-described persons, entities, or estates; and certain affiliates and
associates of any of the above-described persons, entities, or estates; (b) individuals who, as of the date of the severance agreement, constitute the Board of Directors of the
Company (the "Incumbent Board") and who cease for any reason to constitute a majority of the Board of Directors except that any person becoming a director subsequent to the date
of the severance agreement, whose election or nomination for election is approved by a majority of the Incumbent Boar d (with certain limited exceptions), will constitute a
member of the Incumbent Board; or (c) the sale by the Company of all or substantially all of its assets.

Except for the severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen, the termination of an officer's employment with the Company "for cause" means termination because of: (a) the mental or
physical disability from performing the officer's duties for a period of 120 consecutive days or one hundred eighty days (even though not consecutive) within a 360 day period;
(b) the conviction of a felony; (c) the embezzlement by the officer of Company assets resulting in substantial personal enrichment of the officer at the expense of the Company;
or (d) the willful failure (when not mentally or physically disabled) to follow a direct written order from the Company's Board of Directors within the reasonable scope of the
officer's duties performed during the 60 day period prior to the change in control. The definition of "Cause" contained in the severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen means
termination because of: (a) the conviction of Mr. Golsen of a felony involving moral turpitude after all appeals have been completed; or (b) if due to Mr. Golsen's serious,
willful, gross misconduct or willful, gross neglect of his duties has resulted in material damages to the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a whole, provided that (i) no
action or failure to act by Mr. Golsen will constitute a reason for termination if he believed, in good faith, that such action or failure to act was in the Company's or its
subsidiaries' best interest, and (ii) failure of Mr. Golsen to perform his duties hereunder due to disability shall not be considered willful, gross misconduct or willful, gross
negligence of his duties for any purpose.

The termination of an officer's employment with the Company for "good reason" means termination because of (a) the assignment to the officer of duties inconsistent with the
officer's position, authority, duties, or responsibilities during the 60 day period immediately preceding the change in control of the Company or any other action which results
in the diminishment of those duties, position, authority, or responsibilities; (b) the relocation of the officer; (c) any purported termination by the Company of the officer's
employment with the Company otherwise than as permitted by the severance agreement; or (d) in the event of a change in control of the Company, the failure of the successor or
parent company to agree, in form and substance satisfactory to the officer, to assume (as to a successor) or guarantee (as to a parent) the severance agreement as of no change in
control had occurred.

Except for the severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen, each severance agreement runs until the earlier of: (a) three years after the date of the severance agreement, or (b) the
officer's normal retirement date from the Company; however, beginning on the first anniversary of the severance
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agreement and on each annual anniversary thereafter, the term of the severance agreement automatically extends for an additional one-year period, unless the Company gives notice
otherwise at least 60 days prior to the anniversary date. The severance agreement with Jack E. Golsen is effective for a period of three years from the date of the severance
agreement; except that, commencing on the date one year after the date of such severance agreement and on each annual anniversary thereafter, the term of such severance agreement
shall be automatically extended so as to terminate three years from such renewal date, unless the Company gives notices otherwise at least one year prior to the renewal date. 

(b) Employment Agreement The Company has an employment agreement with Jack E. Golsen, the Chairman of the Board and President of the Company, which requires the Company to employ
Mr. Golsen as an executive officer of the Company. The current term of the employment agreement will expire March 21, 2005; however, pursuant to an amendment to the employment
agreement approved by the Board of Directors, the term will be automatically renewed for up to three additional three-year periods. The employment agreement may be terminated by
either party by written notice at least one year prior to the expiration of the then current term. Under the terms of such employment agreement, Mr. Golsen shall be paid (a) an
annual base salary at his 1995 base rate, as adjusted from time to time by the Executive Salary Review Committee, but such shall never be adjusted to an amount less than Mr.
Golsen's 1995 base salary, (b) an annual bonus in an amount as determined by the Executive Salary Review Committee, and (c) re ceive from the Company certain other fringe
benefits. 



The employment agreement provides that Mr. Golsen's employment may not be terminated, except (a) upon conviction of a felony involving moral turpitude after all appeals have been
exhausted, (b) Mr. Golsen's serious, willful, gross misconduct or willful, gross negligence of duties resulting in material damage to the Company and its subsidiaries, taken as a
whole, unless Mr. Golsen believed, in good faith, that such action or failure to act was in the Company's or its subsidiaries' best interest, and (c) Mr. Golsen's death. However,
no such termination under (a) or (b) above may occur unless and until the Company has delivered to Mr. Golsen a resolution duly adopted by an affirmative vote of three-fourths of
the entire membership of the Board of Directors at a meeting called for such purpose after reasonable notice given to Mr. Golsen finding, in good faith, that Mr. Golsen violated
(a) or (b) above. 

If Mr. Golsen's employment is terminated in breach of the employment agreement, then he shall, in addition to his other rights and remedies, receive and the Company shall pay to
Mr. Golsen (a) in a lump sum cash payment, on the date of termination, a sum equal to the amount of Mr. Golsen's annual base salary at the time of such termination and the amount
of the last bonus paid to Mr. Golsen prior to such termination times the number of years remaining under the then current term of the employment agreement and (b) provide to Mr.
Golsen all of the fringe benefits that the Company was obligated to provide during his employment under the employment agreement for the remainder of the term of the employment
agreement. 

If there is a change in control (as defined in the severance agreement between Mr. Golsen and the Company) and within 24 months after such change in control Mr. Golsen is
terminated, other than for Cause (as defined in the severance agreement), then in such event, the severance agreement between Mr. Golsen and the Company shall be controlling.
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In the event Mr. Golsen becomes disabled and is not able to perform his duties under the employment agreement as a result thereof for a period of 12 consecutive months within any
two year period, the Company shall pay Mr. Golsen his full salary for the remainder of the term of the employment agreement and thereafter 60% of such salary until Mr. Golsen's
death.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation The Company's Executive Salary Review Committee has the authority to set the compensation of all officers of the
Company. This Committee generally considers and approves the recommendations of the President. The President does not make a recommendation regarding his own salary. The members
of the Executive Salary Review Committee are the following non-employee directors: Robert C. Brown, M.D., and Bernard G. Ille. Neither Dr. Brown nor Mr. Ille is, or ever has
been, an officer or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. During 2003, the Executive Salary Review Committee had three meetings.

See "Compensation of Directors" for information concerning compensation paid to each non-employee director of the Company during 2003 for services as a director to the Company.
See "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" for information concerning compensation paid to an affiliate of Dr. Brown.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

The following table sets forth the information as of December 31, 2003, with respect to our equity compensation plans.

 Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of

outstanding
options, warrants

and rights

(b)

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding

securities reflected 
in column (a))

(c)

    
Equity compensation plans approved by
 stockholders (1)

 
1,388,800 $ 2.28

 
495,500

Equity compensation plans not approved
 by stockholders (2)

 
1,149,000 $ 2.25

 
- -

Total  2,537,800 $ 2.27 495,500

(1) Stockholder Approved Plans. The Company's equity compensation plans which are approved by the Company's stockholders are the following:

1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the "1993 Plan"). As of December 31, 2003, 483,000 shares are issuable under outstanding options granted under the 1993 Plan and no
additional shares are available for future issuance.

1998 Stock Option Plan (the "1998 Plan"). As of December 31, 2003, 800,800 shares are issuable under outstanding options
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granted under the 1998 Plan and 53,500 additional shares are available for future issuance.

Outside Directors Stock Option Plan (the "Outside Directors Plan"), as of December 31, 2003, 105,000 shares are issuable under outstanding options granted under the Outside
Directors Plan and 295,000 additional shares are available for future issuance. The Outside Directors Plan authorizes the Company to grant options to purchase common stock
to each member of our Board of Directors who is not an officer or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries. These options become fully exercisable after six months and
one day from the date of grant and lapse at the end of ten years. The exercise price of options granted under the Outside Directors Plan is equal to the market value of our
common stock at the date of grant.

1993 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (the "1993 Directors Plan"). As of December 31, 2003, no shares have been granted under the 1993 Directors Plan and 150,000
shares are available for future issuance. The 1993 Directors Plan authorizes the grant of nonqualified stock options to each member of our Board of Directors who is not an
officer or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries. Options granted to non-employee Directors of the Company become fully exercisable after six months from the date of
grant. Pursuant to the terms of the 1993 Directors Plan, each outside director receives an option to acquire 5,000 shares of our common stock on April 30 following the end
of each year in which the Company realizes net income of $9.2 million or more for such year. The exercise price for these options is the fair market value of the shares of
common stock at the time of grant. Each option granted under this plan expires upon the earlier of the termination as a member of our Board of Directors or the fifth
anniversary of the date such option was granted.

The 1993 Plan and 1998 Plan each authorize the Company to grant options to purchase common stock to our employees. All outstanding options granted to employees under these plans
have a term of 10 years and become exercisable as to 20% of the underlying shares after one year from date of grant, 40% after two years, 70% after three years, and 100% after
four years. The exercise price of outstanding options granted under these plans is equal to the market value of the Company's common stock at the date of grant. However, with
respect to participants who own 10% or more of our common stock at the date of grant, the options have a term of five years, and the exercise price is 110% of the market value at
the date of grant. 

(2) Non-Stockholder Approval Plans. From time to time, our Board of Directors has approved the grants of certain nonqualified stock options as the Board has determined to be in
the best interest of the Company to compensate directors, officers, or employees for service to the Company. Unless otherwise indicated below, (a) the price of each such option
is equal to the market value of our common stock at the date of grant, (b) the options become exercisable as to 20% of the underlying shares after one year from the date of
grant, 40% after two years, 70% after three years, and 100% after four years, and (c) each option expires 10 years from the grant date. The Company's equity compensation plans
which have not been approved by the stockholders are the following:
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Effective December 1, 2002, the Company granted nonqualified options to purchase up to an aggregate 112,000 shares of common stock to former employees of two former
subsidiaries. These options were part of the employees' severance compensation arising from the sale of the former subsidiaries' assets. Each recipient of a grant received
options for the same number of shares and having the same exercise price as under the recipient's vested incentive stock options which expired upon the sale. Each
nonqualified option was exercisable as of the date of grant and has a term of 10 years from the original date of grant. As of December 31, 2003, 108,000 shares are issuable
under the following options: 34,000 have an exercise price of $4.188 per share and expire from August 18, 2004 through April 22, 2008, 34,000 have an exercise price of
$2.37 per share and expire November 21, 2011, and 40,000 have an exercise price of $1.25 and expire July 8, 2009.

On November 7, 2002, the Company granted to an employee of the Company a nonqualified stock option to acquire 50,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.62
per share in consideration of services rendered to the Company.

On April 25, 2002, the Company granted to an employee of the Company a nonqualified stock option to acquire 6,000 shares of common stock in consideration of services to the
Company. As of December 31, 2003, 3,000 shares are issuable at an exercise price of $4.188 per share.

On November 29, 2001, the Company granted to employees of the Company nonqualified stock options to acquire 102,500 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $2.73 in
consideration of services to the Company.

On July 20, 2000, the Company granted nonqualified options to a former employee of the Company to acquire 185,000 shares of common stock in consideration of services to the
Company. The following are the exercise prices per share for these options: 5,000 shares at $5.362; 80,000 shares at $4.538; 60,000 shares at $1.375; and 40,000 shares at
$1.25. These options were for the same number of shares and the same exercise prices as under the stock options held by the former employee prior to leaving the Company.
These options were fully vested at the date of grant and expire, as to 100,000 shares, nine years from the date of grant and as to the remaining 85,000 shares, seven years
from the date of grant.

On July 8, 1999, in consideration of services to the Company, the Company granted nonqualified stock options to acquire 371,500 shares of common stock at an exercise price
of $1.25 per share to Jack E. Golsen (176,500 shares), Barry H. Golsen (55,000 shares) and Steven J. Golsen (35,000 shares), David R. Goss (35,000 shares), Tony M. Shelby
(35,000 shares), David M. Shear (35,000 shares) and granted to certain other employees nonqualified stock options to acquire a total of 165,000 shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $1.25 per share in consideration of services to the Company.

On April 22, 1998, the Company granted to certain employees and to each member of our Board of Directors who was not an officer or employee of the Company or its
subsidiaries nonqualified stock options to acquire shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.1875 per share in consideration of services to the Company. As 
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of December 31, 2003, 139,000 shares are issuable under outstanding options under these agreements.

On December 18, 1997, the Company granted to an employee nonqualified stock options to acquire 25,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.125 per share. The
options became exercisable as to 30% of the underlying shares after two years from the date of grant, 60% after three years, and 100% after four years.



Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners The following table shows the total number and percentage of the outstanding shares of the Company's voting Common Stock and
voting Preferred Stock beneficially owned as of the close of business on April 2, 2004, with respect to each person (including any "group" as used in Section 13(d)(3) of the
Securities Act of 1934, as amended) that the Company knows to have beneficial ownership of more than 5% of the Company's voting Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock. A person
is deemed to be the beneficial owner of voting shares of Common Stock of the Company which he or she could acquire within 60 days of April 2, 2004.

Because of the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission as to the method of determining the amount of shares an individual or entity may beneficially own, the
amounts shown below for an individual or entity may include shares also considered beneficially owned by others.

Name and Address 
of

Beneficial Owner

 
Title
of

Class

 Amounts 
of Shares

Beneficially
owned (1)

 
Percent

of
Class

Jack E. Golsen and
members of his family (2)

 Common
Voting Preferred

 4,781,195
1,020,000

(3
(4

)
)

(5
(6

)
)

(6 ) 33.3
99.9

%
%

Kent C. McCarthy & affiliates (7)  Common  2,387,785 (7 )     17.2 %

Paul J. Denby (8)  Common  1,010,699 (8 )     7.8 %

James W. Sight (9)  Common  864,478 (9 )     6.7 %

Jay R. Petschek, Steven Major, &
 affiliates (10)

 
Common

 
743,600 (10 )

    
5.6 %

(1) The Company based the information with respect to beneficial ownership on information furnished by the above-named individuals or entities or contained in filings made with
the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Company's records.

(2) Includes Jack E. Golsen and the following members of his family: wife, Sylvia H. Golsen; son, Barry H. Golsen (a Director, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, and
President of the Climate Control Business of the Company); son, Steven J. Golsen (Executive officer of several subsidiaries of the Company); and daughter, Linda F. Rappaport. The
address of Jack E. Golsen, Sylvia H. Golsen, Barry H. Golsen, and Linda F. Rappaport is 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73107; and Steven J. Golsen's
address is 7300 SW 44th Street, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73179.
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(3) Includes (a) the following shares over which Jack E. Golsen ("J. Golsen") has the sole voting and dispositive power: (i) 40,000 shares that he owns of record, (ii) 4,000
shares that he has the right to acquire upon conversion of a promissory note, (iii) 133,333 shares that he has the right to acquire upon the conversion of 4,000 shares of the
Company's Series B 12% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series B Preferred") owned of record by a trust, of which he is the sole trustee, (iv) 69,029 shares owned of
record by a trust, of which he is the sole trustee, and (v) 265,000 shares that he has the right to acquire within the next 60 days under the Company's stock option plans; (b)
571,290 shares owned of record by Sylvia H. Golsen, and 284,915 shares owned of record by a trust, of which Sylvia H. Golsen is the sole trustee, over which she and her husband,
J. Golsen share voting and dispositive power; (c) 246,616 shares over which Barry H. ("B. Golsen") has the sole voting and dispositive power, 533 shares owned of record by B.
Golsen's wife, over which he shares the voting and dispositive power, and 163,000 shares that he has the right to acquire within the next 60 days under the Company's stock option
plans; (d) 206,987 shares over which Steven J. Golsen ("S. Golsen") has the sole voting and dispositive power and 108,000 shares that he has the right to acquire within the next
60 days under the Company's stock option plans; (e) 213,806 shares held in trust for the grandchildren and great grandchild of J. Golsen and Sylvia H. Golsen of which B. Golsen,
S. Golsen and Linda F. Rappaport ("L. Rappaport") jointly share voting and dispositive power; (f) 82,552 shares owned of record by L. Rappaport over which she has sole voting and
dispositive power; (g) 1,306,199 shares owned of record by SBL Corporation ("SBL"), 39,177 shares that SBL has the right to acquire upon conversion of 9,050 shares of the
Company's non-voting $3.25 Convertible Exchangeable Class C Preferred Stock, Series 2 (the "Series 2 P referred"), 400,000 shares that SBL has the right to acquire upon
conversion of 12,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of record by SBL, and 250,000 shares that SBL has to right to acquire upon conversion of 1,000,000 shares of the Company's
Series D 6% cumulative, convertible Class C preferred stock ("Series D Preferred") owned of record by SBL and (h) 88,100 shares owned of record by Golsen Petroleum Corporation
("GPC"), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SBL, 133,333 shares that GPC has the right to acquire upon conversion of 4,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of record by GPC
and 175,325 shares that GPC has the right to acquire upon conversion of 40,500 shares of Series 2 Preferred owned of record by GPC. SBL is wholly-owned by Sylvia H. Golsen (40%
owner), B. Golsen (20% owner), S. Golsen (20% owner), and L. Rappaport (20% owner) and, as a result, SBL, J. Golsen, Sylvia H. Golsen, B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport
share the voting and dispositive power of the shares beneficially owned by SBL. SBL's address is 16 South Pennsylvania Avenue, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73107.

(4) Includes: (a) 4,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of record by a trust, of which J. Golsen is the sole trustee, over which he has the sole voting and dispositive power;
(b) 12,000 shares of Series B Preferred owned of record by SBL; (c) 4,000 shares Series B Preferred owned of record by SBL's wholly-owned subsidiary, GPC, over which SBL, J.
Golsen, Sylvia H. Golsen, B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport share the voting and dispositive power and (d) 1,000,000 shares of Series D Preferred owned of record by SBL.

(5) Does not include 124,350 shares of Common Stock that L. Rappaport's husband owns of record and 185,000 shares which he has the right to acquire within the next 60 days under
the Company's stock option plans, all of which L. Rappaport disclaims beneficial ownership. Does not include 256,120 shares of Common Stock owned of record by certain trusts for
the benefit of B.
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Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport over which B. Golsen, S. Golsen and L. Rappaport have no voting or dispositive power. Heidi Brown Shear, an officer of the Company and the
niece of J. Golsen, is the Trustee of each of these trusts.

(6) J. Golsen disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares that B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport each have the sole voting and investment power over as noted in footnote
(3) above. B. Golsen, S. Golsen, and L. Rappaport disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares that J. Golsen has the sole voting and investment power over as noted in footnotes
(3) and (4) and the shares owned of record by Sylvia H. Golsen. Sylvia H. Golsen disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares that J. Golsen has the sole voting and dispositive
power over as noted in footnotes (3) and (4) above.

(7) Kent C. McCarthy, manager of Jayhawk Capital Management, L.L.C. ("Jayhawk"), a Delaware limited liability company and investment advisor, is deemed to beneficially own
2,387,785 shares of the Company's Common Stock (which includes 1,164,285 shares of Common Stock receivable upon conversion of 268,950 shares of Series 2 Preferred and 112,500
shares of Common Stock that may be acquired upon exercise of warrants). This number of shares includes the shares Mr. McCarthy personally owns, as well as the shares he controls
as manager and sole member of Jayhawk. As manager and sole member of Jayhawk, Mr. McCarthy has sole voting and dispositive power over the Common Stock beneficially owned by
Jayhawk. Jayhawk is deemed to have beneficial ownership of 2,113,755 shares of the Company's Common Stock (which includes 1,061,255 shares of Common Stock receivable upon
conversion of 245,150 shares of Series 2 Preferred and 112,500 shares of Common Stock that may be acquired upon exercise of warrants), all of which shar es are held in portfolios
of (a) Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P. ("Jayhawk Institutional"), a Delaware limited partnership, (1,743,192 shares of Common Stock which includes 690,692 shares of Common
Stock receivable upon conversion of 159,550 shares of Series 2 Preferred and 112,500 shares of Common Stock that may be acquired upon exercise of warrants), (b) Jayhawk
Investments, L.P. ("Jayhawk Investments"), a Delaware limited partnership, (370,562 shares of Common Stock receivable upon conversion of 85,600 shares of Series 2 Preferred), and
(c) Lucky Henry, L.P., ("Lucky Henry"), a Delaware limited partnership. Jayhawk is the general partner and manager of Jayhawk Institutional, Jayhawk Investments, and Lucky Henry
and, as such, has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares. Mr. McCarthy disclaims beneficial ownership of all such shares other than his personal holdings. Mr.
McCarthy's address is 8201 Mission Road, Suite 110, Prairie Village, Kansas 66208. See "Item 13. Ce rtain Relationships and Related Transactions."

(8) Paul J. Denby advised the Company that he has voting and dispositive power over 1,010,699 shares of Common Stock (which includes 234,199 shares of Common Stock receivable
upon conversion of 54,100 shares of Series 2 Preferred). This number of shares includes 38,224 shares beneficially owned by Mr. Denby's spouse over which Mr. Denby shares voting
and dispositive power. Mr. Denby's address is 4613 Redwood Court, Irving, Texas 75038. 

(9) James W. Sight has sole voting and dispositive power over 864,478 shares of Common Stock (which includes 175,325 shares of Common Stock receivable upon conversion of 40,500
shares of Series 2 Preferred). Mr. Sight's address is 8500 College Boulevard, Overland Park, Kansas 66210.

(10) Jay R. Petschek, as a controlling person of Corsair Management, is deemed to beneficially own 743,600 shares, comprised of 15,000 shares Mr.
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Petschek owns personally or through separate accounts managed by him, and 728,600 shares beneficially owned by Corsair Management. Steven Major, as a controlling person of
Corsair Management, is deemed to beneficially own 743,600 shares, comprised of 15,000 shares beneficially owned by him, and 728,600 shares owned by Corsair Management. Mr.
Petschek has sole voting and dispositive power over the 15,000 shares owned by him or through accounts managed by him. Mr. Major and Mr. Petschek share voting and dispositive
power over the 728,600 shares beneficially owned by Corsair Management. Corsair Management beneficially owns 19,650 shares of Common Stock held in separate accounts managed by
it, and, as the investment manager, is deemed to beneficially own 708,950 shares of Common Stock held in the portfolios of (a) Corsair Capital Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited
partnership, (440,256 shares of Common Stock), (b) Corsair Long Short International, Ltd., a Cayman Islands entity, (40,000 shares of Common Stock ), (c) Corsair Select, L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership, (190,850 shares of Common Stock), (d) Corsair Capital Partners 100, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, (19,636 shares of Common Stock), and (e)
Corsair Capital Investors, Ltd, a Cayman Islands entity, (18,208 shares of Common Stock). Mr. Petschek, Mr. Major, and Corsair Management have shared voting and dispositive power
over the 19,650 shares held in separate accounts of Corsair Management. Mr. Petschek, Mr. Major, and Corsair Management share voting and dispositive power with each respective
entity listed above. The principal business address for each of Corsair Capital, Corsair Select, Corsair 100, Corsair Management, Mr. Petschek and Mr. Major is 350 Madison
Avenue, 9th Floor, New York, New York 10017. The principal business address for each of Corsair International and Corsair Investors is c/o M&C Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, 113 South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, Br itish West Indies. Information set forth in this footnote is based upon Schedule 13-D
filed on January 15, 2004 by Corsair Capital, Corsair Select, Corsair 100, Corsair Management, Corsair International, Corsair Investors, Mr. Petschek and Mr. Major.

Security Ownership of Management The following table sets forth information obtained from the directors of the Company and the directors and executive officers of the Company as
a group as to their beneficial ownership of the Company's voting Common Stock and voting Preferred Stock as of April 2, 2004.

Because of the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission as to the method of determining the amount of shares an individual or entity may own beneficially, the
amount shown below for an individual may include shares also considered beneficially owned by others. Any shares of stock which a person does not own, but which he or she has the
right to acquire within 60 days of April 2, 2004, are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of outstanding stock of the class owned by such person
but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of the class owned by any other person.
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Name of
Beneficial Owner

 
Title of Class

 Amount of
Shares

Beneficially Owned (1)

 
Percent of

Class
Raymond B. Ackerman  Common  21,000 (2) * 
Robert C. Brown, M.D.  Common  208,329 (3) 1.6 %

Charles A. Burtch  Common  15,000 (4) * 
Grant J. Donovan  Common  44,169 (5) * 
Dr. N. Allen Ford  Common  432 (6) * 
Barry H. Golsen  Common 

Voting Preferred
 3,008,889

1,016,000
(7)
(7)
 21.7

99.5
%
%

Jack E. Golsen  Common
Voting Preferred

 3,759,701
1,020,000

(8)
(8)
 26.7

99.9
%
%

David R. Goss Common 303,272 (9) 2.4 %



   
Bernard G. Ille  Common  45,000 (10) * 
Donald W. Munson  Common  16,432 (11) * 
Horace G. Rhodes  Common  20,000 (12) * 
Tony M. Shelby  Common  354,729 (13) 2.8 %

Directors and Executive Officers
as a group number (14 persons)

 Common
Voting Preferred

 5,821,817
1,020,000

(14) 38.6
99.9

%
%

* Less than 1%.

(1) The Company based the information, with respect to beneficial ownership, on information furnished by each director or officer, contained in filings made with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, or contained in the Company's records.

(2) This amount includes the following shares over which Mr. Ackerman shares voting and dispositive power: (a) 2,000 shares held by Mr. Ackerman's trust, and (b) 4,000 shares
held by the trust of Mr. Ackerman's wife. The remaining 15,000 shares of Common Stock included herein are shares that Mr. Ackerman may acquire pursuant to currently exercisable
non-qualified stock options granted to him by the Company.

(3) The amount shown includes 15,000 shares of Common Stock that Dr. Brown may acquire pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options granted to him by the
Company. The shares, with respect to which Dr. Brown shares the voting and dispositive power, consists of 122,516 shares owned by Dr. Brown's wife, 50,727 shares owned by Robert
C. Brown, M.D., Inc., a corporation wholly-owned by Dr. Brown, and 20,086 shares held by the Robert C. Brown M.D., Inc. Employee Profit Sharing Plan, of which Dr. Brown serves
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as the trustee. The amount shown does not include 46,097 shares owned directly, or through trusts, by the children of Dr. Brown and the son-in-law of Dr. Brown, David M. Shear,
all of which Dr. Brown disclaims beneficial ownership.

(4) Mr. Burtch has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which may be acquired by Mr. Burtch pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options granted
to him by the Company.

(5) Mr. Donovan has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 13,000 shares of Common Stock and 31,169 shares of Common Stock that Mr. Donovan has the
right to acquire upon conversion of 7,200 shares of Series 2 Preferred.

(6) Dr. Ford has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares that Dr. Ford has the right to acquire upon conversion of 100 shares of Series 2 Preferred. 

(7) See footnotes (3), (4), and (6) of the table under "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" of this item for a description of the amount and nature of the shares
beneficially owned by B. Golsen.

(8) See footnotes (3), (4), and (6) of the table under "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" of this item for a description of the amount and nature of the shares
beneficially owned by J. Golsen.

(9) Mr. Goss has the sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 191,000 shares that Mr. Goss has the right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to options
granted under the Company's stock option plans. 

(10) The amount includes (a) 15,000 shares that Mr. Ille may purchase pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options, over which Mr. Ille has the sole voting and
dispositive power, and (b) 20,000 shares owned of record by Mr. Ille's wife, voting and dispositive power of which are shared by Mr. Ille and his wife.

(11) Mr. Munson has the sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include (a) 432 shares of Common Stock that Mr. Munson has the right to acquire upon conversion
of 100 shares of Series 2 Preferred and (b) 15,000 shares that Mr. Munson may purchase pursuant to currently exercisable non-qualified stock options.

(12) Mr. Rhodes has sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 15,000 shares that may be acquired by Mr. Rhodes pursuant to currently exercisable non-
qualified stock options granted to him by the Company.

(13) Mr. Shelby has the sole voting and dispositive power over these shares, which include 191,000 shares that Mr. Shelby has the right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to
options granted under the Company's stock option plans and 15,151 shares that Mr. Shelby has the right to acquire upon conversion of 3,500 shares of Series 2 Preferred.

(14) The amount shown includes 1,225,544 shares of Common Stock that executive officers, directors, or entities controlled by executive officers and directors of the Company have
the right to acquire within 60 days.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Northwest Internal Medicine Associates ("Northwest"), a division of Plaza Medical Group, P.C., has an agreement with the Company to perform medical examinations of the management
and supervisory personnel of the Company and its subsidiaries. Under such agreement, Northwest is paid $2,000 a month to perform all such examinations. Dr. Robert C. Brown (a
director of the Company) is Vice President and Treasurer of Plaza Medical Group, P.C.

In 1983, LSB Chemical Corp. ("LSB Chemical"), a subsidiary of the Company, acquired all of the outstanding stock of El Dorado Chemical Company ("EDC") from its then four
stockholders ("Ex-Stockholders"). A substantial portion of the purchase price consisted of an earnout based primarily on the annual after-tax earnings of EDC for a ten-year
period. During 1989, two of the Ex-Stockholders received LSB Chemical promissory notes for a portion of their earnout, in lieu of cash, totaling approximately $896,000, payable
$496,000 in January 1990, and $400,000 in May, 1994. LSB Chemical agreed to a buyout of the balance of the earnout from the four Ex-Stockholders for an aggregate purchase amount
of $1,231,000. LSB Chemical purchased for cash the earnout from two of the Ex-Stockholders and issued multi-year promissory notes totaling $676,000 to the other two Ex-
Stockholders. Jack E. Golsen guaranteed LSB Chemical's payment obligation under the promissory notes. The unpaid balance of these notes at March 31, 2004, was $400,000.

At October 15, 2001, Prime Financial Corporation ("Prime"), a subsidiary of the Company, had a note with an outstanding principal balance of $1,350,000 (the "Prime Note") owed to
SBL Corporation ("SBL"), a corporation wholly owned by the spouse and children of Jack E. Golsen, Chairman of the Board and President of the Company. The Prime Note was issued in
connection with a loan from SBL to Prime of funds borrowed by SBL from SBL's lender. In order to obtain the loan from SBL, Prime was required to (a) issue to SBL's lender a
limited guaranty of the lender's loan to SBL, and (b) pledge to SBL's lender 1,973,461 shares of the Company's common stock owned by Prime as security for the limited guaranty.

On October 18, 2001, the Company, Prime, and SBL entered into an agreement (the "Agreement") whereby the Company issued to SBL 1,000,000 shares of a newly created series of
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock in the Company ("Series D Preferred Stock"). In consideration of the issuance of the Series D Preferred stock, SBL (a) reduced the principal
amount of the Prime Note by $1,000,000, (b) caused Prime's limited guaranty to be reduced to an amount not to exceed $350,000, and (c) caused the shares of LSB common stock
pledged by Prime to SBL's lender to be reduced by 1,000,000 shares. In February 2003, SBL's lender terminated Prime's limited guaranty and released all shares of LSB common stock
pledged by Prime to secure the limited guaranty. At March 31, 2004, $50,000 remains outstanding under the Prime Note which is payable on demand.

Each share of Series D Preferred Stock issued to SBL has, among other things, .875 votes and the right to vote as a class with the Company's common stock, a liquidation
preference of $1.00 per share, cumulative dividends at the rate of 6% per annum, and is convertible into LSB common stock on the basis of four shares of Preferred Stock into one
share of common stock. Dividends on the Series D Preferred Stock issued to SBL will be paid only after accrued and unpaid dividends are paid on the Company's Series 2
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Preferred. At March 31, 2004, there was $9.6 million in accrued but unpaid dividends due on the Series 2 Preferred. 

Effective March 25, 2003, the Company completed a private placement to Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P. ("Jayhawk Institutional") of 450,000 shares of the Company's common
stock and a five year warrant to purchase up to 112,500 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $3.49 per share, subject to anti-dilution adjustments under
certain conditions.  The total price paid by Jayhawk to the Company for the shares of common stock and the warrant was $1,570,500.  The average closing price of the Company's
common stock over the 30 day period prior to the transaction was $3.49. Jayhawk has certain registration rights. See "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" for a
description of the beneficial ownership of our common stock by Kent C. McCarthy and affiliates, including Jayhawk Institutional.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Fees Paid to Independent Auditors

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Ernst & Young LLP for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements for the fiscal years ended December
31, 2003 and 2002, for the reviews of the financial statements included in the Company's Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for those fiscal years, and for review of documents filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission for those fiscal years were approximately $555,750 and $482,900, respectively. 

Audit-Related Fees

Ernst & Young LLP billed the Company $32,000 and $42,230 during 2003 and 2002, respectively, for audit-related services, which included benefit plan audit and accounting
consultations.

Tax Fees

Ernst & Young LLP billed $94,000 and $93,140 during 2003 and 2002, respectively, for tax services to the Company, which included tax return review and preparation and tax
consultations and planning. 

All Other Fees

The Company did not engage its accountants to provide any other services for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Engagement of the Independent Auditor

The Audit Committee is responsible for approving all engagements with Ernst & Young LLP to perform audit or non-audit services for us prior to us engaging Ernst & Young LLP to
provide those services. All of the services under the headings Audit Related, Tax Services, and All Other Fees were approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to paragraph (c)(7)
(i)(C) of Rule 2-01 of Regulation S-X of the Exchange Act. The Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors has considered whether Ernst & Young LLP's
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provision of the services described above for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, is compatible with maintaining its independence.

Audit Committee's Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures All audit and non-audit services that may be provided by our principal accountant, Ernst & Young LLP to the Company shall
require pre-approval by the Audit Committee. Further, Ernst & Young LLP shall not provide those services to the Company specifically prohibited by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, including bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements of the audit client; financial information systems design and



implementation; appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinion, or contribution-in-kind reports; actuarial services; internal audit outsourcing services; management functions;
human resources; broker-dealer, investment adviser, or investment banking services; legal services and expert services unrelated to the audit; and any other service that the
Public Company Oversight Board determines, by regulation, is impermissible.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

a. (1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company appear immediately following this Part IV:

  Pages

   
Report of Independent Auditors  F-1

   
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002  F-2 to F-3

   
Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003

 
F-4

   
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003

 
F-5 to F-6

   
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2003

 
F-7 to F-8

   
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  F-9 to F-61

   
Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)  F-62 to F-64

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedule 

The Company has included the following schedules in this report:

I - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant                                     F-65 to F-68

II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts                                                F-69 to F-70

We have omitted all other schedules because the conditions requiring their filing do not exist or because the required information appears in our Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the notes to those statements.
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(a)(3) Exhibits 

2.1. Stock Purchase Agreement and Stock Pledge Agreement between Dr. Hauri AG, a Swiss Corporation, and LSB Chemical Corp., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 2.2 to the Company's Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 1994.

3.1. Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Certificate of Designation dated February 17, 1989, and certificate of Elimination dated April 30, 1993, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration Statement, No. 33-61640; Certificate of Designation for the Company's $3.25 Convertible Exchangeable
Class C Preferred Stock, Series 2, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.6 to the Company's Registration Statement, No. 33-61640.

3.2. Bylaws, as amended, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 3(ii) to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.

4.1. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Non-cumulative Preferred Stock, having a par value of $100 per share, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit
4.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1983.

4.2. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Series B Preferred Stock, having a par value of $100 per share, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.27
to the Company's Registration Statement No. 33-9848.

4.3. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Series 2 Preferred, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.5 to the Company's Registration Statement No.
33-61640.

4.4. Specimen of Certificate of Series D 6% Cumulative, Convertible Class C Preferred Stock which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

4.5. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Common Stock, which the Company incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's Registration Statement No. 33-61640.

4.6. Renewed Rights Agreement, dated January 6, 1999, between the Company and Bank One, N.A., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit No. 1 to the
Company's Form 8-A Registration Statement, dated January 27, 1999.

4.7. Indenture, dated as of November 26, 1997, by and among ClimaChem, Inc., the Subsidiary Guarantors and Bank One, NA, as trustee, which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated November 26, 1997.

4.8. First Supplemental Indenture, dated February 8, 1999, by and among ClimaChem, Inc., the Guarantors, and Bank One N.A., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 4.19 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998.
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4.9. Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 24, 2002, among the Company, the Guarantors, and Bank One, N.A, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.3
to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002.

4.10. Form of 10 3/4% Series B Senior Notes due 2007 which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the ClimaChem Registration Statement, No. 333-44905.

4.11. Loan and Security Agreement, dated April 13, 2001 by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem and each of its Subsidiaries that are Signatories, the Lenders that are
Signatories and Foothill Capital Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.51 to ClimaChem, Inc.'s amendment No. 1 to Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

4.12. Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 24, 2002, by and among the Company, LSB, certain subsidiaries of the Company, Foothill Capital Corporation and
Congress Financial Corporation (Southwest), which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002. Omitted are
exhibits and schedules attached thereto. The Agreement contains a list of such exhibits and schedules, which the Company agrees to file with the Commission supplementally upon
the Commission's request.

4.13. Third Amendment, dated as of November 18, 2002, to the Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 13, 2001, as amended by the First Amendment dated as of August 3, 2001
and the second Amendment dated as of May 24, 2002, by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem, Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Congress Financial Corporation
(Southwest) and Foothill Capital Corporation which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September
30, 2002.

4.14. Fourth Amendment, dated as of March 3, 2003, to the Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 13, 2001, as amended by the First, Second, and Third Amendments, by and
among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem, Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Inc., Congress Financial Corporation (Southwest) and Foothill Capital Corporation, which the
Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.18 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

4.15. Fifth Amendment, dated as of December 31, 2003, to the Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 13, 2001, as amended by the First, Second, Third and Fourth Amendments,
by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem, Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Inc., Congress Financial Corporation (Southwest) and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.

4.16. Waiver and Consent, dated March 25, 2004, to the Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of April 13, 2001 (as amended to date), by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem,
Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Inc. and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.

4.17. Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 24, 2002 ("Agreement"), which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May
24, 2002. Omitted are exhibits and schedules attached thereto. The Agreement contains a list of such exhibits and
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schedules, which the Company agrees to file with the Commission supplementally upon the Commission's request.

4.18. Promissory Note, dated May 24, 2002, granted by the Company in favor of one of the Lenders in the original principal amount of $7,786,927, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.4 to theCompany's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002. Substantially similar Promissory Notes, dated May 24, 2002, were granted by the Company
to each of the other Lenders in the original principal amount indicated: (a) a Promissory Note granted in favor of one Lender in the original principal amount of $3,478,410, (b)
two Promissory Notes granted in favor of a Lender in the original aggregate principal amount of $20,000,000, (c) a Promissory Note granted in favor of a Lender in the original
principal amount of $3,734,663. Copies of these Promissory Notes will be provided to the Commission upon request.

4.19. Letter, dated July 10, 2002, to document certain items not reflected in the Securities Purchase Agreement which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit
4.5 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002.



4.20. Second Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated February 28, 2003 by and among ClimaChem, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, the Purchasers and Guggenheim
Investment Management, LLC., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.17 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

4.21. Letter, dated March 3, 2003, to document the consent to increase capital expenditures, as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.19 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

4.22. Letter, dated December 31, 2003, to document the consent to changes to the EBITDA covenants, as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement.

4.23. Waiver and Consent, dated March 17, 2004, to the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2002 (as amended to date) by and among ClimaChem, Inc. and certain of
its subsidiaries and Guggenheim Investment Management, LLC.

4.24. Letter, dated March 18, 2004, to document the consent to the prepayment of the ClimaChem, Inc. debt to LSB Industries, Inc. 

10.1. Limited Partnership Agreement dated as of May 4, 1995, between the general partner, and LSB Holdings, Inc., an Oklahoma Corporation, as limited partner which the Company
hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.11 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995.

10.2. Form of Death Benefit Plan Agreement between the Company and the employees covered under the plan, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10(c) (1)
to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1980.

10.3. The Company's 1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1993.
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10.4. The Company's 1993 Non-employee Director Stock Option Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1993.

10.5. First Amendment to Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated March 2, 1994, and Second Amendment to Stock Option Agreement, dated April 3, 1995, each between the Company
and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1995.

10.6. Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated April 22, 1998, between the Company and Robert C. Brown, M.D. The Company entered into substantially identical agreements with
Bernard G. Ille, Raymond B. Ackerman, Horace G. Rhodes, and Donald W. Munson. The Company will provide copies of these agreements to the Commission upon request.

10.7. The Company's 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.44 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998.

10.8. LSB Industries, Inc. 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit "B" to the LSB Proxy Statement, dated May 24,
1999, for Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

10.9. LSB Industries, Inc. Outside Directors Stock Option Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit "C" to the LSB Proxy Statement, dated May 24, 1999,
for Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

10.10. Nonqualified Stock Option, dated December 1, 2002, between the Company and William Manion, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.54 to the
Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. The Company entered into substantially identical nonqualified stock option agreements with three
other former employees for the purchase of 34,000 shares at an exercise price of $2.73 per share, expiring on November 21, 2011, 40,000 shares at an exercise price of $1.25 per
share, expiring on July 8, 2009, 31,000 shares at an exercise price of $4.188 per share, expiring on August 18, 2004 through April 22, 2008 and 4,000 shares at an exercise price
of $9.00 per share, expired on March 19, 2003, copies of which will be provided to the Commission upon request.

10.11. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated November 7, 2002, between the Company and John J. Bailey Jr, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 55
to the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.12. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated November 29, 2001, between the Company and Dan Ellis, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.56 to
the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.13. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated July 20, 2000, between the Company and Claude Rappaport for the purchase of 80,000 shares of common stock, which the Company
hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.57 to the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. Substantially similar nonqualified
stock option agreements were entered into with Mr. Rappaport (40,000 shares at an exercise
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price of $1.25 per share, expiring on July 20, 2009), (5,000 shares at an exercise price of $5.362 per share, expiring on July 20, 2007), and (60,000 shares at an exercise price
of $1.375 per share, expiring on July 20, 2009), copies of which will be provided to the Commission upon request.

10.14. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated July 8, 1999, between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.58 to
the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. Substantially similar nonqualified stock options were granted to Barry H. Golsen (55,000
shares), Stephen J. Golsen (35,000 shares), David R. Goss (35,000 shares), Tony M. Shelby (35,000 shares), David M. Shear (35,000 shares) and five other employees (165,000
shares), copies of which will be provided to the Commission upon request.

10.15. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated December 18, 1997, between the Company and Dan Ellis, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.59 to
the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.16. Severance Agreement, dated January 17, 1989, between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.48 to the Company's
Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 1988. The Company also entered into identical agreements with Tony M. Shelby, David R. Goss, Barry H. Golsen, David M. Shear, and Jim
D. Jones and the Company will provide copies thereof to the Commission upon request.

10.17. Employment Agreement and Amendment to Severance Agreement dated January 12, 1989 between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, dated March 21, 1996 which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.15 to the Company's Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 1995.

10.18. First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated April 29, 2003, between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit
10.52 to the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.19. Baytown Nitric Acid Project and Supply Agreement dated June 27, 1997, by and among El Dorado Nitrogen Company, El Dorado Chemical Company and Bayer Corporation which the
Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN
OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551, DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.20. First Amendment to Baytown Nitric Acid Project and Supply Agreement, dated February 1, 1999, between El Dorado Nitrogen Company and Bayer Corporation, which the Company
hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.30 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS
IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #7927, DATED JUNE 9, 1999, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.21. Service Agreement, dated June 27, 1997, between Bayer Corporation and El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to
the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
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ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551, DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR
CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.22. Ground Lease dated June 27, 1997, between Bayer Corporation and El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551, DATED
SEPTEMBER 25, 1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.23. Participation Agreement, dated as of June 27, 1997, among El Dorado Nitrogen Company, Boatmen's Trust Company of Texas as Owner Trustee, Security Pacific Leasing
Corporation, as Owner Participant and a Construction Lender, Wilmington Trust Company, Bayerische Landes Bank, New York Branch, as a Construction Lender and the Note Purchaser,
and Bank of America National Trust and Savings Association, as Construction Loan Agent which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551, DATED SEPTEMBER 25,
1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.24. Lease Agreement, dated as of June 27, 1997, between Boatmen's Trust Company of Texas as Owner Trustee and El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates
by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997.

10.25. Security Agreement and Collateral Assignment of Construction Documents, dated as of June 27, 1997, made by El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates
by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997.

10.26. Security Agreement and Collateral Assignment of Facility Documents, dated as of June 27, 1997, made by El Dorado Nitrogen Company and consented to by Bayer Corporation
which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997.

10.27. Letter Agreement, dated March 12, 1999, between Kestrel Aircraft Company and LSB Industries, Inc., Prime Financial Corporation, Herman Meinders, Carlan K. Yates, Larry H.
Lemon, Co-Trustee Larry H. Lemon Living Trust, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.45 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1998.

10.28. Loan Agreement dated December 23, 1999 between Climate Craft, Inc. and the City of Oklahoma City, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.49 to
the Company's Amendment No. 2 to its 1999 Form 10-K.

10.29. Letter, dated April 1, 2001, executed by SBL to Prime amending the Promissory Note, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.55 to the Company's
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.
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10.30. Agreement, dated October 18, 2001, by and between LSB Industries, Inc., Prime Financial Corporation, and SBL Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

10.31. Agreement, dated April 2, 2001, between Crystal City Nitrogen Company and River Cement Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.57 to



the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

10.32. Assignment, dated May 8, 2001, between Climate Master, Inc. and Prime Financial Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.

10.33. Agreement for Purchase and Sale, dated April 10, 2001, by and between Prime Financial Corporation and Raptor Master, L.L.C. which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.

10.34. Amended and Restated Lease Agreement, dated May 8, 2001, between Raptor Master, L.L.C. and Climate Master, Inc. which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.

10.35. Option Agreement, dated May 8, 2001, between Raptor Master, L.L.C. and Climate Master, Inc., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.

10.36. Stock Purchase Agreement, dated September 30, 2001, by and between Summit Machinery Company and SBL Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company' Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

10.37. Certificate of Designations of LSB Industries, Inc., relating to the issuance of a new series of Class C Preferred Stock, which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference form Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

10.38. Asset Purchase Agreement, dated October 22, 2001, between Orica USA, Inc. and El Dorado Chemical Company and Northwest Financial Corporation, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Form 8-K dated December 28, 2001. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A
REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED
SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.39. AN Supply Agreement, dated November 1, 2001, between Orica USA, Inc. and El Dorado Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated December 28, 2001. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT
BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.40. Ammonium Nitrate Sales Agreement between Nelson Brothers, L.L.C. and Cherokee Nitrogen Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.3 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated December 28, 2001. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT
BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.41. Agreement, dated August 4, 2001, between El Dorado Chemical Company and Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers International Union AFL-C10 and its Local 5-
434, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.65 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

10.42. Agreement, dated October 16, 2001, between El Dorado Chemical Company and International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, AFL-C10 Local No. 224, which the
Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.66 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

10.43. Warrant, dated May 24, 2002, granted by the Company to a Lender for the right to purchase up to 132,508 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $0.10
per share, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002. Four substantially similar Warrants, dated May 24,
2002, for the purchase of an aggregate additional 463,077 shares at an exercise price of $0.10 were issued. Copies of these Warrants will be provided to the Commission upon
request.

10.44. Intercreditor Agreement, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002.

10.45. Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2002, by and among Energetic Systems Inc. LLC, UTeC Corporation, LLC, SEC Investment Corp. LLC, DetaCorp Inc. LLC,
Energetic Properties, LLC, Slurry Explosive Corporation, Universal Tech Corporation, El Dorado Chemical Company, LSB Chemical Corp., LSB Industries, Inc. and Slurry Explosive
Manufacturing Corporation, LLC, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated December 12, 2002. The asset purchase
agreement contains a brief list identifying all schedules and exhibits to the asset purchase agreement. Such schedules and exhibits are not filed herewith, and the Registrant
agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of the omitted schedules and exhibits to the commission upon request.

10.46. Anhydrous Ammonia Sales Agreement, dated December 9, 2002, between Koch Nitrogen Company and El Dorado Chemical Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 10.48 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF
COMMISSION ORDER CF #13890 GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.47. Anhydrous Ammonia Sales Agreement, dated January 22, 2004, between Koch Nitrogen Company and El Dorado Chemical Company. CERTAIN INFORMATION
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WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF
INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.48. Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 25, 2003, among LSB Industries, Inc., Kent C. McCarthy, Jayhawk Capital management, L.L.C., Jayhawk Investments, L.P. and
Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.49 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2002.

10.49. Subscription Agreement, dated March 25, 2003, by and between LSB Industries, Inc. and Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P., which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 10.50 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.50. Warrant Agreement, dated March 25, 2003, between LSB Industries, Inc. and Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from
Exhibit 10.51 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.51. Release, dated February 11, 2003, by Stillwater National Bank and Trust Company in favor of Prime Financial Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 10.53 to the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

14.1 Code of Ethics for CEO and Senior Financial Officers of Subsidiaries of LSB Industries, Inc.

  
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company.

  
23.1 Consent of Independent Auditors.

  
31.1 Certification of Jack E. Golsen, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, Section 302.

  
31.2 Certification of Tony M. Shelby, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, Section 302.

  
32.1 Certification of Jack E. Golsen, Chief Executive Officer, furnished pursuant to Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002, Section 906.

  
32.2 Certification of Tony M. Shelby, Chief Financial Officer, furnished pursuant to Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002, Section 906.

(b) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K. We filed the following reports on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of 2003.

(i) Form 8-K dated November 12, 2003. The item reported was Item 12, "Results of Operations and
Financial Condition", discussing the issuance of our earnings release for the quarter ended
September 30, 2003.

(ii) Form 8-K dated December 8, 2003. The item reported was Item 5, "Other Events and Regulation FD
Disclosure", discussing the issuance of a press release announcing that our common stock listing
application has been approved by the American Stock Exchange.

 

-80-
 

 

Signatures 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Company has caused the undersigned, duly-authorized, to sign this
report on its behalf of this 7th day of April 2004.

 

 LSB INDUSTRIES, INC.

 By:

 /s/ Jack E. Golsen

 Jack E. Golsen
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

B



 By:

 /s/ Tony M. Shelby

 Tony M. Shelby
Executive Vice President of Finance
(Principal Financial Officer)

 By:

 /s/ Jim D. Jones

 Jim D. Jones
Senior Vice President, Controller and Treasurer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the undersigned have signed this report on behalf of the Company, in the capacities and on the
dates indicated.

Dated: By: /s/ Jack E. Golsen
April 7, 2004 Jack E. Golsen, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Tony M. Shelby
April 7, 2004 Tony M. Shelby, Director
Dated: By: /s/ David R. Goss
April 7, 2004 David R. Goss, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Barry H. Golsen
April 7, 2004 Barry H. Golsen, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Robert C. Brown MD
April 7, 2004 Robert C. Brown MD, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Bernard G. Ille
April 7, 2004 Bernard G. Ille, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Raymond B. Ackerman
April 7, 2004 Raymond B. Ackerman, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Horace G. Rhodes
April 7, 2004 Horace G. Rhodes, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Donald W. Munson
April 7, 2004 Donald W. Munson, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Charles A. Burtch
April 7, 2004 Charles A. Burtch, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Grant Donovan
April 7, 2004 Grant Donovan, Director
Dated: By: /s/ Dr. Allen Ford
April 7, 2004 Dr. Allen Ford, Director
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 

LSB Industries, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LSB Industries, Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders' equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules
listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of LSB Industries, Inc. at December 31,
2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.

                                                                                                ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 
March 22, 2004

F-1

LSB Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

 

 December 31,

 2003  2002

 (In Thousands)

Assets      
Current assets:      
  Cash $ 3,189 $ 2,091

  Restricted cash  -  1,838

  Trade accounts and notes receivable, net  35,357  35,579

  Inventories  26,939  26,976

  Supplies, prepaid items and other  9,225  8,222

Total current assets  74,710  74,706

Property, plant and equipment, net  71,934  74,563

Other assets, net  11,650  13,513

 $ 158,294 $ 162,782



(Continued on following page)
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LSB Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued)

 December 31,

 2003  2002

 (In Thousands)

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity        
Current liabilities:

  Accounts and drafts payable $ 22,027  $ 24,018 
  Accrued liabilities:        
    Customer deposits  4,576   3,469 
    Deferred rent expense  3,766   128 
    Other  14,830   13,742 
  Current portion of long-term debt:        
    Secured revolving credit facility  24,027   27,209 
    Other  7,603   11,680 
Total current liabilities  76,829   80,246 
Long-term debt  71,645   74,472 
Other noncurrent liabilities:        
    Deferred rent expense  -   3,594 
    Other  4,139   3,967 
  4,139   7,561 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)  -   - 
Stockholders' equity:        
  Series B 12% cumulative, convertible preferred stock, $100 par value; 
   20,000 shares issued and outstanding; aggregate liquidation preference
   of $2,960,000 in 2003 ($2,720,000 in 2002)

 
2,000

   
2,000

 

  Series 2 $3.25 convertible, exchangeable Class C preferred stock,
   $50 stated value; 628,550 shares issued; aggregate liquidation preference
   of $40,547,000 in 2003 ($38,521,000 in 2002)

 
31,427

   
31,427

 

  Series D 6% cumulative, convertible Class C preferred stock, 
   no par value; 1,000,000 shares issued; aggregate liquidation preference 
   of $1,120,000 in 2003 ($1,060,000 in 2002)

 
1,000

   
1,000

 

  Common stock, $.10 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized, 15,820,234 
   shares issued (15,236,114 in 2002)

 
1,582

   
1,524

 
  Capital in excess of par value  56,223   54,503 
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (1,570)   (1,859)

  Accumulated deficit  (68,713)   (71,824)

  21,949   16,771 
  Less treasury stock, at cost:        
   Series 2 preferred, 5,000 shares  200   200 
   Common stock, 3,272,426 shares  16,068   16,068 
Total stockholders' equity  5,681   503 
 $ 158,294  $ 162,782 

See accompanying notes.
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LSB Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

 

 Year ended December 31,

 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Net sales $ 317,263  $ 283,811  $ 314,942 
Cost of sales  267,831   238,818   264,168 
Gross profit  49,432   44,993   50,774 
Selling, general and administrative  41,745   39,428   43,646 
Operating income  7,687   5,565   7,128 
Other income (expense):            
  Other income  1,815   3,549   2,912 
  Gains on sales of property and equipment  -   47   6,615 
  Gains on extinguishment of debt  258   1,458   2,631 
  Benefit from termination of firm purchase commitments  -   290   2,688 
  Interest expense (Note 6)  (5,559)   (7,590)   (13,338)

  Other expense  (1,090)   (563)   (1,196)

Income from continuing operations before provision for income
   taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change  

3,111
   

2,756
   

7,440
 

Provision for income taxes  -   (56)   (110)

Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of
  accounting change  

3,111
   

2,700
   

7,330
 

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net  -   (3,461)   1,227 
Cumulative effect of accounting change (Note 2)  -   860   - 
Net income  3,111   99   8,557 
Preferred stock dividend requirements  (2,327)   (2,327)   (2,267)

Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ 784  $ (2,228)  $ 6,290 
Income (loss) per common share:            
  Basic:            
    Income from continuing operations before cumulative 
     effect of accounting change $ ..06

  
$ ..03

  
$ ..43

 
    Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net  -   (.29)   .10 
    Cumulative effect of accounting change  -   .07   - 
    Net income (loss) $ .06  $ (.19)  $ .53 
  Diluted:            
    Income from continuing operations before cumulative effect of
     accounting change $ ..05 $ ..03 $ ..41
    Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net  -   (.29)   .09 
    Cumulative effect of accounting change  -   .07     
    Net income (loss) $ .05  $ (.19)  $ .50 

See accompanying notes.
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LSB Industries, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Defcit)

 

 
Common
Stock
Shares

 Non-
Redeemable
Preferred
Stock

 
Common
Stock

Par Value

 
Capital in
Excess of 
Par Value

 Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

 
Accumulated
Deficit

 
Treasury
Stock-

Preferred

 
Treasury
Stock -
Common

 

Total

 (In Thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2000 15,164 $ 33,427 $ 1,516 $ 52,376 $ - $ (80,480) $ (200) $ (16,081) $ (9,442)

Net income 8,557 8,557

Cumulative effect of change
in
 accounting for derivative
 financial instruments

            
(2,439)

               
(2,439)

Reclassification to
operations

290 290

Total comprehensive income 6,408

Issuance of 1,000,000 shares 
 of Series D preferred stock
 in exchange for $1,000,000 
 of long-term debt

   

1,000

                         

1,000

 

Exercise of stock options 35 4 39 43

Conversion of 167 shares of
 redeemable preferred stock
to
 common stock

7

     
1

  
15

                   
16

 

Net change in treasury stock-
 common

                         
13
   

13
 

Balance at December 31, 2001 15,206  34,427  1,521  52,430  (2,149)   (71,923)    (200)   (16,068)   (1,962)

Net income 99 99

Reclassification to
operations

290 290

Total comprehensive income 389

Issuance of 595,585 common
 stock purchase warrants
(Note
 6)

         
1,983

                   
1,983

 

Grant of 115,000 stock
options
 to former employees

         
48
                   

48
 

Exercise of stock options 25 3 30 33

Conversion of 128 shares of
 redeemable preferred stock
to 
 common stock

5 12 12

Balance at December 31, 2002 15,236  34,427  1,524  54,503  (1,859)   (71,824)    (200)   (16,068)   503 

(Continued on following page)
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Common
Stock
Shares

 Non-
Redeemable
Preferred
Stock

 
Common
Stock

Par Value

 
Capital in
Excess of
Par Value

 Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

 
Accumulated
Deficit

 
Treasury
Stock -
Preferred

 
Treasury
Stock -
Common

 

Total

 (In Thousands)

Net income                 3,111           3,111 
Reclassification to operations             289               289 
Total comprehensive income                             3,400 
Issuance of 450,000 shares of
 of common stock 450

     
45
  

1,526
                  

1,571
 

Exercise of stock options 131     13  186                  199 
Conversion of 83 shares of
 redeemable preferred stock to
 common stock 3

        
8

                  
8

 

Balance at December 31, 2003 15,820 $ 34,427 $ 1,582 $ 56,223 $ (1,570)  $ (68,713)  $ (200)  $ (16,068)  $ 5,681 

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

 Year ended December 31,

 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities            
Net income $ 3,111  $ 99  $ 8,557 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used)
 by continuing operating activities:

           
   Loss (income) from discontinued operations, net  -   3,461   (1,227)

   Cumulative effect of accounting change  -   (860)   - 
   Gains on extinguishment of debt  (258)   (1,458)   (2,631)

   Gain on restructuring of debt  -   (99)   - 
   Losses (gains) on sales of property and equipment  4   (47)   (6,615)

   Provision for losses on (realization and reversal of) firm
    sales and purchase commitments

 
(589)

  
704
   

(7,825)
   Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  10,312   9,497   9,693 
   Amortization  904   1,066   1,013 
   Provision for losses on accounts receivable  1,031   618   128 
   Provision for losses on (realization and reversal of) 
    inventory

 
(436)

  
1,268

   
364
 

   Provision for impairment on long-lived assets  500   -   - 
   Other  (14)   (15)   (464)

   Cash provided (used) by changes in assets and liabilities
    (net of effects of discontinued operations):

           
    Trade accounts receivable  (1,871)   6,269   6,622 
    Inventories  473   658   371 
    Supplies, prepaid items and other  (1,003)   (1,143)   (838)

    Accounts payable  (1,968)   (137)   (2,669)

    Accrued and other noncurrent liabilities  3,003   2,369   (5,420)

Net cash provided (used) by continuing operating activities  13,199   22,250   (941)



(Continued on following page)
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 Year ended December 31,

 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Cash flows from investing activities            
  Capital expenditures $ (7,177)  $ (10,029)  $ (5,840)

  Proceeds from sales of property and equipment  84   1,092   8,618 
  Proceeds from (payment of) restricted cash held in escrow  1,838   (1,488)   (350)

  Other assets  598   986   (679)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities  (4,657)   (9,439)   1,749 
Cash flows from financing activities            
  Payments on long-term and other debt  (7,657)   (10,824)   (8,264)

  Long-term and other borrowings, net of origination fees  1,890   2,550   3,891 
  Proceeds from Financing Agreement, net of fees  -   32,155   - 
  Acquisition of 10 3/4% Senior Unsecured Notes  -   (30,065)   (2,066)

  Net change in revolving debt facilities  (3,424)   (9,694)   4,153 
  Net change in drafts payable  (23)   (50)   (134)

  Net proceeds from issuance of common stock and warrants  1,770   33   32 
Net cash used by financing activities  (7,444)   (15,895)   (2,388)

Net cash provided (used) by discontinued operations  -   4,547   (855)

Net increase (decrease) in cash  1,098   1,463   (2,435)

Cash at beginning of year  2,091   628   3,063 
Cash at end of year $ 3,189  $ 2,091  $ 628 

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

1. Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LSB Industries, Inc. (the "Company", "We", Us", or "Our") and its subsidiaries. We are a diversified
holding company which is engaged, through our subsidiaries, in the manufacture and sale of a broad range of air handling and heat pump products (the "Climate Control Business")
and the manufacture and sale of chemical products (the "Chemical Business"). See Note 18 - Segment Information. In December 2002, we sold all of the remaining assets comprising
our explosives manufacturing and distribution business of Slurry Explosive Corporation ("Slurry") and Universal Technology Corporation ("UTeC") which operations were formerly
included in the Chemical Business. Our consolidated financial statements and notes reflect Slurry and UTeC as discontinued operations for all periods presented. See Note 17 -
Discontinued Operations. Entities that are 20% to 50% owned and for which we have significant influence are accounted for on the equity method and included in other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and other income in the consolidated statements of income. Our equity interest in the results of operations of these entities has not
been material for each of the three years ended December 31, 2003. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Certain reclassifications have been made in our consolidated financial statements for 2002 and 2001 to conform to our consolidated financial statement presentation for 2003.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Receivables and Credit Risk

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, our trade accounts and notes receivable includes trade receivables of $35.4 million and $34.3 million, respectively, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $3.2 million and $2.4 million, respectively, and notes receivable of $1.3 million as of December 31, 2002. Sales to contractors and independent sales
representatives are generally subject to a mechanics lien in the Climate Control Business. Other sales are generally unsecured. Credit is extended to customers based on an
evaluation of the customer's financial condition and other factors. Credit losses are provided for in the financial statements based on historical experience and periodic
assessment of outstanding accounts receivable, particularly those accounts which are past due (determined based upon how recently payments have been received). Our periodic
assessment of accounts and credit loss provisions are based on our
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

best estimate of amounts that are not recoverable. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due to the large number of customers comprising our
customer bases and their dispersion across many different industries and geographic areas.

Inventories

Inventories are priced at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined using the first-in, first-out basis, except for certain heat pump products with a current cost
of $7,114,000 at December 31, 2003 ($7,670,000 at December 31, 2002), which are carried at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined using the last-in, first-out
(LIFO) basis. The difference between current cost and the LIFO basis was $503,000 and $701,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition, the carrying value of
certain nitrogen-based inventories produced by our Chemical Business was reduced to the market price. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the difference between current cost and the
market price was $563,000 and $1,222,000, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost. For financial reporting purposes, depreciation is primarily computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Property, plant and equipment leases which are deemed to be installment purchase obligations have been capitalized and included in property, plant and
equipment. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress or spare parts until such time as the relevant assets are put into service. Maintenance, repairs and
minor renewals are charged to operations while major renewals and improvements are capitalized. The Company accrues in advance the costs expected to be incurred in the next
planned major maintenance activities of our Chemical Business. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had accrued $2,678,000 and $1,886,000 respectively, related to these planned
activities.

Goodwill

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, goodwill, which is included in other assets in the accompanying balance sheets, was $1,724,000. Beginning January 1, 2002, goodwill is no longer
being amortized but is being reviewed for impairment at least annually. For 2001, amortization of goodwill was not material.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to
be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amounts of the assets to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If such assets are considered
to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amounts
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

of the assets exceed the fair values of the assets. Assets to be disposed are reported at the lower of the carrying amounts or fair values less costs to sell.

We have made estimates of the fair values of our Chemical Business and certain other long-lived assets in order to determine recoverability of our carrying amounts. We believe
that we will have sufficient funds available for necessary capital expenditures required and be able to comply with the new discharge water permit and the anticipated Air CAO
involving our El Dorado, Arkansas facility. See Note 3-Liquidity and Management's Plan and Note 8-Commitments and Contingencies. During 2003, based on these estimates and
assumptions, we recognized impairments of $300,000 relating to Corporate assets and $200,000 relating to the Chemical Business which are included in other expense in the



accompanying consolidated statement of income.

Debt Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs are amortized over the term of the associated debt instrument using the straight-line method. Such costs, which are included in other assets in the
accompanying balance sheets, were $934,000 and $1,455,000, net of accumulated amortization, of $1,665,000 and $1,141,000 as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In 2002,
debt issuance costs of $2,055,000 and accumulated amortization of $912,000 were written off against the gain resulting from the repurchase of Senior Unsecured Notes (see Note 6
(B)).

Product Warranty

Our Climate Control Business sells equipment that has an expected life, under normal circumstances and use, that extends over several years. As such, we provide warranties after
equipment delivery/installation covering defects in materials and workmanship. 

Generally, the warranty coverage for the manufactured equipment in the Climate Control Business is limited to eighteen months from the date of delivery or twelve months from the
date of installation, whichever is shorter, and to ninety days for spare parts. In most cases, equipment is required to be returned to the factory or its authorized
representative and the warranty is limited to the repair and replacement of the defective product, with a maximum warranty of the refund of the purchase price. Furthermore,
companies within the Climate Control Business do not make any warranties related to merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose and disclaim and exclude any liability
for consequential or incidental damages. In some cases, an extended warranty may be purchased. The above discussion is generally applicable but variations do occur depending upon
specific contractual obligations, certain system components and local laws. 

Our accounting policy and methodology for warranty arrangements is to periodically measure and recognize the expense and liability for such warranty obligations using a
percentage of net sales, based upon our historical warranty costs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The carrying amount of the warranty obligation is as follows:

Description

 
Balance at
Beginning of

Year

 Additions-
Charged to
Costs and
Expenses

 
Deductions-

Costs Incurred

 
Balance at

End 
of Year

     Product warranty: (In Thousands)
2003 $ 1,922  $ 576  $ 805  $ 1,693 

                 
2002 $ 2,558  $ 1,391  $ 2,027  $ 1,922 

Deferred Compensation

Costs associated with deferred compensation agreements are accrued over the estimated remaining terms of active employment (assuming retirement at 65 years of age). Total costs
accrued equal the present value of specified payments to be made after retirement.

Stock Options

At December 31, 2003, we have several Qualified and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plans, which are described more fully in Note 10-Stockholders' Equity. We account for those plans
under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. No stock-based compensation cost is
usually reflected in results of operations, as the majority of all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common
stock on the date of grant. 

The following table illustrates the effect on net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based compensation. The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions for 2002 and 2001, respectively (there were stock options granted in 2003): risk-free interest rates of 3.60% and 4.31%; a
dividend yield of 0; volatility factors of the expected market price of our common stock of .85 and .95; and a weighted average expected life of the options of 7.4 and 9.7 years.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In
addition, option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because our employee stock options have
characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in
management's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of our employee stock options.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the qualified and non-qualified stock options is amortized to expense over the options' vesting period.

 Year ended December 31

 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Net income (loss) applicable to common stock, as
  reported $ 784

 
$ (2,228)

 
$ 6,290

 
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included
 in reported net income, net of related tax effects

 
- -
   

48
   

- -
 

Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense
 determined under fair value based method for
 all awards, net of related tax effects

 
(380)

  
(624)

  
(371)

Pro forma net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ 404  $ (2,804)  $ 5,919 
Net income (loss) per share:

  Basic-as reported $ .06  $ (.19)  $ .53 
  Basic-pro forma $ .03  $ (.24)  $ .50 
  Diluted-as reported $ .05  $ (.19)  $ .50 
  Diluted-pro forma $ .03  $ (.24)  $ .47 

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue for substantially all of our operations at the time title to the goods transfers to the buyer and there remains no significant future performance obligations
by us. If revenue relates to construction contracts, we recognize revenue using the percentage-of-completion method based primarily on contract costs incurred to date compared
with total estimated contract costs. Changes to total estimated contract costs or losses, if any, are recognized in the period in which they are determined.

Shipping and Handling Costs 

The Chemical Business records its shipping and handling costs in net sales and the Climate Control Business records shipping and handling costs in selling, general and
administrative expense. For 2003, 2002 and 2001, the shipping and handling costs of the Chemical Business amounted to $8,138,000, $7,744,000 and $8,382,000, respectively, while
the cost in the Climate Control Business amounted to $4,043,000, $3,385,000 and $3,908,000, respectively.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Advertising Costs 

Costs in connection with advertising and promotion of our products are expensed as incurred. Such costs amounted to $692,000 in 2003, $700,000 in 2002 and $514,000 in 2001.

Raw Materials Price Risk Management

Raw materials for use in our manufacturing processes include copper, steel and aluminum used by our Climate Control Business and natural gas used by our Chemical Business. As
part of our raw material price risk management, we periodically enter into exchange-traded futures contracts for these materials, which contracts are generally accounted for on a
mark-to-market basis. Gains and losses on such contracts have not been material in the last three years. See Note 8 - Commitments and Contingencies.

Income (Loss) per Share 

Net income (loss) applicable to common stock is computed by adjusting net income (loss) by the amount of preferred stock dividends. Basic income (loss) per common share is based
upon net income (loss) applicable to common stock and the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each year. Diluted income (loss) per share, if applicable,
is based on the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding, if any, and the assumed conversion of dilutive convertible securities
outstanding, if any. See Note 9 - Redeemable Preferred Stock, Note 10 - Stockholders' Equity, and Note 11 - Non-Redeemable Preferred Stock for a full description of securities
which may have a dilutive effect in future years.



F-14

LSB Industries, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

 2003  2002  2001

Numerator:            
Net income $ 3,111  $ 99  $ 8,557 
Preferred stock dividend requirements  (2,327)   (2,327)   (2,267)

Numerator for basic net income (loss) per share
 - net income (loss) applicable to common stock  

784
   

(2,228)
  

6,290
Preferred stock dividend requirements on 
 preferred stock assumed to be converted, if  
 dilutive

 
- -

   
- -

   
240

 

Numerator for diluted net income (loss) per
 share $ 784

  
$ (2,228)

 
$ 6,530

 
Denominator:            
 Denominator for basic net income (loss) per 
  share - weighted average shares

 
12,352,613

   
11,948,772

   
11,913,031

 
 Effect of dilutive securities:            
  Employee stock options  1,293,262   -   380,078 
  Warrants  604,286   -   - 
  Convertible preferred stock  44,375   -   784,681 
  Convertible note payable  4,000   -   4,000 
Dilutive potential common shares  1,945,923   -   1,168,759 
Denominator for dilutive net income (loss) per 
 share - adjusted weighted average shares  and
 assumed conversions

 
14,298,536

   
11,948,772

   
13,081,790

 

Basic net income (loss) per share $ .06  $ (.19)  $ .53 
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ .05  $ (.19)  $ .50 
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Recently Issued Pronouncements

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 ("FIN 46") "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities." FIN 46 addresses the consolidation of variable interest entities
which meet certain characteristics. In December 2003, the FASB revised FIN 46 that included changes to the effective dates depending on the characteristics of the variable
interest entities and the date of involvement. 

Prior to 2003, we, through our subsidiaries, entered into loan agreements where we loaned funds to the parent company of Multi Clima, S.A. ("Multi Clima") a French manufacturer
of HVAC equipment, whose product line is compatible with our Climate Control Business. Under the loan agreements, one of our subsidiaries has the option, which expires June 15,
2005, to exchange its rights under the loan agreements for 100% of the borrower's outstanding common stock. This subsidiary also obtained a security interest in the stock of
Multi Clima to secure its loans. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the outstanding notes receivable balance, net of reserve, was $2.6 million which is included in other assets in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. In addition, certain of our subsidiaries owed Multi Clima $.5 million and $.8 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively,
for purchases of HVAC equipment. As of the date of this report, we have not exercised our option. Based on our current assessment of the parent company and Multi Clima in
relation to FIN 46, as revised, we will be required to consolidate this entity effective March 31, 2004 because we believe the entity lacks sufficient equity to absorb expected
losses and we bear the majority of the risk of loss of this entity. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the parent company of Multi Clima had consolidated total assets of $8.3 million
and $8.4 million, respectively, and consolidated total liabilities of $5.2 million and $5.6 million, respectively. For 2003, 2002 and 2001, net sales were $14.7 million, $15.7
million and $16 million, respectively (which included sales to certain of our subsidiaries of $.5 million, $1.8 million and $1.1 million, respectively), and net income was $.1
million and $.3 million for 2003 and 2002, respectively and a net loss of $ .2 million for 2001. 

In relation to one of our subsidiaries' long-term operating lease of a nitric acid plant in Baytown, Texas ("Baytown Plant"), substantially all of the operating costs, subject to
certain performance obligations on our part, are passed along to the party (the "Buyer") purchasing the majority of the production from the Baytown Plant under a cost-plus
contract. We nor any of our subsidiaries have not provided a residual value guarantee on the value of the equipment. In addition, the Buyer has unilateral decision making
authority whether to exercise the fixed price purchase option at lease expiration. If they decide to exercise the purchase option, they must also fund it. Based on our estimates
of expected cash flows and variability therein and the fact that our subsidiary does not have a variable interest in the expected losses of the entity, we believe others bear the
majority risk of loss and residual gains. Accordingly, we are not the primary beneficiary and we will not consolidate the special purpose trust that includes the Baytown Plant
and related debt. As of December 31, 2003, the remaining lease rental obligation under the lease associated with the Baytown Plant approximates $48.7 million as discussed in Note
8 - Commitments and Contingencies. These lease payments are includable costs under the contract.
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In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 142 ("SFAS 142"), "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" which requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives no
longer be amortized but be tested for impairment at least annually. SFAS 142 became effective for us on January 1, 2002. Upon adoption of SFAS 142, we recognized $860,000 of
negative goodwill as a cumulative effect of accounting change.

Statements of Cash Flows 

Supplemental cash flow information includes:

 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Cash payment (receipts) for:           
  Interest on long-term debt and other $ 5,691 $ 7,924  $ 13,572 
  Income taxes, net of refunds $ (43) $ 32  $ 81 
Noncash financing and investing activities:           
  Long-term debt issued for property, plant and equipment $ 639 $ 13  $ - 
  Long-term debt extinguished in exchange for the extinguishment
   of a note receivable $ (1,276) $ - -

  
$ - -

 
  Grant of warrants to purchase common stock in connection
   with debt restructuring $ - -

 
$ 1,983

  
$ - -

 
  Preferred stock issued in exchange for long-term debt $ - $ -  $ 1,000 
  Cumulative effect of change in accounting for derivative
   financial instruments $ - -

 
$ - -

  
$ 2,439

 
  Grant of non-qualified stock options $ - $ 48  $ - 

3. Liquidity and Management's Plan

We depend on credit agreements and our ability to obtain funds from our subsidiaries in order to pay our obligations. Our Summit Machine Tool Manufacturing Corp. subsidiary (not
a subsidiary of ClimaChem) finances its working capital requirements through borrowings under a credit facility ("Facility") with a different lender than ClimaChem's lender. The
Facility provides a revolving line of credit of $650,000 and has a maturity date of February 22, 2005.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, ClimaChem, owns substantially all of our core businesses. Historically, ClimaChem's primary cash needs have been for operating expenses, working
capital and capital expenditures. ClimaChem depends on credit agreements, internally generated cash flows, and secured equipment financing in order to fund operations and pay
obligations.
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3. Liquidity and Management's Plan (continued)



Sources of cash flow in 2003 consisted of $13.2 million generated from operating activities, long-term borrowings of $1.9 million, $1.8 million proceeds from the issuance of
common stock and warrants and $1.8 million in proceeds from the release of restricted cash held in escrow.

Uses of cash in 2003, in addition to operating activities, included $7.7 million for scheduled debt payments, $7.2 million for capital expenditures primarily in the Chemical
Business and a $3.4 million pay down of the working capital revolver.

ClimaChem's ability to maintain an adequate amount of borrowing availability under its existing working capital revolver depends on its ability to comply with the terms and
conditions of such agreement, the lender's commitment to making the facility available to us and cash flow from operations, investing activities and required debt service.

As discussed in Note 6 (A) and (B), ClimaChem is restricted under its credit agreements as to the funds that it may transfer to LSB and its affiliates. This limitation does not
prohibit payment of amounts due under a Services Agreement, Management Agreement and a Tax Sharing Agreement. As of December 31, 2003, ClimaChem had cash and working capital
availability of $12.1 million while non-ClimaChem entities had cash and working capital availability of $.5 million.

Management's plan for 2004 forecasts that we will have adequate cash in 2004 from internal cash flows and financing sources to enable us to satisfy our cash requirements. Certain
key initiatives and assumptions include (a) building on our successful Climate Control Business with an emphasis on our energy-saving geothermal product line, an upturn in the
hospitality and lodging industry and improving our operating results in our start-up businesses, (b) controlling our costs through negotiated cost reductions and improved
productivity (c) continuing to move our Chemical Business toward cost plus type arrangements with customers to minimize the risk of raw material price volatility, (d) maximizing
the production from our existing plants to minimize the effect of unabsorbed fixed operating costs, (e) taking advantage of opportunities in the market presented by the closure
of certain nitrogen plants that previously moved product into our markets, and (f) limiting capital expenditures to only those projects essent ial to the execution of our
business plan, or those with potentially high return on investment that can be financed.

The Climate Control Business has significant market share in its niche of the United States commercial and residential heating ventilation and air conditioning "HVAC" business.
Climate Control's two primary product lines are hydronic fan coils and water source heat pumps. The Climate Control Business has historically generated consistent profits and
cash flow although their profitability was lower in 2003 due to the impact of reduced demand for hydronic fan coils nationally (sales of hydronic fan coils represented
approximately 40% of the Climate Control Business' revenues in 2003) caused by a slowdown in the hospitality and lodging industry
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attributed to the events of September 11, 2001 and the subsequent reduction of travel. Construction industry forecasts predict that new hotel construction starts and renovation
will increase during 2004. The water source heat pump product line, which represented 51% of Climate Control's revenues experienced a 5% growth in 2003 and is planning additional
growth in 2004. A recent addition to the product offering is the large custom air handler product line, which accounted for approximately 7% of Climate Control's revenue.
Included in Climate Control's operating results are certain start-up operations and/or services that have adversely affected operating results in recent periods. We believe that
we have significantly strengthened the sales and marketing infrastructure of these start-up operations during the last two years and expect growth in sales and near break even
results compared to aggregate operating losses of approximately $4.2 million in 2003 of these start-up operations.

The Chemical Business is primarily a nitrogen business with plants in Arkansas, Alabama and Texas, that serve markets which, for the most part, are freight logical to these
locations. The primary raw material feedstocks (anhydrous ammonia and natural gas) are commodities, subject to significant price fluctuations and are purchased at prices in
effect at time of purchase. The cost of the raw material feedstocks does not directly influence the sales price of our Chemical Business products. Currently, approximately 38% of
the sales of the Chemical Business, primarily agricultural nitrogen products, are sold at the spot market price in effect at the time of shipment. The spot market sales price
does not always provide for a full recovery of raw material costs incurred. As a result, management has pursued a strategy of developing customers that purchase substantial
quantities of products pursuant to contracts and/or formulas that provide for the full pass through of costs plus a profit margin. Currently, app roximately 62% of the sales of
the Chemical Business are based upon a formula of cost plus a profit margin. We expect similar arrangements in 2004. These cost-plus arrangements help to reduce our raw material
price exposure.

The recent problem with profitability in the agricultural market has been an imbalance of supply and demand. For a number of years, the production capacity for prilled ammonium
nitrate has exceeded the demand, resulting in low selling prices compared to the cost of production. This oversupply in the market of agricultural nitrogen products of the kind
we produce has resulted in an inability to pass through the full natural gas and ammonia cost increases when they occur. We believe that in 2004 there will be some improvement in
this imbalance condition. We currently believe that with the shut down of several nitrogen-based competitors in recent periods and stable imports, the market has achieved a
reduction in the oversupply of product relative to demand. In summary, we are expecting stronger sales prices in 2004 due to the improved supply/demand balance.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate the product lines of the operations of our chemical plants for profitability consistent with management's goal to minimize the negative impact
that changing
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prices of natural gas and anhydrous ammonia have on our sales and operating results. Management's plan for 2004 anticipates that the industrial-grade products that are sold
pursuant to long-term cost-plus agreements will continue in 2004 at or about the same volume levels as in 2003. We expect that the 2004 production levels for nitrogen products
sold as fertilizers into the agricultural markets will approximate the 2003 production levels but the sales as expressed in dollars will be higher due to correspondingly higher
unit sales prices. Due to the volatility of sales prices and the costs of feedstocks (anhydrous ammonia and natural gas) it is difficult to predict whether or not the sales of
nitrogen products sold as fertilizer into the agricultural markets (approximately 38% of our sales) will be profitable for 2004. 

Effective January 20, 2004, the Chemical Business and its ammonia supplier entered into a new supply agreement whereby the supplier will sell to the Chemical Business' El Dorado
Facility all of its ammonia requirements through December 31, 2004.

Our Chemical Business has historically required significant investment to fund capital expenditures while our Climate Control Business has been much less capital intensive. We
believe we have approximately $6 million of committed capital expenditures related to our Chemical Business in 2004, which includes: (a) $1 million relating to the sulfuric acid
plant at the El Dorado Facility, (b) $1.9 million primarily relating to the annual turnaround at the Cherokee Facility, (c) $2.6 million relating to operations, and (d) $.3
million for environmental compliance. Other capital expenditures are believed to be discretionary and are dependent upon an adequate amount of liquidity and/or obtaining
acceptable funding.

If the Discharge Water permit (See Note 8) for the El Dorado Facility is approved as negotiated, if the City of El Dorado, Arkansas (the "City") builds its own discharge pipeline
to a nearby river and if we are permitted to tie our pipeline into the City's pipeline, we currently expect to incur capital expenditures of approximately $3 to $4 million over
the next three years. Management is continuing to review the design and configurations of treatment and discharge facilities to address the permitting issues. 

Also as discussed in Note 8, certain expenditures will be required to bring the sulfuric acid plant's air emissions to lower limits. The design of additional emission controls at
this plant is underway. The ultimate cost of any technological changes required cannot presently be determined, but is believed to be a minimum of $1.5 million. These projects
are expected to require funding over a six year period, beginning in 2004. 

As discussed in Note 6 (A), ClimaChem finances it working capital requirements through borrowings under a Working Capital Revolver Loan that matures in April 2005. As of December
31, 2003, borrowings outstanding were $24 million and the net credit available for additional borrowings was $9.2 million. The Working Capital Revolver Loan requires that
ClimaChem and its Climate Control Business meet certain financial covenants. The required EBITDA amounts
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for each quarterly measurement date in 2004 are $13.8 million for the trailing twelve months ended March 31, 2004 and escalate to $15 million for the year ended December 31,
2004. The trailing twelve-months EBITDA requirement is fixed at $10 million for the Climate Control Business for all 2004 quarterly measurement dates. The EBITDA requirements
were set at amounts based upon our forecasts which are presently considered by management to be achievable. 

We have the ability to set our financial covenants under our lending agreements with our lender on an annual basis each January. In setting these covenants, we provide the
lenders with a forecast that we believe to be a very conservative estimate of our operating results for the coming year. For 2004, we have established mutually agreeable limits
that we believe are well within our ability to achieve.

ClimaChem's customers remit payments on their accounts directly to the working capital lender under a lock-box arrangement, and the lender applies such payments to reduce the
debt outstanding under the Working Capital Revolver Loan. ClimaChem may request additional borrowings under the Working Capital Revolver Loan; however, one of several conditions
(as determined by the lender) precedent to additional borrowings is that no "material adverse change" (as defined in the Working Capital Revolver Loan agreement) shall have
occurred. This provision in the Working Capital Revolver Loan agreement may allow the lender to terminate additional borrowings by ClimaChem and effectively accelerate the
scheduled maturity of the debt under conditions that may not be objectively determinable (the "Subjective Acceleration Clause"). Management does not anticipate that the lender
will invoke the Subjective Acceleration Clause. 

In the event the Company does not remain in compliance with the covenants and/or the lender exercises its rights under the Subjective Acceleration Clause in the Working Capital
Revolver Loan, thus terminating additional borrowings, ClimaChem would have no immediate borrowing availability. If a new lender arrangement was not available to fund obligations
as they become due, a significant curtailment of operations could occur. In that event, if the proceeds from sales of remaining inventories and collections of accounts receivable
of the businesses involved did not provide sufficient funds, ClimaChem could be required to sell other key assets. In that event, ClimaChem would be required to obtain working
capital financing from other sources for its remaining businesses. There are no assurances that we would be successful in replacing, on a timely basis, the Working Capital
Revolver Loan needed to fund ClimaChem's remaining operations.

As discussed in Note 6 (B), ClimaChem entered into a Financing Agreement that requires that ClimaChem and its Climate Control Business meet certain financial covenants. For
quarters ending after December 31, 2003, ClimaChem is required to maintain EBITDA on a trailing twelve-month basis of at least $12 million to prevent a triggering event ("Trigger
Event").
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ClimaChem does not expect that a Trigger Event will occur in 2004.

The Working Capital Revolver Loan agreement and the Financing Agreement contain cross-default provisions. If the Trigger Event occurs and/or ClimaChem fails to meet the other



financial covenants of the Financing Agreement, the lender may declare an event of default, making the debt due on demand. If this should occur, there are no assurances that we
would have funds available to pay such amount or that alternative borrowing arrangements would be available. Accordingly, ClimaChem could be required to curtail operations and/or
sell key assets as discussed above. These actions could result in the recognition of losses that may be material.

Due to the Company and ClimaChem's previous operating losses and limited borrowing ability under the credit facility then in effect, we discontinued payment of cash dividends on
Common Stock for periods subsequent to January 1, 1999, until the Board of Directors determines otherwise. Although dividends on all of our outstanding series of preferred stock
are payable if and when declared by the Board of Directors, the terms of each outstanding series of preferred stock provide that dividends are cumulative, except for the
redeemable noncumulative convertible preferred stock as discussed in Note 9. As of the date of this report, there is approximately $10.8 million of accrued and unpaid dividends
on our outstanding preferred stocks. We do not anticipate having funds available to pay dividends on our stock for the foreseeable future.

Management expects to utilize the net borrowing availability provided by the Working Capital Revolver Loan at a relatively high level during the spring agricultural season of
2004. After that period of high usage, the net borrowing is forecasted to decrease until the fourth quarter of 2004. Borrowing is expected to increase in the fourth quarter of
2004 as a result of funding the $10 million lease payment in December 2004 related to the Baytown Facility. This forecast is based upon information currently available. The
current outlook is subject to changes in economic conditions as well as market pricing of our products and costs of the various raw materials consumed.

Although the volatility of the Chemical Business is such that the forecasted results can fluctuate significantly, our cash flow forecasts indicate that there will be sufficient
liquidity to meet our obligations as they come due during 2004. However, actual results may be materially different than our forecasts and the resolution of outstanding
contingencies, as discussed in Note 8, could have an impact on our liquidity and future operating results. 

Longer-term liquidity is dependent upon new financing being available prior to maturity of the Working Capital Revolver Loan and Financing Agreement.
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Inventories at December 31, 2003 and 2002 consist of:

  Finished 
(or Purchased)

Goods

 
Work-in-
Process

 
Raw

Materials

 
Total

 (In Thousands)

2003:            
  Climate Control products $ 4,198 $ 1,643 $ 5,887 $ 11,728

  Chemical products  12,919  -  1,389  14,308

  Machinery and industrial supplies  1,183  -  -  1,183

  18,300  1,643  7,276  27,219

  Less amount not expected to be
   realized within one year

 
280
  

- -
  

- -
  

280

 $ 18,020 $ 1,643 $ 7,276 $ 26,939

            
2002 total $ 17,118 $ 1,752 $ 8,683 $ 27,553

  Less amount not expected to be 
   realized within one year

 
577
  

- -
  

- -
  

577

 $ 16,541 $ 1,752 $ 8,683 $ 26,976

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of: 

 Useful lives  December 31,

 in years  2003  2002

 (In Thousands)

Land and improvements N/A  $ 2,244 $ 2,275

Buildings and improvements 3-30   21,528  21,456

Machinery, equipment and automotive 3-25   124,379  120,076

Furniture, fixtures and store equipment 3-10   5,996  5,804

Construction in progress N/A   4,137  2,682

Spare parts N/A   1,614  975

    159,898  153,268

Less accumulated depreciation    87,964  78,705

   $ 71,934 $ 74,563
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6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

 December 31,

 2003  2002

 (In Thousands)

Secured revolving credit facility - ClimaChem (A) $ 24,027 $ 27,209

Financing Agreement due 2005 (B)  31,700  31,700

Accrued interest on Financing Agreement (B)  11,295  14,656

10-3/4% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2007 (C)  18,300  18,300

Other, with interest at rates of 2% to 14.13%, most of which is secured by
 machinery, equipment and real estate

 
17,953

  
21,496

  103,275  113,361

Less current portion of long-term debt  31,630  38,889

Long-term debt due after one year $ 71,645 $ 74,472

(A) In April 2001, ClimaChem and its subsidiaries ("the Borrowers") entered into a $50 million credit facility (the "Working Capital Revolver Loan") that provides for advances
based on specified percentages of eligible accounts receivable and inventories of ClimaChem and its subsidiaries and accrues interest at a base rate (generally equivalent to the
prime rate) plus 2% or LIBOR plus 4.5%. The effective rate at December 31, 2003 was 5.675%. Interest is paid monthly. The facility provides for up to $8.5 million of letters of
credit. All letters of credit outstanding reduce availability under the facility. Amounts available for additional borrowing under the Working Capital Revolver Loan at December
31, 2003 were $9.2 million. Under the Working Capital Revolver Loan, the lender also requires the borrowers to pay a letter of credit fee equal to 2.75% per annum of the undrawn
amount of all outstanding letters of credit, an unused line fee equal to .5% per annum for the excess amount available under the facility not drawn and various other audit,
appraisal and valuation charges.

The Working Capital Revolver Loan matures in April 2005, but gives the lender the sole discretion to determine whether there has been any material adverse change, as defined, in
the financial condition of the borrowers or LSB Industries, Inc., as guarantor, prior to making additional periodic advances. The lender may, upon an event of default, as
defined, terminate the Working Capital Revolver Loan and make the balance outstanding due and payable in full. The Working Capital Revolver Loan is secured by receivables,
inventories and intangibles of all the ClimaChem entities other than El Dorado Nitric Company and its subsidiaries ("EDNC"). EDNC is neither a borrower nor guarantor of the
Working Capital Revolver Loan. In connection with the completion of the Financing Agreement as discussed in (B) below, ClimaChem and our subsidiaries which are guarantors of
ClimaChem's Working Capital Revolver Loan entered into an amendment to the Working Capital Revolver Loan pursuant to which we and certain of ClimaChem's subsidiaries pledged
additional collateral to secure ClimaChem's obligations under the Working Capital Revolver Loan. The additional collateral consisted of a second mortgage on the assets to which
the lenders of the
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Financing Agreement discussed in (B) below were granted a first lien. A prepayment penalty equal to 2% of the facility is due to the lender should the borrowers elect to prepay
the facility prior to April 2004. Thereafter this penalty is reduced to 1% through maturity.

The Working Capital Revolver Loan, as amended, requires ClimaChem to maintain quarterly earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA") for ClimaChem
and its Climate Control Business on a trailing twelve-month basis. ClimaChem and its Climate Control Business's EBITDA for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2003 was in
excess of the required amounts. For the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 2005, the EBITDA requirement shall be determined based on ClimaChem's forecasted financial statements,
however, if ClimaChem and the provider of the Working Capital Revolver Loan can not reach an agreement, the EBITDA requirement shall not be less than $15 million. The Working
Capital Revolver Loan also requires ClimaChem to achieve an annual fixed charge coverage ratio and limits capital expenditures, as defined, measured quarterly on a trailing
twelve-month basis. The Working Capital Revolver Loan requires that ClimaChem's excess availability, as defined, equal an amount not less than $.5 million. It also requires
ClimaChem's excess availability, as defined, equal an amount not less than $1.5 million on the date of the periodic interest payments due on its 10-3/4% Senior Unsecured Notes
due 2007 (discussed in (C) below) and interest due on certain debt issued pursuant to a financing arrangement entered into in May 2002 (discussed in (B) below). The Working
Capital Revolver Loan also contains covenants that, among other things, limit the borrowers' ability to: (a) incur additional indebtedness, (b) incur liens, (c) make restricted
payments or loans to affiliates who are not Borrowers, (d) engage in mergers, consolidations or other forms of recapitalization, (e) dispose of assets, or (f) repurchase
ClimaChem's 10-3/4% Senior Unsecured Notes. The Working Capital Revolver Loan also requires all collections on accounts receivable be made through a bank account in the name of
the lender or their agent. 

(B) In May 2002, ClimaChem repurchased $52.3 million face value aggregate principal amount of its Senior Unsecured Notes. The purchase price per $1,000 of aggregate principal
amount of Senior Unsecured Notes was approximately $575, resulting in an aggregate purchase price of approximately $30.1 million. In order to fund the repurchase of the Senior
Unsecured Notes, ClimaChem entered into a financing agreement ("Financing Agreement") with certain lenders (the "Lenders"). Each Lender is an affiliate of the other Lenders.
Pursuant to the terms of the Financing Agreement, the Lenders loaned $35 million to ClimaChem (collectively, the "Loans"). The Loans mature on June 30, 2005, and bear interest at
10 1/2% per annum (cash interest), payable quarterly. Additional interest of 5 1/2% is payable either at maturity or upon prepayment. The Lenders and affiliates of the Lenders
owned the Senior Unsecured Notes which were repurchased by ClimaChem.
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The proceeds of the Loans were used to fund the repurchase of the Senior Unsecured Notes by ClimaChem from the Lenders and certain affiliates of the Lenders, to pay the closing
costs, fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Loans of approximately $3.2 million and to fund a cash collateral account of approximately $1.8 million which was
released to ClimaChem on September 30, 2003. In connection with the closing of the Loans, the Lenders entered into an Intercreditor Agreement with ClimaChem's Working Capital
Revolver Loan lender. The Financing Agreement contains cross-default provisions to the Working Capital Revolver Loan agreement.

The Financing Agreement, as amended, requires ClimaChem to maintain quarterly EBITDA, as defined, for ClimaChem and its Climate Control Business on a trailing twelve-month basis.
ClimaChem and its Climate Control Business's EBITDA, as defined, for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2003 was in excess of the required amounts. For the fiscal quarter
ending March 31, 2005, the EBITDA requirement shall be determined based on ClimaChem's forecasted financial statements, however, if ClimaChem and the Lenders can not reach an
agreement, the EBITDA requirement shall not be less than $15 million. For remaining quarters ending after December 31, 2003, if ClimaChem fails to maintain EBITDA, as defined, on
a trailing twelve-month basis of at least $12 million (a "Trigger Event"), then within 210 days of the end of such quarter, ClimaChem shall pay the Lenders an amount equal to
33.3% ($10.6 million as of December 31, 2003) of then outstanding principal of the Loans plus related cash and additional interest. H owever, if ClimaChem maintains EBITDA on a
trailing twelve-month basis of at least $12 million as of the end of each of the two quarters immediately following the Trigger Event, then within 210 days of such Trigger Event,
ClimaChem shall pay the Lenders an amount equal to 10% ($3.2 million as of December 31, 2003) of then outstanding principal of the Loans plus related cash and additional
interest.

The Financing Agreement, as amended, also requires ClimaChem to achieve an annual fixed charge coverage ratio and limits annual capital expenditures, as defined, measured
quarterly on a trailing twelve-month basis. The Financing Agreement also contains covenants that, among other things, limit ClimaChem's ability to: (a) incur additional
indebtedness, (b) incur liens, (c) provide certain guarantees (d) engage in mergers, consolidations or other forms of recapitalization, and (e) dispose of assets. The Lenders
may, upon an event of default as defined, terminate the Financing Agreement and demand the balance outstanding due and payable in full. The Financing Agreement includes a
prepayment fee equal to 1% of the principal amount paid should ClimaChem elect to prepay any principal amount prior to May 24, 2004. This fee is reduced to .5% during the final
twelve-month period.

The Loans are secured by (a) a first lien on (i) certain real property and equipment located at the El Dorado Facility (excluding the DSN Plant and other exceptions) and (ii)
certain real property and equipment located at the Cherokee Facility, and (b) a second lien on the assets
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upon which ClimaChem's Working Capital Revolver lender has a first lien. The Loans are guaranteed by the Company and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem.

As required by the Lenders, as a condition precedent to the completion of the Loans and the transactions contemplated by the Financing Agreement, we granted to the Lenders
warrants to purchase 595,585 shares of our common stock subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments. The exercise price of the warrants is $0.10 per share and contains a
provision for cashless exercise. The warrants have a 10-year exercise period beginning on May 24, 2002. The warrants provide for certain demand registration rights and piggyback
registration rights. The estimated fair value of the warrants at the grant date ($1,983,000) was accounted for as debt issuance costs.

Based upon certain criteria, including but not limited to, unfavorable changes in ClimaChem's financial condition since the Senior Unsecured Notes were originally sold and the
high interest rates on the Loans, the Financing Agreement transaction was accounted for as a debt restructuring. As a result, the gain on the transaction was limited to the
difference between the carrying value of the Senior Unsecured Notes repurchased and the principal of the Loans due 2005, plus the cumulative interest due and payable during the
three-year term thereof including such additional interest due at maturity. Accordingly, the net gain recognizable in 2002 relating to this debt restructuring was limited to only
$.1 million and is included in other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for 2002. Since the implied gain relating to this transaction was deferred, all
of the interest payments associated with the Loans has been recognized in long-term debt. All future interest payments on the Loans will be charged against the debt balance
presently accrued on the balance sheet.

As discussed in Note 17-Discontinued Operations, in December 2002, we sold all of the remaining assets comprising our explosives manufacturing and distribution business.
Approximately $3.5 million of the sales proceeds were used as a prepayment on the Loans. Due to this prepayment, ClimaChem did not incur the interest accrued on the Loans prepaid
and recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of $1.5 million which is included in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for 2002.

At December 31, 2003, the carrying amount of long-term debt owed the Lenders is $43 million which includes $11.3 million interest due on the Loans through maturity. Of this,
interest of $3.4 million is included in current portion of long-term debt at December 31, 2003.
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(C) In 1997, ClimaChem completed the sale of its 10-3/4% Senior Unsecured Notes due 2007 (the "Notes"). The Notes bear interest at an annual rate of 10-3/4% payable semiannually
in arrears on June 1 and December 1 of each year. The Notes are senior unsecured obligations of ClimaChem and rank equal in right of payment to all existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness of ClimaChem and its subsidiaries. The Notes are effectively subordinated to all existing and future secured indebtedness of ClimaChem.

Prior to the repurchase of the Notes as discussed in (B) above, ClimaChem and the trustee under the Indenture (as defined below), with the consent of the holders of at least 66
2/3% of the aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes (the "Holders"), entered into a Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 24, 2002 (the "Supplement"), to the
Indenture dated November 27, 1997, as amended (the "Indenture"), which governs ClimaChem's Notes. The Supplement amends the Indenture by, among other things, (a) deleting most of
the restrictive covenants, (b) deleting the requirements upon a change of control of ClimaChem or sale of all or substantially all of the assets of ClimaChem, (c) specifying
ClimaChem's subsidiaries which are guarantors of the Notes and deleting the requirement that certain future subsidiaries of ClimaChem be guarantors, (d) deleting certain events
from the definition of "Event of Default," and (e) providing for conforming changes to the Indenture and the promissory note executed by ClimaChem pursuant to the terms of the
Indenture.

The Notes are subject to redemption at the option of ClimaChem, in whole or in part, at the redemption prices set forth in the Indenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest
thereon, plus liquidated damages, if any, to the applicable redemption date.

During 2001, subsidiaries of the Company repurchased Notes having a face value of approximately $4.7 million on the open market for approximately $2.1 million and recognized
gains, after writing off approximately $.1 million of loan origination costs, of approximately $2.6 million.

ClimaChem owns substantially all of the companies comprising our Climate Control and Chemical Businesses. ClimaChem is a holding company with no significant assets or operations
other than its investments in its subsidiaries, and each of its subsidiaries is wholly-owned, directly or indirectly, by ClimaChem. ClimaChem's payment obligations under the
Notes are fully, unconditionally and joint and severally guaranteed by all of the existing subsidiaries of ClimaChem, except for EDNC ("Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries"). 

Set forth below is consolidating financial information of ClimaChem's Guarantor Subsidiaries, the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries, and ClimaChem.
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 ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2003
(In thousands)

 Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc. (Parent)

 
Eliminations

 
Consolidated

Assets                    
Current assets:                    
  Cash $ 208  $ -  $ 2,712      $ 2,920 
Trade accounts receivable net 30 838 3 187 25 34 050



  Trade accounts receivable, net
 

30,838
   

3,187
   

25
       

34,050
 

  Inventories  25,901   143   -       26,044 
  Supplies and prepaid items  3,389   669   1,607       5,665 
  Deferred income taxes  -   -   5,470       5,470 
    Total current assets  60,336   3,999   9,814       74,149 
Property, plant and equipment, net  65,147   1,940   83       67,170 
Investment in and advances to
affiliates

 -   -   88,901  $ (88,901)   - 
Receivable from Parent  -   13,194   -   (13,194)   - 
Other assets, net  7,876   35   1,218       9,129 
 $ 133,359  $ 19,168  $ 100,016  $ (102,095)  $ 150,448 
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity                    
Current liabilities:                    
  Accounts payable $ 17,017  $ 2,589  $ 344      $ 19,950 
  Accrued liabilities  14,791   5,982   1,173       21,946 
  Due to LSB and affiliates, net  -   -   585       585 
  Current portion of long-term debt  2,405   353   26,553       29,311 
    Total current liabilities  34,213   8,924   28,655       71,792 
Long-term debt  4,789   1,206   56,419       62,414 
Deferred income taxes  -   -   1,605       1,605 
Other non-current liabilities  2,280   590   -       2,870 
Payable to Parent  44,817   -   -  $ (44,817)   - 
Stockholders' equity:                    
  Common stock  67   1   1   (68)   1 
  Capital in excess of par value  78,194   -   12,652   (78,194)   12,652 
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss  -   (1,570)   -       (1,570)

  Retained earnings (deficit)  (31,001)   10,017   684   20,984   684 
Total stockholders' equity  47,260   8,448   13,337   (57,278)   11,767 
 $ 133,359  $ 19,168  $ 100,016  $ (102,095)  $ 150,448 
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 ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2002
(In thousands)

 
Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc.
(Parent)

 

Eliminations

 

Consolidated
Assets                    
Current assets:                    
  Cash $ 410  $ -  $ 950      $ 1,360 
  Restricted cash  -   -   1,838       1,838 
  Trade accounts receivable, net  30,034   3,166   39       33,239 
  Inventories  25,947   119   -       26,066 
  Supplies and prepaid items  4,007   24   1,309       5,340 
  Deferred income taxes  -   -   3,520  $ (520)   3,000 
    Total current assets  60,398   3,309   7,656   (520)   70,843 
Property, plant and equipment, net  67,296   2,017   61       69,374 
Due from LSB and affiliates  -   -   14,648       14,648 
Investment in and advances to
affiliates

 -   -   89,977   (89,977)   - 
Receivable from Parent  -   10,185   -   (10,185)   - 
Other assets, net:                    
  Deferred income taxes  -   -   2,101   (435)   1,666 
  Other  8,559   41   1,716       10,316 
 $ 136,253  $ 15,552  $ 116,159  $ (101,117)  $ 166,847 
Liabilities and Stockholders'
Equity                    
Current liabilities:                    
  Accounts payable $ 19,747  $ 2,736  $ 287      $ 22,770 
  Accrued liabilities  13,512   1,061   1,059       15,632 
  Due to LSB and affiliates, net - - 4,679 4,679

  Deferred income taxes 520 - - $ (520) -

  Current portion of long-term debt  2,190   353   29,490       32,033 
    Total current liabilities  35,969   4,150   35,515   (520)   75,114 
Long-term debt:                    
  Due to LSB and affiliates  1,405   -   4,500       5,905 
  Other  3,579   1,559   61,282       66,420 
Deferred income taxes  435   -   -   (435)   - 
Due to LSB  -   -   3,183       3,183 
Other noncurrent liabilities  2,547   3,858   -       6,405 
Payable to Parent  42,681   -   -   (42,681)   - 
Stockholders' equity:                    
  Common stock  64   1   1   (65)   1 
  Capital in excess of par value  77,678   -   12,652   (77,678)   12,652 
  Accumulated other comprehensive
   loss

 
- -
   

(1,859)
  

- -
       

(1,859)
  Retained earnings (accumulated
   deficit)

 
(28,105)

  
7,843

   
(974)

  
20,262

   
(974)

Total stockholders' equity  49,637   5,985   11,679   (57,481)   9,820 
$ 136,253 $ 15,552 $ 116,159 $ (101,117) $ 166,847
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ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations



 
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2003
(In thousands)

 Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc. (Parent)

 
Eliminations

 
Consolidated

                    
Net sales $ 269,855  $ 42,947          $ 312,802 
Cost of sales  228,729   38,829  $ 717  $ (5)   268,270 
Gross profit (loss)  41,126   4,118   (717)   5   44,532 
Selling, general and
administrative

 34,882   437   2,709   (7)   38,021 
Operating income (loss)  6,244   3,681   (3,426)   12   6,511 
Other income (expense):                    
  Interest and other income
   (expense), net

 
1
   

(78)
  

11,906
   

(10,466)
  

1,363
 

  Interest expense  (10,993)   (39)   (4,688)   10,454   (5,266)

Income (loss) from operations
 before benefit (provision) for
 income taxes

 
(4,748)

  
3,564

   
3,792

  
- -

   
2,608

 

Equity in losses of subsidiaries  -   -   (722)   722   - 
Benefit (provision) for income
 taxes

 
1,852

   
(1,390)

  
(1,412)

      
(950)

Net income (loss) $ (2,896)  $ 2,174  $ 1,658  $ 722  $ 1,658 
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 ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2002
(In thousands)

 Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc. (Parent)

 
Eliminations

 
Consolidated

                    
Net sales $ 244,737  $ 34,749          $ 279,486 
Cost of sales  206,220   31,142  $ 591  $ (5)   237,948 
Gross profit (loss)  38,517   3,607   (591)   5   41,538 
                    
Selling, general and administrative 33,040   387   1,472   (7)   34,892 
Operating income (loss)  5,477   3,220   (2,063)   12   6,646 
Other income (expense):                    
  Interest and other income
   (expense),  net

 
2,599

   
(79)

  
11,504

   
(10,882)

  
3,142

 
  Gain on extinguishment of debt  -   -   1,458       1,458 
  Benefit from termination of firm
   purchase commitments

 
290
   

- -
   

- -
       

290
  Interest expense  (10,744)   (59)   (6,908)   10,870   (6,841)

Income (loss) from continuing
 operations before benefit
 (provision) for income taxes

 
(2,378)

  
3,082

   
3,991

   
- -

   
4,695

 

Equity in losses of subsidiaries  -   -   (3,032)   3,032   - 
Benefit (provision) for income
taxes

 927   (1,202)   (172)       (447)

Loss from discontinued operations,
 net

 
(3,461)

  
- -
           

(3,461)
Net income (loss) $ (4,912)  $ 1,880  $ 787  $ 3,032  $ 787 
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 ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year ended December 31, 2001
(In thousands)

 Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc. (Parent)

 
Eliminations

 
Consolidated

                    
Net sales $ 271,988  $ 36,539          $ 308,527 
Cost of sales  228,757   33,018  $ 895  $ (4)   262,666 
Gross profit (loss)  43,231   3,521   (895)   4   45,861 
Selling, general and
administrative

 36,970   201   4,155   (7)   41,319 
Operating income (loss)  6,261   3,320   (5,050)   11   4,542 
Other income (expense):                    
  Interest and other income
   (expense),  net

 
(101)

  
21
   

11,476
   

(10,451)
  

945
 

  Gain on sales of property and 
   equipment

 
2,898

   
- -
   

- -
       

2,898
 

  Gain on extinguishment of debt  -   -   2,631       2,631 
  Benefit from termination of firm
   sales and purchase commitments

 
2,688

   
- -
   

- -
       

2,688
 

  Interest expense  (11,778)   (108)   (10,856)   10,440   (12,302)

Income (loss) from continuing
 operations before benefit 
 (provision) for income taxes

 
(32)

  
3,233

   
(1,799)

  
- -

   
1,402

 

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries  -   -   1,978   (1,978)   - 
Benefit (provision) for income
taxes

 (1,530)   (920)   1,330       (1,120)

Income from discontinued
operations,
 net

 
1,227

   
- -
   

- -
       

1,227
 

Net income (loss) $ (335)  $ 2,313  $ 1,509  $ (1,978)  $ 1,509 
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 ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows



Year ended December 31, 2003
(In thousands)

 Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc. (Parent)

 
Eliminations

 
Consolidated

Cash flows provided by operating
 activities $ 3,358

  
$ 3,524

  
$ 5,528

      
$ 12,410

 
Cash flows from investing
 activities:

                   
  Capital expenditures (6,988) (162) (91) (7,241)

  Proceeds from sales of property
   and equipment

 
81
   

- -
   

- -
       

81
 

  Proceeds from restricted cash 
   held in escrow

 
- -
   

- -
   

1,838
       

1,838
 

  Other assets 48 - 50 98

Net cash provided (used) by 
 investing activities  

(6,859)
  

(162)
  

1,797
       

(5,224)

Cash flows from financing
activities:

                   
  Payments on long-term debt (694) (353) (3,573) (4,620)

  Long-term and other borrowings,
   net of origination fees

 
- -
   

- -
   

800
       

800
 

  Net change in revolving debt 353 - (3,535) (3,182)

  Net change in due to/from LSB
   and  affiliates

 
- -
   

- -
   

1,376
       

1,376
 

  Advances to/from affiliates 3,640 (3,009) (631) -

Net cash provided (used) by 
 financing activities  

3,299
   

(3,362)
  

(5,563)
      

(5,626)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 
 from all activities (202) - - 1,762 1,560
Cash at the beginning of year 410 - 950 1,360

Cash at the end of year $ 208 $ - $ 2,712 $ 2,920
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 ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2002
(In thousands)

 
Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc. (Parent)

 

Eliminations

 

Consolidated
Cash flows provided (used) by
 continuing operating activities $ 18,767

  
$ 2,744

  
$ (1,697)

    
$ 19,814

 
Cash flows from investing 
 activities:

                   
  Capital expenditures  (9,511)   (456)   (8)       (9,975)

  Proceeds from sales of property
   and equipment

 
227
   

- -
   

1
       

228
 

  Payment of restricted cash held
in
   escrow

 
- -
   

- -
   

(1,838)
      

(1,838)

  Other assets  275   (1)   (15)       259 
Net cash used by investing
 activities  

(9,009)
  

(457)
  

(1,860)
      

(11,326)
Cash flows from financing
 activities:

                   
  Payments on long-term debt  (2,171)   (353)   (5,650)       (8,174)

  Proceeds from Financing Agreement
   net of fees

 
- -
   

- -
   

32,155
       

32,155
 

  Acquisition of 10 3/4 % Senior 
   Unsecured Notes

 
- -
   

- -
   

(30,065)
      

(30,065)
  Net change in revolving debt  (332)   -   (8,730)       (9,062)

  Net change in due to/from LSB and
   affiliates

 
- -
   

- -
  

3,162
       

3,162
 

  Advances to/from affiliates  (11,656)   (1,950)   13,606       - 
 Net cash provided (used) by 
  financing activities  

(14,159)
  

(2,303)
  

4,478
       

(11,984)
 Net cash provided by discontinued
  operations

 
4,547

   
- -
   

- -
       

4,547
 

 Net increase (decrease) in cash 
  from all activities  

146
   

(16)
  

921
       

1,051
 

Cash at the beginning of year  264   16   29       309 
Cash at the end of year $ 410  $ -  $ 950      $ 1,360 
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 ClimaChem, Inc.
Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2001
(In thousands)

 
Combined
Guarantor

Subsidiaries

 Consolidated
Non-

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

 
ClimaChem,

Inc. (Parent)

 

Eliminations

 

Consolidated
Cash flows provided (used) by
 continuing operating activities $ (2,174)

 
$ 154

  
$ 821

     
$ (1,199)

Cash flows from investing
 activities:

                   
Capital expenditures  (4,739)   (697)   (40)       (5,476)

Proceeds from sales of property 
 and equipment

 
3,677

   
- -
   

- -
       

3,677
 

Other assets  249   6   (1,680)       (1,425)

Net cash used by investing
 activities  (813)   (691)   (1,720)       (3,224)

Cash flows from financing
activities:

                   
  Payments on long-term debt  (3,915)   (235)   -       (4,150)

  Long-term and other borrowing,
net
   of origination fee

 
- -
   

950
   

- -
       

950
 

  Acquisition of 10 3/4 % Senior 
    Unsecured Notes

 
- -
   

- -
   

(21)
      

(21)
  Net change in revolving debt  (30,046)   (170)   34,746       4,530 
  Net change in due to/from LSB and
   affiliates

 
- -
   

- -
   

1,440
       

1,440
 

  Advances to/from affiliates  35,285   -   (35,285)       - 
Net cash provided by financing



Net cash provided by financing
   activities  1,324   545   880       2,749 
Net cash used by discontinued 
 operations

 
(855)

  
- -
   

- -
       

(855)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 
 from all activities  

(2,518)
  

8
   

(19)
      

(2,529)
Cash at the beginning of year  2,782   8   48       2,838 
Cash at the end of year $ 264  $ 16  $ 29      $ 309 
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Maturities (in thousands) of long-term debt for each of the five years after December 31, 2003 are: 2004--$31,630 (including $24,027 due in 2005 unless the lender demands earlier
payment); 2005--$44,527; 2006--$1,613; 2007--$19,616; 2008--$1,404 and thereafter--$4,485.

7. Income Taxes 

The tax effects of each type of temporary difference and carryforward that are used in computing deferred tax assets and liabilities and the valuation allowance related to
deferred tax assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

 2003  2002

 (In Thousands)

Deferred tax assets      
Amounts not deductible for tax purposes:      
  Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,414 $ 2,132

  Asset impairment  6,611  5,948

  Accrued liabilities  1,320  1,190

  Other  2,116  1,840

Excess of tax gain over book gain resulting from debt refinancing  5,346  8,894

Capitalization of certain costs as inventory for tax purposes  899  1,213

Net operating loss carry forwards  16,490  15,780

Alternative minimum tax credit carry forwards  793  793

Total deferred tax assets  35,989  37,790

  Less valuation allowance on deferred tax assets  28,273  28,632

Net deferred tax assets $ 7,716 $ 9,158

      
Deferred tax liabilities      
Accelerated depreciation used for tax purposes $ 7,716 $ 7,019

Inventory basis difference resulting from a business combination  -  2,139

Total deferred tax liabilities $ 7,716 $ 9,158

We are able to realize deferred tax assets up to an amount equal to the future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences. The taxable temporary differences will turn
around in the loss carry forward period as the differences reverse. Other differences will turn around as the assets are disposed in the normal course of business.

The differences between the amount of the provision for income taxes (consisting solely of current state taxes) and the amount which would result from the application of the
federal statutory rate to "Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change" for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2003 are detailed below:
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 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Provision for income taxes at federal statutory rate $ 1,089  $ 944  $ 2,604 
Changes in the valuation allowance related to deferred tax
 assets, net of rate differential

 
(359)

  
392
   

(3,272)
Effect of discontinued operations and other on valuation
 allowance

 
(792)

  
(1,332)

  
765
 

State income taxes, net of federal benefit  -   35   110 
Permanent differences  62   17   (97)

Provision for income taxes $ -  $ 56  $ 110 

At December 31, 2003, we have regular-tax net operating loss ("NOL") carry forwards of approximately $42.5 million ($22.6 million alternative minimum tax NOLs) that begin
expiring 2009. 

8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Operating Leases 

We and our subsidiaries lease certain property, plant and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Future minimum payments on operating leases, including the Nitric Acid
Plant lease discussed below with initial or remaining terms of one year or more at December 31, 2003 are as follows:

 (In Thousands)  
 2004  $ 15,495 
 2005   3,765 
 2006   9,241 
 2007   10,057 

2008 11,864

 Thereafter   9,696 
   $ 60,118 

Rent expense under all operating lease agreements, including month-to-month leases, was $12,022,000 in 2003, $12,547,000 in 2002 and $12,735,000 in 2001. Renewal options are
available under certain of the lease agreements for various periods at approximately the existing annual rental amounts. 

Nitric Acid Plant 

Our wholly owned subsidiary, El Dorado Nitric Company and its subsidiaries ("EDNC"), operates a nitric acid plant (the "Baytown Plant") at a Baytown, Texas chemical facility in
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accordance with a series of agreements with Bayer Corporation ("Bayer") (collectively, the "Bayer Agreement"). Under the terms of the Bayer Agreement, EDNC is leasing the Baytown
Plant pursuant to a leveraged lease from an unrelated third party with an initial lease term of ten years. The schedule of future minimum payments on operating leases above
includes $13,001,000 in 2004, $2,250,000 in 2005, $8,175,000 in 2006, $9,227,000 in 2007, $11,173,000 in 2008, and $4,882,000 after 2008 related to lease payments on the Baytown
Plant. Upon expiration of the initial ten-year term, the Bayer Agreement may be renewed for up to six renewal terms of five years each; however, prior to each renewal period,
either party to the Bayer Agreement may opt against renewal. The total amount of future minimum payments due under the Bayer Agreement is being charged to rent expense on the
straight-line method over the initial ten-year term of the lease. The difference between rent expense recorded and the amoun t paid is credited or charged to deferred rent
expense which is included in accrued liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets. The Company and its subsidiaries have not provided a
residual value guarantee on the value of the equipment related to the leveraged lease and Bayer has the unilateral right to determine if the fixed-price purchase option is
exercised in 2009. If Bayer decides to exercise the purchase option, they must also fund it. EDNC's ability to perform on its lease commitments is contingent upon Bayer's



performance under the Bayer Agreement. One of our subsidiaries has guaranteed the performance of EDNC's obligations under the Bayer Agreement.

Purchase and Sales Commitments 

In 2003, one of our subsidiaries, El Dorado Chemical Company ("EDC") was in negotiations with its supplier concerning a purchase agreement. In January 2004, EDC reached an
agreement with this supplier whereby the former long-term purchase commitment was terminated. Under a new agreement effective January 20, 2004, EDC will purchase 100% of its
requirements of purchased ammonia using a market price-based formula plus transportation to the manufacturing facility in El Dorado, Arkansas through December 31, 2004. 

In 1995, one of our subsidiaries entered into a product supply agreement with a third party whereby the subsidiary is required to make monthly facility fee and other payments
which aggregate $79,000. In return for this payment, the subsidiary is entitled to certain quantities of compressed oxygen produced by the third party. Except in circumstances as
defined by the agreement, the monthly payment is payable regardless of the quantity of compressed oxygen used by the subsidiary. The term of this agreement, which has been
included in the above minimum operating lease commitments, is for a term of 15 years; however, the subsidiary can currently terminate the agreement without cause at a cost of
approximately $4.5 million. Based on the subsidiary's estimate of compressed oxygen demands of the plant, the cost of the oxygen under this agreement is expected to be favorable
compared to floating market prices. Purchases under this agreement aggregated $960,000, $947,000, and $959,000 in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respecti vely.
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At December 31, 2003, our Chemical Business had purchase commitments under exchange-traded futures for 300,000 MMBtu of natural gas through June 2004 at a weighted average cost
of $4.77 per MMBtu and a weighted average market value of $5.55 per MMBtu.

At December 31, 2003, we also have standby letters of credit outstanding of $1.6 million of which $1 million relates to our Climate Control Business. 

At December 31, 2003, we had deposits from customers of $4.6 million which included $4.4 million of forward sales commitments of chemical products with customers for deliveries
in 2004.

Effective October 1, 2001, our subsidiary, Cherokee Nitrogen Holding, Inc. ("CNH") entered into a long term 83% ammonium nitrate solution supply agreement with a third party
("Solution Agreement"). Under the Solution Agreement, CNH will supply to the third party its requirements of 83% ammonium nitrate solution from CNH's Cherokee, Alabama
manufacturing plant for a term through September 2006 on a cost-plus basis.

On November 1, 2001, EDC entered into a long-term cost-plus industrial grade ammonium nitrate supply agreement ("Supply Agreement") with a third party. Under the Supply
Agreement, EDC will supply from it's El Dorado, Arkansas plant approximately 190,000 tons of industrial grade ammonium nitrate per year, which is approximately 90% of the plant's
manufacturing capacity for that product, for a term through at least December 2006.

Employment and Severance Agreements

We have employment and severance agreements with several of our officers. The agreements provide for annual base salaries, bonuses and other benefits commonly found in such
agreements. In the event of termination of employment due to a change in control (as defined in the agreements), the agreements provide for payments aggregating $7.5 million at
December 31, 2003.

Legal Matters 

Following is a summary of certain legal actions involving the Company

A. Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to numerous environmental laws ("Environmental Laws") and to other federal, state and local laws regarding health and safety matters ("Health Laws").
In particular, the manufacture and distribution of chemical products are activities which entail environmental risks and impose obligations under the Environmental Laws and the
Health
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Laws, many of which provide for substantial fines and criminal sanctions for violations. There can be no assurance that material costs or liabilities will not be incurred by us
in complying with such laws or in paying fines or penalties for violation of such laws. The Environmental Laws and Health Laws and enforcement policies thereunder relating to our
Chemical Business have in the past resulted, and could in the future result, in penalties, cleanup costs, or other liabilities relating to the handling, manufacture, use,
emission, discharge or disposal of pollutants or other substances at or from our facilities or the use or disposal of certain of its chemical products. Historically, significant
expenditures have been incurred by our subsidiary, El Dorado Chemical Company ("EDC") at its El Dorado, Arkansas plant (the "El Dorado Facility") in order to comply with the
Environmental Laws and Health Laws. Our Chemical Business could be required to make significant additional site or operat ional modifications at this or other facilities
involving substantial expenditures. In addition, if we should decide to no longer operate the El Dorado Facility and if such facility is retired, we may be required to continue
to operate equipment relating to discharge water, the cost and timing of which is presently unknown.

1. Water Matters

Discharge Water Issues

The Chemical Business' El Dorado Facility generates process water discharge consisting of cooling tower and boiler blowdown streams, contact storm water (rainfall inside the
plant area which picks up impurities, primarily nitrogen), and miscellaneous spills and leaks from process equipment ("Discharge Water"). The Discharge Water at the El Dorado
Facility is governed by a state of Arkansas permit renewed every five years. The current permit expired in 1995, and the state of Arkansas and EDC have been negotiating since
early 1997 on the issuance of a new permit. EDC and the state of Arkansas agreed to a formal Consent Administrative Order ("CAO") in September, 1998, which CAO contained certain
deadlines for the completion of activities at the El Dorado Facility pending issuance of a new permit. In June 2002, a formal amendment to the CAO became effective, which
extended the compliance date until three years after the effective date of the renewal permit. The renewal permit was issued by the state of Arka nsas containing effluent limits
that EDC believed were inappropriately stringent and which EDC believed it could not meet. That permit was appealed by EDC. The appeal has been resolved by the parties entering
into a settlement agreement that provides for effluent limits which EDC believes are acceptable. The settlement agreement has become final. The Arkansas Department of
Environmental Quality ("ADEQ") has issued a revised draft of an National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") water discharge permit pursuant to the terms of the
settlement agreement. 

In January 2004, an adjoining landowner of the El Dorado Facility, who is also the plaintiff in a lawsuit against EDC (See below "Property Damage Lawsuit"), filed comments on the
draft permit requesting effluent limits and conditions more restrictive than those provided in the settlement agreement and draft permit. The El Dorado Facility has submitted a
response
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to the comments asserting, among other things, that the landowner lacks standing to raise issues that were resolved in a prior administrative proceeding. ADEQ has indicated to
counsel for EDC that it agrees with the position asserted by the El Dorado Facility, although there is no assurance that the ADEQ will rule in accordance with such indication. 

We believe that the revised NPDES permit issued in conformity with the settlement agreement will require additional expenditures, estimated to be approximately $3 to $4 million,
which would be expended over the next three years. This estimate assumes that the City of El Dorado, Arkansas (the "City") builds its own discharge pipeline to a nearby river and
we are permitted to tie our pipeline into the City's pipeline. We do not have any reliable estimates of the cost of an alternative solution in the event that the pipeline is not
ultimately built by the City. The CAO included a $183,700 penalty which has been satisfied, either through waste minimization activities or payments.

In addition, the CAO recognizes the presence of nitrate contamination in the shallow groundwater at the El Dorado Facility. A new CAO will be executed to address the shallow
groundwater contamination, which will include an evaluation of the current conditions and remediation based upon a risk assessment. The final remedy for shallow groundwater
contamination, should any remediation be required, will be selected pursuant to the new CAO and based upon the risk assessment. There are no known users of this shallow
groundwater in the area, and preliminary risk assessments have not identified any public health risk that would require additional remediation. No reserve has been established
because the extent of the remediation effort, if any, is not presently known nor estimable.

Drainage of Pond at El Dorado Facility and Investigation 

In response to a maintenance emergency and to prevent an uncontrolled release, the equalization pond located at the El Dorado Facility was drained to accommodate repairs to an
underground discharge pipe in September 2001. Although, no adverse environmental conditions were noted at the time of the discharge, the sustained discharge was out of compliance
with the mass effluent limits contained in the facility's permit. EDC's environmental compliance manager determined that proper procedure would be to notify the state of Arkansas
in the month end report. The state disagreed and took the position that they should have been notified immediately. EDC and the state of Arkansas have agreed to a Consent
Administrative Order to settle any civil penalty claims relating to this discharge event whereby EDC paid a $50,000 civil penalty and has funded $50,000 on supplemental
environmental projects. 

In January 2002, the U.S. Attorney for the Western District of Arkansas opened an investigation as a result of the drainage of the pond. EDC and two EDC employees received
letters during April 2002, from the United States Attorney's office in Fort Smith, Arkansas
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("AUSA") indicating that a criminal charge could be brought against EDC and the two employees as a result of the draining of the equalization pond. EDC denies that it violated
any criminal laws, and contends that the discharge event giving rise to the exceedance under its NPDES permit was accidental and impossible to prevent. Although counsel for EDC
in this matter has advised that in their opinion it is likely that the matter will be resolved on favorable terms to EDC, there are no assurances that this will occur and it is
not possible to estimate the range of potential loss upon resolution of this matter.



2. Air Matters

In March 2002, EDC received a letter from the state of Arkansas as to several alleged violations of the El Dorado Facility air permit. EDC and the ADEQ have entered into a
consent administrative order ("Air CAO") to resolve the above alleged violations. The Air CAO provides for a civil penalty of approximately $10,000, and requires EDC to establish
a system to monitor air quality at the perimeter of the El Dorado Facility and to submit revised testing protocols for demonstrating compliance at the various emission sources.
The Air CAO also requires EDC to install within 90 days of its effective date a continuous air monitoring system, which is estimated to cost not less than $90,000. The Air CAO
has been published for public comment and is anticipated to be effective in the near term.

As part of the state's investigation of an application filed by EDC for a permit modification relating to the sulfuric acid plant, the state initiated an inquiry regarding
historical equipment upgrades and repairs at the sulfuric acid plant, and whether any of those modifications should have been reviewed under the regulations. The state and EDC
have entered into negotiations in an attempt to compromise and resolve a potential dispute as to what regulations should apply to the sulfuric acid plant. These negotiations have
resulted in an Air CAO that resolves any possible regulatory violations associated with the sulfuric acid plant through the implementation of additional emission controls at that
plant. The ultimate cost of any technology changes required cannot presently be determined, but is believed to cost between $1.5 million to $3 million. The implementation of the
technological change, and related expenditures will be made during the next 3 to 6 years. 

3. Other Environmental Matters

Slurry Explosive Corporation

In April 2002, Slurry Explosive Corporation ("Slurry") entered into a Consent Administrative Order ("Slurry Consent Order") with the state of Kansas, regarding Slurry's
Hallowell, Kansas manufacturing facility ("Hallowell Facility"). The Slurry Consent Order addresses the release of contaminants from the facility into the soils and groundwater
and surface water in the strip-pits adjacent to the Hallowell Facility. There are no known users of the groundwater in the area. The adjacent strip pit is used for fishing. Under
the terms of the Slurry Consent Order, Slurry is required to, among other things, submit an environmental
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assessment work plan to the state of Kansas for review and approval, and agree with the state as to any required corrective actions to be performed at the Hallowell Facility.

In connection with the sale of substantially all of the operating assets of Slurry and Universal Tech Corporation ("UTeC"), subsidiaries of the Company, in December 2002, UTeC
leased the Hallowell Facility to the buyer under a triple net long-term lease agreement. However, Slurry retained the obligation to be responsible for, and perform the activities
under, the Slurry Consent Order.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company agreed to indemnify the buyer of such assets for these environmental matters. Slurry has placed the prior owners of the Hallowell
Facility on notice of their responsibility for contribution towards the costs to investigate and remediate this site. Representatives of a prior owner have recently agreed to pay
for one-half of the costs of the investigation on an interim, non-binding basis. At December 31, 2003, a reserve of $168,000 has been established for the Company's share of the
estimated investigation and remediation costs. However, these estimates may be revised in the near term based on the results of our investigation and remediation.

Grand Jury Subpoenas - Slurry - Hallowell Facility 

9; In 2002, Slurry and the Company received grand jury subpoenas requesting business records of Slurry. The Company and Slurry have complied with these subpoenas. This grand
jury investigation appears to be related to Slurry's alleged violations of explosive storage and related regulations, which resulted in the revocation by the Bureau of Alcohol,
Tobacco and Firearms of Slurry's license to manufacture explosives at the Hallowell Facility.

Property Damage Lawsuit

In January 2003, the owners of 283 acres of property adjacent to the El Dorado Facility filed suit against EDC alleging property damage and punitive damages. The lawsuit is
pending in the United States District Court, Western District of Arkansas, El Dorado Division. The El Dorado Facility utilizes a discharge water treatment system which discharges
into a creek which passes through the plaintiffs' property pursuant to a permit issued by the state of Arkansas. The plaintiffs contend that these permitted discharges into the
creek are an unauthorized trespass, have damaged their property, have resulted in fish kills in the creek, and that leakage from EDC's two holding ponds has contaminated the
shallow groundwater on the plaintiffs' property.

Plaintiffs are pursuing claims under theories of negligence, trespass and nuisance, and are claiming actual and punitive damages as well as injunctive relief. The plaintiffs are
alleging that their property has diminished in value by $275,000 as a result of EDC's discharges.
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EDC's Discharge Water contains elevated levels of ammonia and nitrogen. However, monitoring wells around its treatment ponds indicate little, if any, impact on the shallow
groundwater. We have put our insurance carrier on notice of this claim. Under the policy, we have a $500,000 deductible. No reserve has been established in connection with this
matter.

B. Other Pending or Threatened Litigation

1. Climate Control Business

The Climate Control Business is involved in several lawsuits and threatened litigation relating to alleged defective air conditioning and heating units manufactured by the
Climate Control Business, or that the units or systems where not properly designed, which, if adversely determined against the Climate Control Business, could have a substantial
adverse impact on the Company's liquidity. One lawsuit which was filed in August 2002, alleges that Trison Construction, Inc., ("Trison"), a subsidiary within the Company's
Climate Control Business, breached its contract with the plaintiff by delaying contract performance and refusal of payment, and that the actions by Trison damaged the plaintiff.
The plaintiff alleges that Trison owes it approximately $231,000, inclusive of overhead, cost and profit; approximately $94,000 in extended overhead and expenses and lost profits
of an unspecified amount. Trison has asserted counterclaim against the plaintiff for recovery of its costs and attorneys fees associated with the defense of this case and
approximately $306,000 in damages due to plaintiff's breach of contract.

A subsidiary of the Company within its Climate Control Business has been sued, together with 18 other defendants and 8 other parties added by the original named defendants.
Plaintiffs' claims arise out of construction of a hotel in Hawaii. Plaintiffs claim that it was necessary to close the hotel approximately one year after it was opened due to an
infestation of mold, requiring the hotel owner to undertake a mold remediation project. The owner of the hotel sued many of the parties involved in the design and construction,
or supply of equipment for the hotel, alleging the improper design, construction, installation and/or air conditioning equipment. The Climate Control subsidiary supplied certain
portions of the air conditioning equipment, which the plaintiff alleges was defective. Plaintiff has not specified the amount of damages. The Company has notified its insurance
carrier, which is providing a defense under a reservation of rights. 

2. Chemical Business

During January 2004, EDC was named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed by the trustee for Lodestar Energy, Inc., et. al. Lodestar is in chapter 7 bankruptcy proceeding. The
complaint seeks to recover approximately $1,100,000 for allegedly preferential payments that were
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made to EDC during the 90 day period preceding the filing of Lodestar's bankruptcy. Although counsel has advised that it is unlikely that a substantial unfavorable outcome will
occur, there are no assurances that there will not be an unfavorable outcome in this matter. EDC intends to vigorously defend this matter.

A subsidiary within the Company's Chemical Business has been sued for an undisclosed amount of monies based on claims that the subsidiary breached an agreement by overcharging
the plaintiff for ammonium nitrate for use by the plaintiff in the manufacture of commercial explosives as a result of inflated prices for natural gas used to manufacture the
ammonium nitrate. The subsidiary has filed a third party complaint against Dynegy, Inc. and a subsidiary asserting that Dynegy was the party responsible for fraudulently causing
artificial natural gas prices to exist and seeking an undisclosed amount from Dynegy, including any amounts which may be recovered by the plaintiff. Dynegy has filed a
counterclaim against the subsidiary for monies allegedly owed on account, which is alleged by Dynegy to be $600,000. Although there is no assurance, counsel for the subsidiary
has advised the Company that, at this time, they believe that there is a good likelihood that the subsidiary will recover monies from Dynegy over and above any monies which may
be recovered by the plaintiff or owed to Dynegy.

3. Other

Zeller Pension Plan

In February 2000, the Company's Board of Directors authorized management to proceed with the sale of the automotive business, since the automotive business was no longer a "core
business" of the Company. In May, 2000 the Company sold substantially all of its assets in its automotive business. After the authorization by the board, but prior to the sale,
the automotive business purchased the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Zeller Corporation ("Zeller"). The liabilities of Zeller assumed by the automotive business
included Zeller's pension plan, which is not a multi-employer pension plan. In June 2003, the principal owner ("Owner") of the buyer of the automotive business was contacted by a
representative of the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation ("PBGC") regarding the plan. The Owner has been informed by the PBGC of a possible underfunding of the plan and a
possible takeover of the plan by the PBGC. The Owner has notified the Company of these events. The Company has also be en contacted by the PBGC and has been advised that the
alleged under funding is approximately $ .6 million. The Company has been advised by ERISA counsel that based upon, numerous representations made by the Company and the
assumption that the trier of fact determining the Company's obligations with respect to the plan would find that:  we disposed, in May 4, 2000, of interest in the automotive
business including the Zeller assets and business pursuant to a bona fide purchase agreement under the terms of which the purchaser assumed all obligations with respect to the
operation, including funding of the Zeller plan, the purpose of the sale of the automotive business did not include
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an attempt to evade liability for funding the Zeller plan, at the time we disposed of our interest in the automotive business, the Zeller plan was adequately funded, on an



ongoing basis and all required contributions had been made, and the Zeller plan did not terminate at anytime that any member of the Company's controlled group of entities was a
contribution sponsor to the Zeller plan, that the possibility of an unfavorable outcome to us in a lawsuit if the PBGC attempts to hold us liable for the underfunding of the
Zeller plan is remote.

The Company has several contingencies, including those set forth above, that could impact it's liquidity and future operating results in the event that the Company is
unsuccessful in defending against the claimants or possible claims.

9. Redeemable Preferred Stock 

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we had 1,084 shares and 1,167 shares, respectively, outstanding of noncumulative redeemable preferred stock. Each share of redeemable preferred
stock, $100 par value, is convertible into 40 shares of our common stock or redeemable at par at any time and entitles the holder to one vote. The redeemable preferred stock
provides for a noncumulative annual dividend of 10%, payable when and as declared and is classified as other accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

10. Stockholders' Equity 

Qualified Stock Option Plans 

At December 31, 2003, we have a 1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (850,000 shares) and a 1998 Stock Option Plan (1,000,000 shares). Under these plans, we are authorized to
grant options to purchase up to 1,850,000 shares of our common stock to our key employees. The 1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plan has expired, and accordingly, no additional
options may be granted from this plan. Options granted prior to the expiration of this plan continue to remain valid thereafter in accordance with their terms. At December 31,
2003, there are 483,000 options outstanding related to the 1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plan and 800,800 options outstanding relating to the 1998 Stock Option Plan. These
options become exercisable 20% after one year from date of grant, 40% after two years, 70% after three years, 100% after four years and lapse at the end of ten years. The
exercise price of options granted under these plans were equal to the market value of our common stock at the date of grant. For participants who own 10% or more of our common
stock at the date of grant, the option price is 110% of the marke t value at the date of grant and the options lapse after five years from the date of grant.
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Activity in our qualified stock option plans during each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 is as follows:

 2003  2002  2001

 

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Outstanding at beginning of
year

1,424,600 $ 2.34 1,655,800 $ 2.39 1,740,500 $2.69

Granted - $ - - $ - 232,500 $2.75

Exercised (127,800) $ 1.53 (90,300) $ 2.84 (20,400) $1.19

Canceled, forfeited or expired (13,000) $ 7.21 (140,900) $ 2.65 (296,800) $4.51

Outstanding at end of year 1,283,800 $ 2.37 1,424,600 $ 2.34 1,655,800 $2.39

Exercisable at end of year 1,168,300 $ 2.33 1,015,900 $ 2.54 879,100 $2.98

Weighted average fair value of
options granted during year    N/A

   N/A
   $2.40

The following table summarizes information about qualified stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2003:

Stock Options Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable

Exercise Prices

 
Shares

Outstanding

 Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Life
in Years

 Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

 
Shares

Exercisable

 Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

                  
$ 1.25 - $ 1.38 716,800 2.82  $ 1.29  716,800 $ 1.29  
$ 2.73 - $ 3.00 183,500 7.44  $ 2.76  68,000 $ 2.76  
$ 4.13 - $ 4.88 383,500 2.69  $ 4.19  383,500 $ 4.19  
$ 1.25 - $ 4.88 1,283,800 4.00  $ 2.37  1,168,300 $ 2.33  

Non-Qualified Stock Option Plans

Our Board of Directors approved the grants of non-qualified stock options to our outside directors, our President and certain key employees, as detailed below. The option prices
are generally based on the market value of our common stock at the dates of grants. These options
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have vesting terms and lives specific to each grant but generally vest over 48 months and expire ten years from the grant date.

We have an Outside Directors Stock Option Plan (the "Outside Director Plan"). The Outside Director Plan authorizes the grant of non-qualified stock options to each member of our
Board of Directors who is not an officer or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries. The maximum number of shares of our common stock that may be issued under the Outside
Director Plan is 400,000 shares. At December 31, 2003, there are 105,000 options outstanding related to the Outside Director Plan.

In 2003, there were no stock options granted under non-qualified stock option plans. In 2002, the Board of Directors granted 50,000 stock options to an employee that vest over 48
months and have contractual lives of ten years as well as 118,000 stock options principally to former employees of the Company to replace the options these individuals held prior
to leaving the Company (a portion of the 168,000 stock options granted had exercise prices that exceeded the last average bid and asked price of our common stock at the date of
the grant). The options to former employees were fully vested at the date of grant and expire between one and nine years from the date of grant. We recognized compensation
expense of $48,000 in 2002 related to the grant of these shares. In 2001, the Board of Directors granted 102,500 stock options that vest over 48 months and have contractual lives
of ten years.

Activity in our non-qualified stock option plans during each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 is as follows:

 2003  2002  2001

 

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 1,351,000  $ 2.32 1,208,000  $ 2.29  1,175,500 $2.43

Granted -  $ - 168,000  $ 2.79  102,500 $2.73

Exercised (3,000)  $ 1.25 -  $ -  (15,000) $1.25

Surrendered, forfeited, or
expired

(94,000)  $ 4.39 (25,000)  $ 4.19  (55,000) $6.37

Outstanding at end of year 1,254,000  $ 2.17 1,351,000  $ 2.32  1,208,000 $2.29

                  
Exercisable at end of year 1,102,500  $ 2.03 995,050  $ 2.34  694,400 $2.47

Weighted average fair value of 
options granted during year   N/A

    $ 1.87
    $2.44
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The following table summarizes information about non-qualified stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2003:

 Stock Options Outstanding  Stock Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted Weighted



Exercise Prices

 
Shares

Outstanding

 Remaining
Contractual Life

in Years

 Average
Exercise
Price

 
Shares

Exercisable

 Average
Exercise Price

$ 1.25 - $ 1.38 781,500 3.88  $ 1.26  781,500 $1.26  
$ 2.62 - $ 2.73 186,500 9.06  $ 2.70  85,000 $2.72  
$ 4.13 - $ 4.19 201,000 3.70  $ 4.18  151,000 $4.18  
$ 4.54 - $ 5.36 85,000 3.58  $ 4.59  85,000 $4.59  
$ 1.25 - $ 5.36 1,254,000 4.60  $ 2.17  1,102,500 $2.03  

Preferred Share Purchase Rights 

We have adopted a preferred share rights plan (the "Rights Plan"), which Rights Plan became effective as of February 27, 1999. The Rights Plan replaced and renewed a rights plan
that was terminating as of that date. Under the Rights Plan, we declared a dividend distribution of one Renewed Preferred Share Purchase Right (the "Renewed Preferred Right") for
each outstanding share of our common stock outstanding as of February 27, 1999 and all further issuances of our common stock would carry the rights. The Rights Plan has a term of
10 years from its effective date. The Renewed Preferred Rights are designed to ensure that all of our stockholders receive fair and equal treatment in the event of a proposed
takeover or abusive tender offer.

The Renewed Preferred Rights are generally exercisable when a person or group (other than Jack E. Golsen, our Chairman and President, and his affiliates, our company or any of
our subsidiaries, our employee benefit plans and certain other limited excluded persons or entities, as set forth in the Rights Plan) acquire beneficial ownership of 20% or more
of our common stock (such a person or group will be referred to as the "Acquirer"). Each Renewed Preferred Right (excluding Renewed Preferred Rights owned by the Acquirer)
entitles stockholders to buy one one-hundredth (1/100) of a share of a new series of participating preferred stock at an exercise price of $20. Following the acquisition by the
Acquirer of beneficial ownership of 20% or more of our common stock, and prior to the acquisition of 50% or more of our common stock by the Acquirer, our Board of Directors may
exchange all or a portion of the Renewed Preferred Rights (other than Renewed Preferred Rights owned by the Acquirer) for our common stock at the rate of one share of common
stock per Renewed Preferred Right. Following acquisition by the Acquirer of 20% or more of our common stock, each Renewed Preferred Right (other than the Renewed Preferred Rights
owned by the Acquirer) will entitle its holder to purchase a number of our common shares having a market value of two times the Renewed Preferred Right's exercise 
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price in lieu of the new preferred stock. Thus, only as an example, if our common shares at such time were trading at $10 per share and the exercise price of the Renewed
Preferred Right is $20, each Renewed Preferred Right would thereafter be exercisable at $20 for four of our common shares. 

If after the Renewed Preferred Share Rights are triggered, we are acquired, or we sell 50% or more of our assets or earning power, each Renewed Preferred Right (other than the
Renewed Preferred Rights owned by the Acquirer) will entitle its holder to purchase a number of the acquiring company's common shares having a market value at the time of two
times the Renewed Preferred Right's exercise price, except if the transaction is consummated with a person or group who acquired our common shares pursuant to a Permitted Offer,
the price for all of our common shares paid to all of our common shareholders is not less than the price per share of our common stock pursuant to the Permitted Offer and the
form of consideration offered in the transaction is the same as the form of consideration paid pursuant to the Permitted Offer. As defined in the Rights Plan, a "Permitted Offer"
is an offer for all of our common shares at a price and on terms that a majority of our Board, who are not officers or the person or group who could trigger the exerciseability
of the Renewed Preferred Rights, deems adequate and in our best interest and that of our shareholders. Thus, only as an example, if our common shares were trading at $10 per
share and the exercise price of a Renewed Preferred Right is $20, each Renewed Preferred Right would thereafter be exercisable at $20 for four shares of the Acquirer.

Prior to the acquisition by the Acquirer of beneficial ownership of 20% or more of our stock, our Board of Directors may redeem the Renewed Preferred Rights for $.01 per Renewed
Preferred Right.

In March 2003, the Company sold for $1,570,500 in cash 450,000 shares of common stock and a warrant (exercisable at $3.49 per share until March 2008) to purchase 112,500 shares
of common stock. The proceeds were used to reduce debt.

In May 2002, the Company issued warrants to purchase 595,585 shares of our common stock exercisable at $.10 per share until May 2012 (see Note 6).

As of December 31, 2003, we have reserved 7.4 million shares of common stock issuable upon potential conversion of preferred stocks, stock options and warrants.

11. Non-Redeemable Preferred Stock

The 20,000 shares of Series B cumulative, convertible preferred stock, $100 par value, are convertible, in whole or in part, into 666,666 shares of our common stock (33.3333
shares of common stock for each share of preferred stock) at any time at the option of the holder and entitles the holder to one vote per share. The Series B preferred stock
provides for annual
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cumulative dividends of 12% from date of issue, payable when and as declared. At December 31, 2003, $960,000 of dividends ($48 per share) on the Series B preferred stock were in
arrears.

The Class C preferred stock, designated as a $3.25 convertible exchangeable Class C preferred stock, Series 2, has no par value ("Series 2 Preferred"). The Series 2 Preferred has
a liquidation preference of $50.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends and is convertible at the option of the holder at any time, unless previously redeemed, into our
common stock at an initial conversion price of $11.55 per share (equivalent to a conversion rate of approximately 4.3 shares of common stock for each share of Series 2
Preferred), subject to adjustment under certain conditions. Upon the mailing of notice of certain corporate actions, holders will have special conversion rights for a 45-day
period. The Series 2 Preferred is redeemable at our option, in whole or in part, at $50.00 per share, plus accrued and unpaid dividends to the redemption date. Dividends on the
Series 2 Preferred are cumulative and are payable quarterly in arrears. At December 31, 2003, $9.1 million of dividends ($14.625 per share) on the Se ries 2 Preferred were in
arrears. 

The Series 2 Preferred also is exchangeable in whole, but not in part, at our option on any dividend payment date for 6.50% Convertible Subordinated Debentures due 2018 (the
"Debentures") at the rate of $50.00 principal amount of Debentures for each share of Series 2 Preferred. Interest on the Debentures, if issued, will be payable semiannually in
arrears. The Debentures will, if issued, contain conversion and optional redemption provisions similar to those of the Series 2 Preferred and will be subject to a mandatory
annual sinking fund redemption of five percent of the amount of Debentures initially issued, commencing on the June 15 following their issuance.

The 1,000,000 shares of Class C preferred stock, designated as Series D 6% cumulative, convertible Class C preferred stock ("Series D Preferred"), have no par value and are
convertible, in whole or in part, into 250,000 shares of our common stock (1 share of common stock for 4 shares of preferred stock) at any time at the option of the holder.
Dividends on the Series D Preferred are cumulative and payable annually in arrears at the rate of 6% per annum of the liquidation preference of $1.00 per share but will be paid
only after accrued and unpaid dividends are paid on the Series 2 Preferred. At December 31, 2003, $120,000 of dividends ($.12 per share) on the Series D Preferred were in
arrears. Each holder of the Series D Preferred shall be entitled to .875 votes per share.

At December 31, 2003, we are authorized to issue an additional 3,200 shares of $100 par value preferred stock and an additional 3,371,450 shares of no par value preferred stock.
Upon issuance, our Board of Directors will determine the specific terms and conditions of such preferred stock.
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12. Deferred Compensation and Employee Benefit Plans

We have entered into deferred compensation agreements with certain key executives. The agreements provide for annual retirement payments ranging from $15,605 to $18,000 for life.
The deferred compensation agreements are forfeited if the respective executive's employment is terminated prior to retirement at age 65 for any reason other than death. The
deferred compensation liability reflects the present value of the remaining estimated payments at discount rates of 6% and 7% as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
liability amounted to $789,000 and $559,000 as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Future estimated payments amount to $2.3 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. The
charge to expense for these agreements has not been material during the past three years. 

If the executive dies prior to retirement, we are required to pay the beneficiary named in the deferred compensation agreement in 120 equal monthly installments aggregating to an
amount specified in the agreement with the executive. To informally fund these agreements, we purchased whole life insurance contracts on the related executives in which we are
the beneficiary.

We sponsor a retirement plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code under which participation is available to substantially all full-time employees. We do not
presently contribute to this plan except for EDC union employees and EDNC employees which amounts were not material for each of the three years ended December 31, 2003.

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The following discussion of fair values is not indicative of the overall fair value of our assets and liabilities since the provisions of SFAS No. 107, "Disclosures About Fair
Value of Financial Instruments," do not apply to all assets, including intangibles.

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, due to their short term nature, the carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximated their
estimated fair values. Carrying values for variable rate borrowings of $29.4 million and $32.8 million are believed to approximate their fair value as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the carrying value of fixed rate debt (excluding the Notes) which aggregated $55.6 million had an estimated fair value of $49.6 million.
Currently, there is no active market for the Notes, therefore the fair value is not determinable; however, the carrying value is $18.3 million. At December 31, 2002, the carrying
value of fixed rate debt (including the Notes of $18.3 million) which aggregated $80.5 million had an estimated fair value of $60 million. Fair values for fixed rate borrowings,
other than the Notes, are estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis that applies interest rates currently being offered on bor rowings of similar amounts and terms to those
currently outstanding while also taking into consideration our current credit worthiness. At December 31, 2002, fair value of the Notes was based on market quotations.
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14. Gains on Sales of Property and Equipment

In December 2002, we sold all of the remaining assets comprising our explosives manufacturing and distribution business recognizing a gain of $1.6 million. See Note 17 -
Discontinued Operations.

On November 1, 2001, one of our subsidiaries sold a significant portion of its assets relating to the distribution of mining products. The total sales price for the distribution
sites was $3.5 million. We recognized a gain on the sale of these assets of approximately $2.7 million.

On October 31, 2000 one of our subsidiaries, which is not a subsidiary of ClimaChem, acquired a chemical plant for the purpose of indirectly expanding our geographical marketing
area. This plant, located at Crystal City, Missouri ("Crystal City Plant"), was shut down concurrent with the purchase thereof. In July 2001, the Crystal City Plant was
dismantled for parts and the land was sold to a third party for approximately $4 million. We recognized a gain on the sale of the Crystal City Plant of approximately $3.3
million.

15. Inventory Write-Down and Benefit From Termination of (Provision for Loss on) Firm Sales and Purchase Commitments 

In 2003 and 2002, our Chemical Business entered into forward sales commitments with customers for deliveries in 2004 and 2003, respectively, which ultimately were at prices below
its costs as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In connection therewith, we recognized a loss on these sales commitments of $.1 million and $.7 million in 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Also in June 2001, we reached an agreement with our supplier of anhydrous ammonia whereby the former long-term purchase commitment was terminated effective June 30, 2001. As
consideration to terminate the above-market priced take-or-pay purchase commitment which provided, among other things, for a market price based on natural gas and required
minimum monthly purchase volumes, EDC agreed to pay the supplier a one-time settlement fee. The remaining accrued liability as of June 30, 2001, associated with the above-market
purchase commitment, net of the one-time settlement fee, was recognized as a gain on termination of the purchase commitment of $2.3 million in 2001. The supplier also agreed to
refund EDC up to $.7 million contingent on minimum monthly purchase volumes for which EDC recognized an additional gain on termination of the purchase commitment of $.3 million
and $.4 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. In 2001, EDC realized, through cost of goods sold, approximately $2.1 million of the accrued liability previously established for
loss on the former firm purchase commitment.

During 2002 and 2001, our Chemical Business also wrote down the carrying value of certain nitrogen-based inventories by approximately $.9 million and $.3 million, respectively
which is included in cost of sales in the accompanying consolidated statement of income.
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16. Property and Business Interruption Insurance Recovery

In 2002, a portion of the El Dorado Facility experienced damage from high winds and a likely tornado. Plant management and engineers surveyed the damage which affected the
production facilities for ammonium nitrate, certain acid plants, a large cooling tower, and other equipment. The repairs were completed in 2002.

During the repair time, we were not able to produce industrial grade ammonium nitrate until the middle of May 2002. Production of our other products, agricultural grade ammonium
nitrate and industrial acids, continued without material interruption. Our property insurance covering the chemical plant entitled us to receive approximate replacement value for
the damaged property less as aggregate $1 million deductible. We also had a thirty-day waiting period before our business interruption insurance coverage became effective. During
the fourth quarter of 2002, a final settlement of $2.5 million, net of the $1 million deductible, was reached for the property and business interruption insurance claims. The net
proceeds relating to our property insurance claim exceeded the cash expenditures for repairs and the depreciated value of the damaged assets. As a result, a net gain relating to
property damage of approximately $1.4 million is classified as other income and a business interruption insurance recovery of a pproximately $.3 million is classified as a
reduction of cost of sales in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for 2002.

In 2000, a nitric acid plant ("Baytown Plant") operated by El Dorado Nitric Company ("EDNC"), a subsidiary of ClimaChem and the Company, experienced a mechanical failure
resulting in an interruption of production. To supply nitric acid to EDNC's customers during the interruption, EDNC purchased nitric acid produced by EDC, as well as from third
party producers. The repairs to the Baytown Plant were completed in January 2001.

Because EDC increased its production of nitric acid to supply EDNC during the interruption, this increase negatively impacted its capability to produce agricultural products to
be sold during 2001 spring season. Therefore we received and recognized a business interruption insurance recovery of approximately $1.6 million during 2001 which is classified
as a reduction of cost of sales in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for 2001.

17. Discontinued Operations 

In December 2002, we sold the remaining assets that comprised all of the explosives manufacturing and distribution business which were formerly included in our Chemical Business.

The sales price was approximately $10.2 million. Of the proceeds from the sale, (a) approximately $.3 million was placed in escrow which was subsequently released in 2003, (b)
approximately $3.5 million was paid to a term lender, and (c) the balance of the proceeds was applied against ClimaChem's secured revolving credit facility.
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Operating results of the discontinued operations for the year ended December 31:

 2002  2001  
 (In Thousands)

Net sales $ 8,981  $ 21,688  
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before gain on disposal $ (5,051)  $ 1,227  
Gain on disposal  1,590   -  
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (3,461)  $ 1,227  

18. Segment Information 

Factors used by Management to Identify the Enterprise's Reportable Segments and Measurement of Segment Profit or Loss and Segment Assets

We have two continuing reportable segments: the Climate Control Business and the Chemical Business. Our reportable segments are based on business units that offer similar
products and services. The reportable segments are each managed separately because they manufacture and distribute distinct products with different production processes.

We evaluate performance and allocate resources based on operating profit or loss. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the
summary of significant accounting policies.

Description of each Reportable Segment 

Climate Control 

This business segment manufactures and sells, primarily from its various facilities in Oklahoma City, a variety of hydronic fan coil, water source heat pump products and other
HVAC products for use in commercial and residential air conditioning and heating systems. Our various facilities in Oklahoma City comprise substantially all of the Climate
Control segment's operations. Sales to customers of this segment primarily include original equipment manufacturers, contractors and independent sales representatives located
throughout the world.

Chemical

This segment manufactures and sells fertilizer grade ammonium nitrate, urea ammonium nitrate, urea and anhydrous ammonia for agricultural applications, industrial grade 
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ammonium nitrate and solutions for the mining industry and concentrated, blended and regular nitric acid, metallurgical grade ammonia, anhydrous ammonia and sulfuric acid for
industrial applications. Our primary manufacturing facilities are located in El Dorado, Arkansas, Baytown, Texas and Cherokee, Alabama. Sales to customers of this segment
primarily include farmers, ranchers and dealers in the Central, South Central and Southeast regions of the United States, explosive manufacturers in the United States and
industrial users of acids in the Southern and Eastern regions of the United States. 

The Chemical Business is subject to various federal, state and local environmental regulations. Although we have designed policies and procedures to help reduce or minimize the
likelihood of significant chemical accidents and/or environmental contamination, there can be no assurances that we will not sustain a significant future operating loss related
thereto.

Information about our continuing operations in different industry segments for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 is detailed below.
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 2003 2002 2001

 (In Thousands)

Net sales:

  Climate Control:

    Water source heat pumps $ 60,473 $ 57,663 $ 61,134

    Hydronic fan coils 47,423 56,020 61,397

    Other HVAC products  11,136   14,445   15,904 
  Total Climate Control  119,032   128,128   138,435 
  Chemical:

    Agricultural products 78,521 58,397 60,742

    Mining products 52,220 37,290 54,944

    Industrial acids  63,029   55,671   54,406 
  Total Chemical  193,770   151,358   170,092 
  Other  4,461   4,325   6,415 
 $ 317,263  $ 283,811  $ 314,942 
Gross profit:            
    Climate Control $ 35,737 $ 37,454 $ 37,890

    Chemical 12,204 6,207 11,007

    Other  1,491   1,332   1,877 
 $ 49,432  $ 44,993  $ 50,774 
Operating profit (loss):            
    Climate Control $ 11,736 $ 14,705 $ 12,500

    Chemical  3,754   (204)   3,702 
 15,490   14,501   16,202 

General corporate expenses and other business 
 operations, net (6,578)

  
(5,950)

  
(7,358)

Interest expense (5,559) (7,590) (13,338)

Gains on sales of property and equipment - 47 6,615

Gains on extinguishment of debt 258 1,458 2,631

Provision for impairment on long-lived assets (500) - -

Benefit from termination of firm purchase 
 commitments - Chemical - -

  
290

  
2,688

Income from continuing operations before provision 
 for income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting
 change $ 3,111

  
$ 2,756

  
$ 7,440
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 2003 2002 2001

 (In Thousands)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:         
   Climate Control $ 2,188 $ 2,317 $ 2,421

   Chemical  7,938  6,966  6,601

   Corporate assets and other  186  214  671

Total depreciation of property, plant and equipment $ 10,312 $ 9,497 $ 9,693

Additions to property, plant and equipment:         
   Climate Control $ 1,543 $ 652 $ 1,144

   Chemical  6,043  9,328  4,639

   Corporate assets and other  230  62  57

Total additions to property, plant and equipment $ 7,816 $ 10,042 $ 5,840

Total assets:         
   Climate Control $ 51,180 $ 52,438 $ 61,682

   Chemical  92,093  93,536  95,078

   Corporate assets and other  15,021  16,808  14,068

   Discontinued operations  -  -  9,010

Total assets $ 158,294 $ 162,782 $ 179,838

Net sales by industry segment include net sales to unaffiliated customers as reported in the consolidated financial statements. Intersegment net sales, which are accounted for at
transfer prices ranging from the cost of producing or acquiring the product or service to normal prices to unaffiliated customers, are not significant.

Gross profit by industry segment represents net sales less cost of sales. Operating profit by industry segment represents operating income plus other income and other expense
(all as reported in the consolidated financial statements) plus general corporate expenses and other business operations, net. In computing operating profit from continuing
operations, none of the following items have been added or deducted: general corporate expenses and other business operations (including unallocated portions of other income and
other expense), interest expense, gains on sales of property and equipment, gains on extinguishment of debt, provision for impairment on long-lived assets, benefit from
termination of firm purchase commitments, income taxes, results from discontinued operations or cumulative effect of accounting change.

Identifiable assets by industry segment are those assets used in the operations of each industry. Corporate assets and other are those principally owned by the parent company or
by subsidiaries not involved in the two identified industries.
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Information about our domestic and foreign operations from continuing operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 is detailed below:

Geographic Region 2003 2002 2001

 (In Thousands)

Net sales:            
Domestic $ 315,833  $ 282,550  $ 311,881 
Foreign  1,430   1,261   3,061 
 $ 317,263  $ 283,811  $ 314,942 
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
 provision for income taxes and cumulative effect of
 accounting change:

           

Domestic $ 3,015 $ 2,742 $ 7,511



     
Foreign  96   14   (71)

 $ 3,111  $ 2,756  $ 7,440 
Long-lived assets:            
Domestic $ 71,931  $ 74,560  $ 74,867 
Foreign  3   3   2 
 $ 71,934  $ 74,563  $ 74,869 

Net sales by geographic region include net sales to unaffiliated customers, as reported in the consolidated financial statements. Net sales earned from sales or transfers between
affiliates in different geographic regions are shown as net sales of the transferring region and are eliminated in consolidation.

Net sales to unaffiliated customers include foreign export sales as follows:

Geographic Area  2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Canada $ 6,162 $ 5,910 $ 6,479

Europe  1,650  931  1,751

Mexico, Central and South America  1,376  1,280  449

Middle East  996  1,921  1,609

Other  1,095  1,306  2,053

 $ 11,279 $ 11,348 $ 12,341
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Major Customers 

Net sales to one customer, Bayer, of our Chemical Business segment represented approximately 12%, 11% and 10% of our total net sales for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. As
discussed in Note 8 - Commitments and Contingencies, under the terms of the Bayer Agreement, Bayer will purchase, from one of our subsidiaries, all of its requirements for nitric
acid to be used at the Baytown, Texas facility for a term through at least May 2009, with provisions for renewal thereafter.

Net sales to another customer, Orica USA, Inc., of our Chemical Business Segment represented approximately 11%, 8% and 2% of our total net sales for 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. As discussed in Note 8 - Commitments and Contingencies, under the terms of the Supply Agreement, EDC will supply from its El Dorado, Arkansas plant industrial grade
ammonium nitrate through at least December 2006, with provisions for renewal thereafter.

19. Subsequent Event (Unaudited)

We have entered into an agreement with an investment banker (placement agent) to act as our financial advisor to, and initial purchaser for, us or our subsidiary, ClimaChem, in
connection with the structuring, issuance and sale of up to $90 million, or such other principal amount which is expected not to be less than $80 million as agreed to, of 10 year
senior secured notes ("Notes") in a private placement. The proposed Notes are not to be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), and may not be
offered or sold in the United States absent registration or pursuant to an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Act. If completed, the Notes will be
offered and sold only to qualified institutional buyers in reliance on Rule 144A of the Act. If completed, the net proceeds from the sale of the Notes will be used to repay a
substantial amount of our indebtedness, with the right to re-borrow under our outstanding Working Capital Revolver Loan and ri ghts to incur certain other additional
indebtedness. This transaction is subject to numerous conditions being met. This does not constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy the proposed Notes.
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 Three months ended

 March 31  June 30  September 30  December 31

2003                
Net Sales $ 71,510  $ 89,976  $ 79,023  $ 76,754 
Gross profit $ 9,257  $ 13,541  $ 13,805  $ 12,829 
Net income (loss) $ (1,825)  $ 2,554  $ 2,364  $ 18 
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ (2,392)  $ 1,987  $ 1,798  $ (609)

Income (loss) per common shares:                
  Basic:                
    Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ (.20)  $ .16  $ .14  $ (.05)

  Diluted:                
    Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ (.20)  $ .14  $ .12  $ (.05)

2002                
Net sales $ 67,920  $ 80,873  $ 69,443  $ 65,575 
Gross profit $ 12,015  $ 13,412  $ 10,714  $ 8,852 
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
 cumulative effect of accounting change $ (25)

 
$ 751

  
$ (683)

 
$ 2,657

 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net (1,059) (1,424) (2,027) 1,049

Cumulative effect of accounting change 860 - - -

Net income (loss) $ (224)  $ (673)  $ (2,710)  $ 3,706 
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ (791)  $ (1,240)  $ (3,277)  $ 3,080 
Income (loss) per common share:                
  Basic:                
   Income (loss) from continuing operations before
    cumulative effect of accounting change $ (.05)

 
$ ..02

  
$ (.10)

 
$ ..16

 
   Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net  (.09)   (.12)   (.17)   .09 
   Cumulative effect of accounting change  .07   -   -   - 
   Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ (.07)  $ (.10)  $ (.27)  $ .25 
  Diluted:                
   Income (loss) from continuing operations before
    cumulative effect of accounting change $ (.05)

 
$ ..02

  
$ (.10)

 
$ ..16

 
   Income (loss) from discontinued operation, net  (.09)   (.12)   (.17)   .06 
   Cumulative effect of accounting change  .07   -   -   - 
   Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ (.07)  $ (.10)  $ (.27)  $ .22 
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During the second and third quarters of 2003, we recovered a portion of our precious metals used over several prior years as a catalyst in the Chemical Business manufacturing
process of $.4 million and $1.2 million, respectively. These amounts are classified as reductions of cost of sales.

During the third quarter of 2003, we recognized impairments on long-lived assets of $.5 million.

We recorded a provision for loss on firm sales commitments of $.1 million in the fourth quarter of 2003 compared to $.7 million in the fourth quarter of 2002. We also recorded a
benefit from termination of firm purchase commitments of $.2 million and $.1 million in the first and second quarters of 2002, respectively. 

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we wrote down the carrying value of certain nitrate-based inventories by an additional $.4 million compared to $.9 million in the third quarter
of 2002. 



In the first quarter of 2002, we adopted SFAS 142 and recognized $.9 million of negative goodwill as a cumulative effect of accounting change.

During the second quarter of 2002, we received approximately $.5 million from a supplier of anhydrous ammonia relating to excess pipeline charges previously billed to us. This
amount is classified as reductions of cost of sales.

During the second quarter of 2002, we repurchased certain Senior Unsecured Notes using the proceeds from a Financing Agreement which was accounted for as a voluntary debt
restructuring. As a result, all future interest expense associated with the Financing Agreement indebtedness was recognized against the implied gain on the transaction.

During the second quarter of 2002, due to certain alleged violations of explosives storage and related regulations, the government regulator, the Bureau of Alcohol, Tabacco and
Firearms ("BATF"), issued an order revoking the manufacturing license of one of our subsidiaries Slurry Explosive Corporation ("Slurry") for its Hallowell, Kansas Facility to
produce certain mining products and confiscated certain high explosives inventory. Slurry continued to manufacture certain non-explosive products. At the end of the third quarter
of 2002, another subsidiary of the ours ("UTeC") obtained a manufacturing license from the BATF for the Hallowell, Kansas Facility. The manufacturing of certain mining products
resumed in the fourth quarter of 2002 until the sale of all of the operating assets of Slurry and UTeC in December 2002 by which we recognized a gain on disposal of $1.6 million.
The operations of Slurry and UTeC are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

On April 8, 2002, a portion of the El Dorado Facility experienced damage from high winds and a

F-63

LSB Industries, Inc.
Supplementary Financial Data

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (continued)

likely tornado. Plant management and engineers surveyed the damage which affected the production facilities for ammonium nitrate, certain acid plants, a large cooling tower, and
other equipment. During the repair time, we were not able to produce industrial grade ammonium nitrate until the middle of May 2002. Production of our other products,
agricultural grade ammonium nitrate and industrial acids, continued without material interruption. Our property insurance covering the chemical plant entitles us to receive
approximate replacement value for the damaged property less an aggregate $1 million deductible. We also had a thirty-day waiting period before our business interruption insurance
coverage became effective. During the fourth quarter of 2002, a final settlement of $2.5 million, net of the $1 million deductible, was reached for the property and business
interruption insurance claims. The net proceeds relating to our property insurance claim exceeded the cash expen ditures for repairs and the depreciated value of the damaged
assets. As a result, a net gain relating to property damage of approximately $1.4 million is classified as other income and a business interruption insurance recovery of
approximately $.3 million is classified as a reduction of cost of sales.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, approximately $3.5 million of the sales proceeds of Slurry and UTeC's assets as discussed above were used as a prepayment on borrowings under a
Financing Agreement discussed above. Due to this prepayment, we recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt of $1.5 million.
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 December 31,

 2003  2002

 (In Thousands)

Assets        
Current assets:        
  Cash $ 135  $ 626 
  Accounts receivable, net  49   50 
  Supplies, prepaid items and other  2,787   2,674 
  Due from subsidiaries  585   4,679 
Total current assets  3,556   8,029 
Property, plant and equipment, net  125   131 
Investments in and due from subsidiaries  18,464   23,480 
Other assets, net  356   581 
 $ 22,501  $ 32,221 
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity        
Current liabilities:        
  Accounts payable $ 22  $ 34 
  Accrued liabilities  908   702 
  Redeemable, noncumulative, convertible preferred stock  103   111 
  Current portion of long-term debt  386   1,428 
Total current liabilities  1,419   2,275 
Long-term debt  1,910   949 
Due to subsidiaries  -   14,648 
Other noncurrent liabilities  1,080   1,146 
Stockholders' equity:        
  Preferred stock  34,427   34,427 
  Common stock  1,582   1,524 
  Capital in excess of par value  56,223   54,503 
  Accumulated deficit  (68,713)   (71,824)

  23,519   18,630 
  Treasury stock  (5,427)   (5,427)

Total stockholders' equity  18,092   13,203 
 $ 22,501  $ 32,221 

See accompanying notes.
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Condensed Statements of Operations

 Year ended December 31,

 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Fees under service, tax sharing and management agreements with
 subsidiaries $ 1,150

  
$ 7,224

  
$ 2,237

 
Selling, general and administrative  2,633   2,300   2,520 
Operating income (loss)  (1,483)   4,924   (283)

Other income (expense):            
  Interest and other income, net  1,248   1,161   904 
  Interest expense  (2,529)   (2,445)   (2,971)

Income (loss) from continuing operations  (2,764)   3,640   (2,350)

Equity in earnings (losses) of subsidiaries  5,875   (80)   9,680 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net  -   (3,461)   1,227 
Net income $ 3,111  $ 99  $ 8,557 

See accompanying notes.
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 Year ended December 31,

 2003  2002  2001

 (In Thousands)

Cash flows provided (used) by continuing operating activities $ (2,728)  $ 235  $ (4,931)

Cash flows from investing activities:            
   Capital expenditures  (11)   (6)   - 
   Proceeds from sales of property and equipment  -   12   2 
   Proceeds from (payment of) restricted cash held in escrow  -   350   (350)

   Other assets  76   506   949 
Net cash provided by investing activities  65   862   601 
Cash flows from financing activities:            
   Payments on long-term and other debt  (445)   (527)   (1,058)

   Long-term borrowings  -   1,900   - 
   Net change in revolving debt  -   -   (1,433)

   Net change in due to/from subsidiaries  847   (2,136)   6,980 
   Net proceeds from issuance of common stock and warrants  1,770   33   32 
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities  2,172   (730)   4,521 
Net increase (decrease) in cash  (491)   367   191 
Cash at the beginning of year  626   259   68 
Cash at the end of year $ 135  $ 626  $ 259 

See accompanying notes.
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Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed financial statements of the parent company include the accounts of LSB Industries, Inc. (the "Company") only. The Company's investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost plus equity in undistributed earnings (losses) of subsidiaries since date of acquisition. These condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the Company's consolidated financial statements.

2. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has guaranteed the payment of principal and interest under the terms of various debt. Subsidiaries long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2003, which is
guaranteed by the Company is as follows (in thousands):

Secured revolving credit facility - ClimaChem  $ 24,027

Financing Agreement due 2005   31,700

Accrued interest on Financing Agreement   11,295

Other, most of which is secured by machinery, equipment and real estate   9,016

  $ 76,038

See Notes 6 and 8 of the Notes to the Company's consolidated financial statements for discussion of the long-term debt and commitments and contingencies.

3. Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, a subsidiary of the Company owns 2,451,527 shares of the Company's Common Stock which shares have been considered as issued and outstanding in the
accompanying Condensed Balance Sheets included in this Schedule I-Condensed Financial Information of Registrant. See Notes 9, 10 and 11 of Notes to the Company's consolidated
financial statements for discussion of matters relating to the Company's preferred stock and other stockholders' equity matters.
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Years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(Dollars in Thousands)

Description

 
Balance at
Beginning of

Year

 Additions-
Charges

(Recoveries) to
Costs and
Expenses

 
Deductions-
Write-offs/

Costs
Incurred

 
Balance at

End 
of Year

Accounts receivable - allowance 
for doubtful accounts (1):

 
2003 $ 2,405  $ 1,031  $ 211  $ 3,225 
2002 $ 1,980  $ 618  $ 193  $ 2,405 
2001 $ 2,469  $ 128  $ 617  $ 1,980 

Inventory-reserve for
slow-moving items (1):

 
2003 $ 1,261  $ 222  $ 42  $ 1,441 
2002 $ 1,232  $ 350  $ 321  $ 1,261 
2001 $ 1,291  $ 60  $ 119  $ 1,232 

Notes receivable-allowance 
for doubtful accounts (1):

 
2003 $ 13,655  $ -  $ -  $ 13,655 
2002 $ 13,655  $ -  $ -  $ 13,655 
2001 $ 13,787  $ -  $ 132  $ 13,655 

Deferred tax assets - valuation (1):  
2003 $ 28,632  $ -  $ 359  $ 28,273 
2002 $ 28,240  $ 392  $ -  $ 28,632 
2001 $ 31,512  $ -  $ 3,272  $ 28,240 
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Years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(Dollars in Thousands)

 
Balance at

 Additions-
Charged to
(Recoveries)

 
Deductions-
Write-offs/

 
Balance



Description
Beginning of

Year
to Costs and
Expenses

Costs
Incurred

at End
of Year

Accrual for plant turnaround:  
2003 $ 1,886 $ 2,745 $ 1,953 $ 2,678

2002 $ 1,742 $ 2,861 $ 2,717 $ 1,886

2001 $ 1,848 $ 2,946 $ 3,052 $ 1,742

(1) Deducted in the balance sheet from the related assets to which the reserve applies.

    Other valuation and qualifying accounts are detailed in our notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(a)(3) Exhibits

2.1. Stock Purchase Agreement and Stock Pledge Agreement between Dr. Hauri AG, a Swiss Corporation, and LSB Chemical Corp., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 2.2 to the Company's Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 1994.

3.1. Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Certificate of Designation dated February 17, 1989, and certificate of Elimination dated April 30, 1993, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Registration Statement, No. 33-61640; Certificate of Designation for the Company's $3.25 Convertible Exchangeable
Class C Preferred Stock, Series 2, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.6 to the Company's Registration Statement, No. 33-61640.

3.2. Bylaws, as amended, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 3(ii) to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998.

4.1. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Non-cumulative Preferred Stock, having a par value of $100 per share, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit
4.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1983.

4.2. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Series B Preferred Stock, having a par value of $100 per share, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.27
to the Company's Registration Statement No. 33-9848.

4.3. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Series 2 Preferred, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.5 to the Company's Registration Statement No.
33-61640.

4.4. Specimen of Certificate of Series D 6% Cumulative, Convertible Class C Preferred Stock which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

4.5. Specimen Certificate for the Company's Common Stock, which the Company incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's Registration Statement No. 33-61640.

4.6. Renewed Rights Agreement, dated January 6, 1999, between the Company and Bank One, N.A., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit No. 1 to the
Company's Form 8-A Registration Statement, dated January 27, 1999.

4.7. Indenture, dated as of November 26, 1997, by and among ClimaChem, Inc., the Subsidiary Guarantors and Bank One, NA, as trustee, which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated November 26, 1997.

4.8. First Supplemental Indenture, dated February 8, 1999, by and among ClimaChem, Inc., the Guarantors, and Bank One N.A., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 4.19 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998.

F-71

4.9. Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 24, 2002, among the Company, the Guarantors, and Bank One, N.A, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.3
to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002.

4.10. Form of 10 3/4% Series B Senior Notes due 2007 which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.3 to the ClimaChem Registration Statement, No. 333-44905.

4.11. Loan and Security Agreement, dated April 13, 2001 by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem and each of its Subsidiaries that are Signatories, the Lenders that are
Signatories and Foothill Capital Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.51 to ClimaChem, Inc.'s amendment No. 1 to Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

4.12. Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement, dated May 24, 2002, by and among the Company, LSB, certain subsidiaries of the Company, Foothill Capital Corporation and
Congress Financial Corporation (Southwest), which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002. Omitted are
exhibits and schedules attached thereto. The Agreement contains a list of such exhibits and schedules, which the Company agrees to file with the Commission supplementally upon
the Commission's request.

4.13. Third Amendment, dated as of November 18, 2002, to the Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 13, 2001, as amended by the First Amendment dated as of August 3, 2001
and the second Amendment dated as of May 24, 2002, by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem, Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Congress Financial Corporation
(Southwest) and Foothill Capital Corporation which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September
30, 2002.

4.14. Fourth Amendment, dated as of March 3, 2003, to the Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 13, 2001, as amended by the First, Second, and Third Amendments, by and
among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem, Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Inc., Congress Financial Corporation (Southwest) and Foothill Capital Corporation, which the
Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.18 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

4.15. Fifth Amendment, dated as of December 31, 2003, to the Loan and Security Agreement dated as of April 13, 2001, as amended by the First, Second, Third and Fourth Amendments,
by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem, Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Inc., Congress Financial Corporation (Southwest) and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.

4.16 Waiver and Consent, dated March 25, 2004, to the Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of April 13, 2001 (as amended to date), by and among LSB Industries, Inc., ClimaChem,
Inc., and certain subsidiaries of ClimaChem, Inc. and Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.

4.17. Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 24, 2002 ("Agreement"), which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May
24, 2002. Omitted are exhibits and schedules attached thereto. The Agreement contains a
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list of such exhibits and schedules, which the Company agrees to file with the Commission supplementally upon the Commission's request.

4.18. Promissory Note, dated May 24, 2002, granted by the Company in favor of one of the Lenders in the original principal amount of $7,786,927, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002. Substantially similar Promissory Notes, dated May 24, 2002, were granted by the Company
to each of the other Lenders in the original principal amount indicated: (a) a Promissory Note granted in favor of one Lender in the original principal amount of $3,478,410, (b)
two Promissory Notes granted in favor of a Lender in the original aggregate principal amount of $20,000,000, (c) a Promissory Note granted in favor of a Lender in the original
principal amount of $3,734,663. Copies of these Promissory Notes will be provided to the Commission upon request.

4.19. Letter, dated July 10, 2002, to document certain items not reflected in the Securities Purchase Agreement which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit
4.5 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002.

4.20. Second Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement, dated February 28, 2003 by and among ClimaChem, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries, the Purchasers and Guggenheim
Investment Management, LLC., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.17 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

4.21. Letter, dated March 3, 2003, to document the consent to increase capital expenditures, as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 4.19 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

4.22. Letter, dated December 31, 2003, to document the consent to changes to the EBITDA covenants, as defined in the Securities Purchase Agreement.

4.23. Waiver and Consent, dated March 17, 2004, to the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2002 (as amended to date) by and among ClimaChem, Inc. and certain of
its subsidiaries and Guggenheim Investment Management, LLC.

4.24. Letter, dated March 18, 2004, to document the consent to the prepayment of the ClimaChem, Inc. debt to LSB Industries, Inc.

10.1. Limited Partnership Agreement dated as of May 4, 1995, between the general partner, and LSB Holdings, Inc., an Oklahoma Corporation, as limited partner which the Company
hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.11 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995.

10.2. Form of Death Benefit Plan Agreement between the Company and the employees covered under the plan, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10(c) (1)
to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1980.

10.3. The Company's 1993 Stock Option and Incentive Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1993.
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10.4. The Company's 1993 Non-employee Director Stock Option Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1993.

10.5. First Amendment to Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated March 2, 1994, and Second Amendment to Stock Option Agreement, dated April 3, 1995, each between the Company
and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1995.

10.6. Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated April 22, 1998, between the Company and Robert C. Brown, M.D. The Company entered into substantially identical agreements with
Bernard G. Ille, Raymond B. Ackerman, Horace G. Rhodes, and Donald W. Munson. The Company will provide copies of these agreements to the Commission upon request.

10.7. The Company's 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.44 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1998.



10.8. LSB Industries, Inc. 1998 Stock Option and Incentive Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit "B" to the LSB Proxy Statement, dated May 24,
1999, for Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

10.9. LSB Industries, Inc. Outside Directors Stock Option Plan which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit "C" to the LSB Proxy Statement, dated May 24, 1999,
for Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

10.10. Nonqualified Stock Option, dated December 1, 2002, between the Company and William Manion, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.54 to the
Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. The Company entered into substantially identical nonqualified stock option agreements with three
other former employees for the purchase of 34,000 shares at an exercise price of $2.73 per share, expiring on November 21, 2011, 40,000 shares at an exercise price of $1.25 per
share, expiring on July 8, 2009, 31,000 shares at an exercise price of $4.188 per share, expiring on August 18, 2004 through April 22, 2008 and 4,000 shares at an exercise price
of $9.00 per share, expired on March 19, 2003, copies of which will be provided to the Commission upon request.

10.11. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated November 7, 2002, between the Company and John J. Bailey Jr, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 55
to the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.12. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated November 29, 2001, between the Company and Dan Ellis, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.56 to
the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.13. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated July 20, 2000, between the Company and Claude Rappaport for the purchase of 80,000 shares of common stock, which the Company
hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.57 to the Company's Form 10-K/A
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Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. Substantially similar nonqualified stock option agreements were entered into with Mr. Rappaport (40,000 shares at an
exercise price of $1.25 per share, expiring on July 20, 2009), (5,000 shares at an exercise price of $5.362 per share, expiring on July 20, 2007), and (60,000 shares at an
exercise price of $1.375 per share, expiring on July 20, 2009), copies of which will be provided to the Commission upon request.

10.14. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated July 8, 1999, between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.58 to
the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. Substantially similar nonqualified stock options were granted to Barry H. Golsen (55,000
shares), Stephen J. Golsen (35,000 shares), David R. Goss (35,000 shares), Tony M. Shelby (35,000 shares), David M. Shear (35,000 shares) and five other employees (165,000
shares), copies of which will be provided to the Commission upon request.

10.15. Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated December 18, 1997, between the Company and Dan Ellis, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.59 to
the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.16. Severance Agreement, dated January 17, 1989, between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.48 to the Company's
Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 1988. The Company also entered into identical agreements with Tony M. Shelby, David R. Goss, Barry H. Golsen, David M. Shear, and Jim
D. Jones and the Company will provide copies thereof to the Commission upon request.

10.17. Employment Agreement and Amendment to Severance Agreement dated January 12, 1989 between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, dated March 21, 1996 which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.15 to the Company's Form 10-K for fiscal year ended December 31, 1995.

10.18. First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated April 29, 2003, between the Company and Jack E. Golsen, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit
10.52 to the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.19. Baytown Nitric Acid Project and Supply Agreement dated June 27, 1997, by and among El Dorado Nitrogen Company, El Dorado Chemical Company and Bayer Corporation which the
Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN
OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551, DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.20. First Amendment to Baytown Nitric Acid Project and Supply Agreement, dated February 1, 1999, between El Dorado Nitrogen Company and Bayer Corporation, which the Company
hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.30 to the Company's Form 10-K for
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the year ended December 31, 1998. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #7927, DATED JUNE 9, 1999, GRANTING A
REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.21. Service Agreement, dated June 27, 1997, between Bayer Corporation and El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to
the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551,
DATED SEPTEMBER 25, 1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.22. Ground Lease dated June 27, 1997, between Bayer Corporation and El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551, DATED
SEPTEMBER 25, 1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.23. Participation Agreement, dated as of June 27, 1997, among El Dorado Nitrogen Company, Boatmen's Trust Company of Texas as Owner Trustee, Security Pacific Leasing
Corporation, as Owner Participant and a Construction Lender, Wilmington Trust Company, Bayerische Landes Bank, New York Branch, as a Construction Lender and the Note Purchaser,
and Bank of America National Trust and Savings Association, as Construction Loan Agent which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Form
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF COMMISSION ORDER CF #5551, DATED SEPTEMBER 25,
1997, GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.24. Lease Agreement, dated as of June 27, 1997, between Boatmen's Trust Company of Texas as Owner Trustee and El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates
by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997.

10.25. Security Agreement and Collateral Assignment of Construction Documents, dated as of June 27, 1997, made by El Dorado Nitrogen Company which the Company hereby incorporates
by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997.
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10.26. Security Agreement and Collateral Assignment of Facility Documents, dated as of June 27, 1997, made by El Dorado Nitrogen Company and consented to by Bayer Corporation
which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 1997.

10.27. Letter Agreement, dated March 12, 1999, between Kestrel Aircraft Company and LSB Industries, Inc., Prime Financial Corporation, Herman Meinders, Carlan K. Yates, Larry H.
Lemon, Co-Trustee Larry H. Lemon Living Trust, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.45 to the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1998.

10.28. Loan Agreement dated December 23, 1999 between Climate Craft, Inc. and the City of Oklahoma City, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.49 to
the Company's Amendment No. 2 to its 1999 Form 10-K.

10.29. Letter, dated April 1, 2001, executed by SBL to Prime amending the Promissory Note, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.55 to the Company's
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

10.30. Agreement, dated October 18, 2001, by and between LSB Industries, Inc., Prime Financial Corporation, and SBL Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

10.31. Agreement, dated April 2, 2001, between Crystal City Nitrogen Company and River Cement Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.57 to
the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

10.32. Assignment, dated May 8, 2001, between Climate Master, Inc. and Prime Financial Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.

10.33. Agreement for Purchase and Sale, dated April 10, 2001, by and between Prime Financial Corporation and Raptor Master, L.L.C. which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.

10.34. Amended and Restated Lease Agreement, dated May 8, 2001, between Raptor Master, L.L.C. and Climate Master, Inc. which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.

10.35. Option Agreement, dated May 8, 2001, between Raptor Master, L.L.C. and Climate Master, Inc., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001.
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10.36. Stock Purchase Agreement, dated September 30, 2001, by and between Summit Machinery Company and SBL Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company' Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

10.37. Certificate of Designations of LSB Industries, Inc., relating to the issuance of a new series of Class C Preferred Stock, which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference form Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2001.

10.38. Asset Purchase Agreement, dated October 22, 2001, between Orica USA, Inc. and El Dorado Chemical Company and Northwest Financial Corporation, which the Company hereby
incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Form 8-K dated December 28, 2001. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A
REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED
SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.39. AN Supply Agreement, dated November 1, 2001, between Orica USA, Inc. and El Dorado Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated December 28, 2001. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT
BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.40. Ammonium Nitrate Sales Agreement between Nelson Brothers, L.L.C. and Cherokee Nitrogen Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.3 to the
Company's Form 8-K dated December 28, 2001. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT
BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.41. Agreement, dated August 4, 2001, between El Dorado Chemical Company and Paper, Allied-Industrial, Chemical and Energy Workers International Union AFL-C10 and its Local 5-
434, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.65 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.



10.42. Agreement, dated October 16, 2001, between El Dorado Chemical Company and International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, AFL-C10 Local No. 224, which
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the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.66 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

10.43. Warrant, dated May 24, 2002, granted by the Company to a Lender for the right to purchase up to 132,508 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $0.10
per share, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002. Four substantially similar Warrants, dated May 24,
2002, for the purchase of an aggregate additional 463,077 shares at an exercise price of $0.10 were issued. Copies of these Warrants will be provided to the Commission upon
request.

10.44. Intercreditor Agreement, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 99.2 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated May 24, 2002.

10.45. Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 6, 2002, by and among Energetic Systems Inc. LLC, UTeC Corporation, LLC, SEC Investment Corp. LLC, DetaCorp Inc. LLC,
Energetic Properties, LLC, Slurry Explosive Corporation, Universal Tech Corporation, El Dorado Chemical Company, LSB Chemical Corp., LSB Industries, Inc. and Slurry Explosive
Manufacturing Corporation, LLC, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Form 8-K, dated December 12, 2002. The asset purchase
agreement contains a brief list identifying all schedules and exhibits to the asset purchase agreement. Such schedules and exhibits are not filed herewith, and the Registrant
agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of the omitted schedules and exhibits to the commission upon request.

10.46. Anhydrous Ammonia Sales Agreement, dated December 9, 2002, between Koch Nitrogen Company and El Dorado Chemical Company, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 10.48 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF
COMMISSION ORDER CF #13890 GRANTING A REQUEST FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED.

10.47. Anhydrous Ammonia Sales Agreement, dated January 22, 2004, between Koch Nitrogen Company and El Dorado Chemical Company. CERTAIN INFORMATION WITHIN THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN
OMITTED AS IT IS THE SUBJECT OF A REQUEST BY THE COMPANY FOR CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT. THE OMITTED
INFORMATION HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WITH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION FOR PURPOSES OF SUCH REQUEST.

10.48. Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 25, 2003, among LSB Industries, Inc., Kent C. McCarthy, Jayhawk Capital management, L.L.C., Jayhawk Investments, L.P. and
Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from Exhibit 10.49 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2002.
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10.49. Subscription Agreement, dated March 25, 2003, by and between LSB Industries, Inc. and Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P., which the Company hereby incorporates by
reference from Exhibit 10.50 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.50. Warrant Agreement, dated March 25, 2003, between LSB Industries, Inc. and Jayhawk Institutional Partners, L.P., which the Company hereby incorporates by reference from
Exhibit 10.51 to the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

10.51. Release, dated February 11, 2003, by Stillwater National Bank and Trust Company in favor of Prime Financial Corporation, which the Company hereby incorporates by reference
from Exhibit 10.53 to the Company's Form 10-K/A Amendment No.1 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

14.1 Code of Ethics for CEO and Senior Financial Officers of Subsidiaries of LSB Industries, Inc.

  
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company.

  
23.1 Consent of Independent Auditors.

  
31.1 Certification of Jack E. Golsen, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, Section 302.

  
31.2 Certification of Tony M. Shelby, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002, Section 302.

  
32.1 Certification of Jack E. Golsen, Chief Executive Officer, furnished pursuant to Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002, Section 906.

  
32.2 Certification of Tony M. Shelby, Chief Financial Officer, furnished pursuant to Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002, Section 906.
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